
 

Next Ord: 1497-05 
Next Res: 	710-05 

  

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

The mission of the Sedro-Woolley City government is to provide selected services 
that are not traditionally offered by the private sector. This will be achieved through 

providing the highest quality services we can within the resources with which we're provided; 
involving residents in all aspects of planning and operations; serving as a clearinghouse 

for public information; and operating facilities which meet the legitimate, identified 
concerns of the residents of and visitors to our community. 

We believe in being community-centered, consistently contributing to the quality of life 
in our area and as fully deserving of the public's trust through the 

consistent expression of positive values and acceptance 
of accountability for producing meaningful results. 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
January 12, 2005 

7:00 PM 
Sedro-Woolley Community Center 

703 Pacific Street 

	

1. 	Call to Order 

	

2. 	Pledge of Allegiance 

	

3. 	Consent Calendar 
NOTE: 	 Agenda items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and may be adopted by the Council by a single 
motion, unless any Councilmember or a member of the audience wishes an item to be removed. The Council on the regular agenda will 
consider any item so removed after the Consent Calendar. 

a. Minutes from Previous Meeting 
b. Finance 

- Claim Vouchers #53218  to #53430  for $632,294.91   
- 	Payroll Warrants #34729  to  #34824  for  $130,658.14  
- Payroll Warrants  #34825  to  #34916  for  $179,445.89 

c. Waiver of Fees - Community Center  -  Cub Scout Pack 4067 - February 5, 2005 
d. Waiver of Fees - Community Center - Old Time Fiddlers - December 3, 2005 
e. Waiver of Fees  -  SW Little League Baseball - Misc. January/February Dates 
f. Waiver of Fees - Riverfront Park - Cub Scout Pack 4067- June 16, 2005 
g. Request for Out of State Travel  -  Fire Department 
h. Interlocal Agreement - Skagit County and SWFD for Confined Space Training 
i. Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement Revision - State of Washington 
j. Contract - Earth Tech 
k. Request to Surplus Part of Garbage Truck 
1. 	Appointments to Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 
m. Interlocal Agreement  -  SR20 Bicycle/Pedestrian Trail Project with Skagit County 
n. Amendment #1 to Skagit County Interlocal Re: SR20/F&S Intersection 
o. Spillman Public Safety System Order Supplement 
p. Extension of Earnest Money Agreement on Trail Road 

	

4. 	Public Comment (Please limit your comments to 3-5 minutes) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  

	

5. 	Resolution  -  Extension of Interim Moratorium on New Subdivisions Served by Township and 
Metcalf Streets Sewer 



OLD BUSINESS  
6. Stanislaw/Janicki Annexation 
NEW BUSINESS  
7. Ordinance - Refinancing of Public Safety Bonds 
8. Ordinance - Utility Tax 
9. Ordinance - 2005 Salary Ordinance 
COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

P.M.UU 	COUNCIL]  CialvifdEkS 
,IGENDA NO. 	  

DATE: 	January 12, 2005 

TO: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Clerk-Treasurer 

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the January 12, 2005 
Regular Meeting to Order. 	The Clerk-Treasurer will note 
those in attendance and those absent. 

Ward 1 

Ward 2 

Ward 3 

Ward 4 

Ward 5 

Ward 6 

Councilmember Ted Meamber 

Councilmember Tony Splane 

Councilmember Tom Storrs 

Councilmember Pat Colgan 

Councilmember Hugh Galbraith 

Councilmember Rick Lemley 

At-Large Councilmember Mike Anderson 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council 
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States 
of America. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of 
Consent Calendar items. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

7:00 P.M. COUNCILC,HAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

Regular Meeting of the City Council 
December 8, 2004 — 7:00 P.M. — Community Center 

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Dillon, Councilmembers: Meamber, Splane, Storrs, 
Colgan, Galbraith, Lemley and Anderson. Staff: City Attorney Hayden, Clerk/Treasurer 
Nelson, Engineer Blair, Planner Lahr, Police Chief Wood and Fire Chief Klinger. 

Consent Calendar 
• Minutes from Previous Meeting 
• Finance 

o Claim Vouchers #53131 to #53217 for $317,892.37 
o Payroll Warrants #34634 to #34728 for $189,389.03 

• Waiver of Fees — Community Center — DCFS — December 14, 2004 
• Waiver of Fees — Community Center — Skagit Co. PUD — December 10, 2004 
• Interlocal Agreement — Provision of Senior Services with Skagit County for 

2005 
• Collective Bargaining Agreement — Public Safety Guild Support Employees 

Councilmember Storrs moved to approve the consent calendar Items A through F. 
Seconded by Councilmember Meamber. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

Kevin Loy — 128 Garden of Eden Rd., addressed the Council regarding previous concerns 
with the Planning Commission. Loy announced that the Planning Commission has now 
adopted Rules and Regulations to follow, including an attendance policy. He challenged 
the Council to support the rules and regulations adopted by the Planning Commission, 
support the Planning Commission and to work on an open line of communication with 
the Planning Commission. 

Lauren Fretas — 1433 S. 12th  St., Mt. Vernon, spoke to the Council regarding a 
partnership opportunity between the Sedro-Woolley, Hamilton and District 8 Fire 
Departments. She noted that she has been working with Chief Klinger regarding an 
aerial ladder truck and reviewed a proposal for a joint purchasing agreement for a ladder 
truck and peripheral equipment. She requested to be placed on a future agenda should the 
Council be interested in exploring the partnership. 



Julie Calix — 216 Gibson St., addressed the Council regarding water problems she is 
experiencing since the completion of the sewer project in the alley behind her residence. 
She discussed damage to her home which she believes is a result of this project and 
requested action. 

Ron Power — addressed the Council and encouraged maintaining the Police Department 
under the control of the City. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Resolution — Design Standards and Guildelines Manual 

Planner Lahr reviewed background information for the proposed resolution adopting a 
Design Standards and Guidelines Manual for use by the Planning Commission. The 
manual would be used to guide growth in industrial/commercial/multi-family and 
planned residential developments. It would include suggested design elements and 
required design elements. The purpose of the resolution is to enter findings in support of 
the ordinance. 

Mayor Dillon opened the Public Hearing at 7:14 P.M. 

No Public Comment Received 

Mayor Dillon closed the Public Hearing at 7:15 P.M. 

Councilmember Storrs moved to approve Resolution #707-04 A Resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley Entering Findings of Fact in Support of Interim 
Ordinance No. 1488-04 Adopting A Design Standards and Guidelines Manual. 
Councilmember Colgan seconded. Motion carried. 

Resolution — Annexation of FEMA Property — Former Skagit County Lots 

Attorney Hayden reviewed the history of the FEMA property formerly owned by Skagit 
County, located north of the existing Riverfront Park and adjacent to the Little League 
Ball Fields. He reviewed a map of the property. Hayden noted it would bridge a gap 
between the existing City limits and the park and stressed that the annexation requests 
does not include any privately owned property. Zoning was addressed and use 
restrictions that were part of the original agreement which follows the property regardless 
of ownership. 

Mayor Dillon opened the public hearing at 7:23 P.M. 

Robert Woolsey — 933 Alexander St., spoke in support of the annexation if annexed for 
the right reasons. He noted that any development of the property, even for ball fields 
would be wrong because of the need to level the land. He encouraged making the land 
into a reserve and interpretive center which could be done with federal grant money. 



Bill Knuth — 24230 Alexander St., addressed the use of chemical weed control in the 
area. He also spoke of the history of the property and fill of neighboring property which 
changed the lay of the land. Knuth expressed concern of illegal activities taking place 
and being conducted with limited police officers for enforcement. He stated he believes a 
ball field would create more damage to the land. 

Mayor Dillon read letters into the record in support of the annexation as long as the 
property is utilized as a park and the letters requested open communication regarding 
flood concerns and culvert installations to prevent damage. The letters were signed by 
Tom Vlahovich, Sr., Tom Vlahovich, Jr., and Ginny Good. 

The Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:30 P.M. 

Discussion was held regarding use of the property and Council involvement in the 
decision of the use of the property. Audience discussion was held regarding possible 
funding for a reserve. 

Councilmember Anderson moved to adopt Resolution #708-04 A Resolution of the City 
of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, Resolving to Annex Real Property Contiguous to the 
Southern Portion of the City, and Adopting a Proposed Land Use Zoning Regulation for 
the Real Property, and Subjecting the Property to its Pro-Rata Share of City Indebtedness. 
Seconded by Councilmember Colgan. Motion carried. 

Councilmember Storrs requested Mayor Dillon research the possibility of the inclusion of 
the PUD property at the same time as the annexation of the FEMA property. 

Ordinance — 2004 Budget Amendment 

Clerk/Treasurer Nelson reviewed the proposed Ordinance for the 2004 Budget 
Amendments. She summarized the changes as outlined in the staff memo. 

Mayor Dillon opened the Public Hearing at 7:40 P.M. 

No public comment received. 

Mayor Dillon closed the Public Hearing at 7:41 P.M. 

Councilmember Storrs moved to adopt Ordinance #1493-04 An Ordinance Amending 
Ordinance No. 1458-03, "An Ordinance Adopting the Annual Budget for the City of 
Sedro-Woolley, Washington, For the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2004". 
Councilmember Splane seconded. 

Roll Call Vote: Meamber — Yes, Splane — Yes, Storrs — Yes, Colgan — Yes, Galbraith —
Yes, Lemley — Yes and Anderson — Yes. Motion carried. 



OLD BUSINESS 

None 

NEW BUSINESS 

Interlocal Agreement — Annexation and Road Improvements on Fruitdale & McGarigle 

Attorney Hayden reviewed background information for the proposed Interlocal 
Agreement for the delivery of services and revenue sharing for the "Stanislaw Properties, 
et al". Hayden noted the agreement would have both the County and City working 
equally on a 50/50 basis to develop the roads to urban standards. The upgrades would 
take place over the next 10 years. Developer Impact fees would not be shared. Hayden 
complimented Commissioner Anderson for his effort in bringing this agreement forward. 

Discussion ensued to include budgeting, expense of work, area of work and affect on 
County and City budgets. 

Councilmember Storrs moved to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit County 
concerning the Stanislaw Property annexation and to provide the permitting during the 
transition and shared cost in road improvements with Skagit County. Seconded by 
Councilmember Colgan. Motion carried. 

Resolution — Brickyard Meadows Division 2 Final Plat Application 

Planner Lahr reviewed the request for approval of the Final Plat of Brickyard Meadows 
Division 2. She noted that preliminary plat approval was granted on November 14, 1994 
by Resolution #559. 

Councilmember Meamber moved to approve Resolution #709-04 A Resolution Granting 
Final Approval to "Brickyard Meadows" Planned Development, Division 2, for 11 
Single-Family Lots and 11 Multifamily Units (No. 2569). Councilmember Anderson 
seconded. Motion carried. 

Ordinance — Extension of Interim Moratorium on New Subdivisions Served by Township 
and Metcalf Streets Sewer 

Engineer Blair reviewed the proposed ordinance for the extension of the Interim 
Moratorium on New Subdivisions served by Township and Metcalf Street Sewers. Blair 
reviewed the progress that has been made and encouraged Council to extend the 
moratorium for an additional six months. Blair noted that a portion of Metcalf south of 
Highway 20 (Moore Street) has been removed from the moratorium area. 

Council discussion took place to include the Gibson Street situation, Township Street line 
capacity, project timing and design and funding mechanisms. 



Councilmember Anderson moved to adopt Ordinance #1494-04 An Interim Ordinance of 
the City of Sedro-Woolley Extending a Moratorium on Subdivisions in Certain Areas 
Served by the Township Street and Metcalf Street Sewer Mains for a Period of Six 
Months and Requiring New Applications to be Accompanied by Confirmation From the 
Public Works Director that Line Capacity is Available. Seconded by Councilmember 
Storrs. 

Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Anderson — Yes, Lemley — Yes, Galbraith — Yes, 
Colgan — Yes, Storrs — Yes, Splane — Yes, and Meamber — Yes. Motion carried. 

Councilmember Anderson questioned the process of the Public Hearing and noted his 
displeasure of doing public hearings in reverse. 

Addition to Cemetery Ordinance No. 1456-03 Establishing Rates for Estate Model 
Columbarium Niche  

Engineer Blair reviewed the proposed ordinance which adds a section for the 
Columbarium (niche) wall and set rates. 

Discussion of the Headstone setting fee listing ensued. 

Councilmember Lemley moved to adopt Ordinance #1495-04 An Ordinance of the City 
of Sedro-Woolley Washington, Establishing Rates at the Sedro-Woolley Union 
Cemetery, and Amending #1456-03 removing "headstone setting at $75.00" under Burial 
Space on Page 1. Councilmember Colgan seconded. 

Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Meamber — Yes, Splane — Yes, Splane — Yes, Colgan —
Yes, Galbraith — Yes, Lemley — Yes, and Anderson — Yes. Motion carried. 

Ordinance — Establishing the 2005 City Council & Planning Commission Meeting 
Schedules  

Mayor Dillon reviewed the City Council and Planning Commission Meeting Schedule for 
the year 2005. 

Councilmember Storrs moved to adopt Ordinance #1496-04 An Ordinance of the City of 
Sedro-Woolley Establishing the 2005 City Council and Planning Commission Meeting 
Schedules. Seconded by Councilmember Splane. 

Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Anderson — Yes, Lemley — Yes, Galbraith — Yes, 
Colgan — Yes, Storrs — Yes, Splane — Yes, and Meamber — Yes. Motion carried. 

Elect Mayor Pro-Tern  

Mayor Dillon noted it was again time to elect a Mayor Pro Tern for the year 2005. 



Councilmember Meamber moved to appoint Tom Storrs as Mayor Pro Tern for the year 
2005. Seconded by Councilmember Colgan. Motion carried. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 

Mayor Dillon — thanked the Councilmembers for their participation in the Christmas 
Parade. 

Police Department Research 
Mayor Dillon reported on her research as requested by Council for the costs of 
contracting police services through Skagit County. She reviewed very rough estimates 
for the services which are estimated at $1,128,000.00. The cost would be for 12 officers, 
not including ancillary items such as office space, support officers, office personnel and 
accounting services. She requested the Council provide direction from this point. 

The general consensus of the Council was not to pursue the topic any further. 

Lin Tucker — 9774 Collins Road, added several other possible costs that would be 
included such as an additional judge and prosecutor. Tucker addressed the commitment 
of the police department to the City and requested Council commit to the department as 
well. 

Mayor Dillon restated her understanding of the Council consensus to discontinue any 
further research and maintain the current police department under the City. Applause 
from the audience was received. 

Chief Wood — thanked the Council for their support and noted their desire to live up to 
the support received from the Mayor, Council and community. 

Councilmember Meamber — congratulated everyone involved in the downtown 
decorations. He thanked Councilmember Splane for the use of his truck and lights for the 
parade as well as Councilmember Lemley for the use of the hay. 

Councilmember Storrs — noted the great time participating in the parade. 

Councilmember Galbraith — spoke of the pride and spirit in the community and is proud 
to be a part of it. 

Councilmember Lemley — extended everyone a happy and joyous holiday season. 

Councilmember Anderson — expressed interest in having a web-cam incorporated into 
Hammer Heritage Square. Anderson wished everyone a happy holiday season. 



EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The meeting adjourned to executive session at 8:34 P.M. for the purpose of personnel 
with no decision anticipated. 

The meeting reconvened at 9:00 P.M. 

Councilmember Lemley moved to adjourn. Seconded by Councilmember Storrs. Motion 
carried. 

The meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETT.NG 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COLIN 
NO. 

DATE: 	January 12, 2005 

TO: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Clerk-Treasurer 

SUBJECT: FINANCE - VOUCHERS 

Attached you will find the Claim Vouchers and Payroll Warrants 
proposed for payment for the period ending January 12, 2005. 

Motion to approve Claim Vouchers #53218  to #53430  in the amount of 
$632,294.91.  

Motion to approve Payroll Warrants #34729  to #34824  in the amount 
of $130,658.14  & #34825  to #34916  in the amount of $179,445.89.  

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please contact me 
for information during the working day at 855-1661. This will 
allow me to look up the invoices that are stored in our office. 



OF 8E220-WOOLLEY 
RECISER 

lE!fli0 

YENDLA-4 NHML. 	 DEsCt.p:lu 

PAF:E 	1 

nMUuNI 

531.-..:IJ _:..L. 	1.2,JUN: --( 	Ht.Jj.i.!U'r< MISU-1-ILING FEES/LIEN EXP OWE 283.00 
MISC-FILINS FEES/LIEN EXP SW1 ''Zff.013 

WARRANT TOTAL 5'.0',!.: 

5.:E: 1EDRO-WOOLLF2: POSTMASTER POSrAGE 1:WR 270.LL. 
PO9TflL:E SAN '4'270.t1 

WAkHONI 	Juikl... L34.— bi.:: 

Hf:UYE 	UWILH SYSIEM8 1-0 
WARRANT TOTAL 

53221 ADVANCED POWDER COATING REPAIR/MAIN-:-EQUIP & BLDG OEM A 

WARRANT TOTAL 315.15 

f:DVANCE TRAVEL IHEIVEL PI) c1;11.-41'e 
WHRHN. 	ILHAL ..11.41L1 

BUILDINGS t STRUCTURES SWR 311.85 
WARRANT To,  riL 311.05 

,J.c_c_4 ALLIANCE OFFICE PRODUCTS SUPPLIES JUD 204.95 
SUPPLIES JUD 131.49 
SUPPLIFS jUu 155.i720 
uPPLiE::.5 JUU ,..q.,, 

SUPPLIES fiN -Jb.14 
JUPPLik-2,1JUK;.3 PLN ,Y1:2.:-: 
suPPL-Es/DUUKS PLN 7.18- 
SUPPLIES ENG 2'33 
SUPPL-.:ES ENS 7.1:.i- 
OFF/OPE2 OUPPS & 12.00',L '!,..EP ,L.,-, 
OFF/DPER SUPPS & DOCKS I:•3P 7.18- 
OPEIMING SUPLIES ST 10.78 

WARRANT 	fOTHL bt,':.1.40b 

t.1, :LL 	HLPINE r i HE E. SAELiY 	OFFICE/OPERW1NU SUPPL1E'd 	PU 
bU•PLILb 	 PK 	102.13 

OPERATING SUPPLIES 	 93.55 
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 	 OEM 
REPAAINTENANCE BLDG. LA2, 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 	SWR 
PLWTABLE EQUIPMENT 	SWR 

WARRANT TOTAL 	 1,18L.71 

5..r.cfc2b 	HPLX 	 PROI'LSs.:.uNHL sLHYiLLS 	PU 
WHHKHNI 	 14t.67 

AS::.:iCIArION OF WP 	 RETIRED vEDIEnL 	 PD 
WARRANT TOTAL 	 352.00 

ASaJC PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 	AUTO FUEL 	 C2 	 G9.50 
RU:L: FUEL 	 L;S 	 - • , 

HUIU FUL.L 	 PU 	 ',._; 



CIIY 1:111•; bLDHU-WUULLLY 
UWIHHN WHhHHN 

W-NNT 

1;:%!131/04 	15:59 

VENDOR NAM: 	 DE=RIPTION 

ni-ro aYEL PD 

PAGE 

AMOUNT 

L21.30 
C,UTO :- UEL/DaSEL FD 17.5.98 
AUTO FUEL/UIEEL FD 2e,;. Le, 
HUio 	1-t_ILL/UiESEL PK 18'3. -3b 
HOW VUEL/JIESLL uEM e6./-.2 
AUJU H-ILL/DILLL Li.. ..+ -1 
nUTO FUEL/DIE:EL Of 77-0- 	-r 

 

AL M.) FUELZDIESEL ST ,..1L i ....) . 	1:-.. l- 

MAI NT OF GENERAL EQUIP '1,,JR e 	,. 	,..J,J 

AJT:J FUEL/DIE8CL !4,JR i105 
PUTO FUEL/DIE3EL SWR 150.85 
AUTJ FUEL/DIESEL '::AN 
HUIU 	1.-UEL/D117EL tr;HN 63.tii7: 

14.1hHN- 1 	lUIHL t , 1. !e... Gtr 

PL.ULLUM PI UL3ULIL VOIDED Wk HRANT .00 
WARRANT TOTAL .00 

530 AJUA--!ER 	BYETEMS 	INC PROFESSIONAL SLRVILLS PLN 2,700.00 
WAR ANT TOTAL 

n_'_;:f.,.-L2 A-: 	& 	r IELEPHUNE JUD ;.::. 84 
IELEHLJNE F- 1N c:b. b / 
IELEPHUNE LIR_ 45.43 
TELEPHONE PLN 12.30 
TELEPHONE ENG 6.63 
Fra_EPHONL INSP 1C,9 
:-ELEPHUNE SUR 36.iYit 

WARRANT TOTAL 132.36 

n.iLLq2 HI 	& 	'I 	1,41NELIS IELEPHUNE PD 1,0b16.6Li. 
ILLEPHUNE Pij tlY2.-VJ 
II LLPHUNL Pi) 535.1 
T:LEPHONE PD 870.!fi.=. 
WARRANT TOTAL 2,526.2S 

-4V1-",YA 	...2. FILLEPHONE TLE.  62-22 
TELEM-,CNE FIN 170.70 
IELEPHUNL PLN :1/4 
4ELEPHUNE ENE; ..,..;4.14 
ILLEPHONE IN,JP ,...4.1 11 

VIHRKHN = 	WHIL ,641.q14 

532;3,1 BPI''! r; 	OF AMERICA =EEG/SUBSCRIPTIONS' EN: ii.:2.014:: 
POSTAGE INE.; 7.25 
OPEATING SUPPLIES 	 1;! 	 !2.L . : ,.:1 
OPERATING SUPPLIEE 	 RED 	'_.;o.: 1[; 
MEH-IIHHYLL 	 SUR 	 2C-51 
MIt-A.:-luillUN/HE.LAIDI R MIUN 	6::11- 	 1,'_;16.'..J4 

WHRHHN 	IUIHL 	 ,',"J.lb 

1-_ir4LiT IMPLEMENT CD. INC 	SAFETY EDUIPMENT 	 CEM 	 12.20 



or SEDRO•W.JOLLEY 
BEirMN WARANT REW:STE 

12/21/04 	15:59 	 PAEL 	3 

t.)1\11.YJN NHML 	 OESLNipliuN 

HLPR1N/ MAIN C-EuU 1 P 	:',LULL utlrl 	„i 1 . 
HTE,--.n RI 	- LtAJaP a _LULL 	 L. 
REPAIRIMAINT-EQUIP 	'BLDG al- M 	3S1.30 
REPAIR/MAIN1-EQUIP & BLDG r:,E= 

WARRANT T:TAL 

53236 	D a D SHREDDING, LLG 	SUPPLIES 	 J'23 	 1!".-.ZL 
WARRRNT TOTAL 	 1tD.Ou 

17.1„7 2..-J: 	bf-IY UllY ,LjUPPLY 	 UFhILE/UPERRIINU ',7;UPPLIL 	i•1 1_; 	 101. a;:i 
UPLIIIINU L-1JPPLIL 	 Hp 	137.C4 
2PERATING SUPPLIZS 	 '.-< 	iGa.8t5 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 	E.WR 	31.L'2 

53238 	BEITLE, HAROLD 	 RETIRED MEDICAL 	 PD 	C7c:L4.60 
1U ■HL 	 tJ /%5. 

eEW,LJ vnu_r LAJMPANY 	 ULM 	3 7 	121  04:1 
WARRANT TOTAL 	 , 

5324C 	ELnRS' ONLINE SVC. INC. 	TELEPHONE 	 FD 
WARRANT TOTAL 

BL,f1IF:, RICHARD J. 	 THNVEL 	

▪  

!

▪  

DO 

. ,:i-i:2 	BLIJMENHHL LiNiF- UHM 6:: L: ...&P 	UNI;WWIS/PL:CLSORIES 	 PD 	74.S3 
LNIFORMS/nCCESSORIES 	PD 	GE. 3,1 
LHIFORMS/ACCESSORIES 	PD 	1E3.49- 

WARRANT _I AL 	 1L:2.34.3 

BOULDER PARK, INC 	 MAIN1 - SOLID:3 HANDLING 	bWH 	5,,:.i5b.b'li 
WHHHHNI ILHIAL 	 =,,:', 3.b'J 

eNhAFHIN6 f-FJPHHH:LIS 	 LY1HLL IS.: 	 l', M1NUK t_'r " 	VI) 	1,t-:;6.00 
REPAIR3/MAINT-EQUIP 	FD 	ES.L-DO 

WARRANT TOTAL 	 I,C,0',J.40 

2R2WN 	L;OLE STORES 	 REPAIC/MAINT-DORM 	 FP 	47.17 
WARRANT TOTAL 	 4 I . : ,` 

BkiM ,tMLIUN LUMPIANY iNL 	,J.-..!-4-1JH:_j/MHINILNAN:__11 	 P:.". 	 L8,  L,2 
WHI-d-MNI IUML 	 6t. L.; 

AS 	W1TURAL sP:J C0kP. 	PUBLa: WILITILL; 	 :._:::j 	,i-L..,t:.; 
PUBLIC UTILITIES 	 FE 	1,4110.58 
PUB....IC LITILIT:E:2 - EUNN C .■ 	PK 	 ,,...,— , 
PUBLIC UTILITIES-ER CTR 	PM 	W:.'.03 
PUELIG UTILIFIC_; .1:L!DD I:ANK PM 	&P.a5 
PUbLiC LIIILIIIL"th - NH:j 	PIK 	 i.":4.15 
PUI2,LIL ULLI_IilLz; 	 PK 	 ,-..;L:."0. t.T,L 



LilY 	bLil1-- -4UULLY 
a.):PHN 	 r:LLIL. 

1;2./G1io 	1E:59 
	

PAGE 	II 

ARRANC 	V:NDOR NAML 
	

DESCRIPTION 	 ANOUNr 

  

•UPLIC UTILITIES 
PNOLIC UTILIYIES 
PUBLIC UTILITIES 

WARHAN1 

LIB 

.64 	 r WLLDINU bUP-1LY SUPPLILb 
OPERATING SUPPLI:ES 

WARRANT TOTAL 

 

5an? 	CENYLJ 	 OFFICE/OPERA•INu GUPPLIES 	PD 
	

124..11,3 
WARRINT TOTAL 	 42; 

LHNH.LLL 1.-q,',JI. L5V -ENliiM7.LINU :.;WH 	(:),lbl.bb 
Pi-WF .'...-NS-LNU.LNEaNINU 	1.:; -? 	Fz,, -,.;.6 

WARRANT TOTAL 	 LI,LPiL,.L.vi 

CHEVRON u.s.r., INC. 	 AUTO L'UEL 	 PD 	 L.fia 
WARRA:.,N-  TOTAL 	 6.4L 

GHIGK:71DEE 	 5KHL:11 LUUNlY 

6UkLINI.D;UN 

1-<1-4 	I 	I 111 H 

	

LJUJ.MENI 	& VLH,LLES 
WARRANT TOTAL 

SWR 

016 

,E000.00 

53254 CINTAS CORPORA7ION 1,4L.0 UNIFORMS 
MIFOPW2 FD 40.3C 
UNIFORMS ED 

WAHHANI 	WHIL 

5Se ✓b L.1.: 	ILA:, INSURHNLE risGur'. INsL/4;HNUL 	z2.1...P.I.,i,:; ,JUL? b*-00 
INLIRANCE 	•& 	I/CND'-',  FIN 1,9W.00 
INSURANCE LGL E39.00 
INSURANCE FS 3,GE.00 
INSUF:ANCE PL• 1,3in.oe 
INSU),ANCE ECG 1,31EJ.00 
INSURANGL PD L.7/4,14i.00 
.a-C-.2UHNLtz, hi) 1,;:;,JJ6E,100 
Ii SL11-,!HNCEL iNsP 1,b4L4.00 
in.:Uki-r:'_1:. WK. ':.,/f2,J.00 
IN:-..:NLA.7. CEM L:,97rj.00 
INSURANCE Si IC,335.00 
MISC-JUDCMENT & DAMAGE3 ST 15.,21 
INGUIN:E LIB b,34E.00 
OPERATING SUPPLIES SWR 287.45 
iNNFANCE SWR 2,3,588.00 
INSURANCE „-IN U,161-00 
iNSUANCL ::,4-.4a 1,1..1016.00 
WAPKHN 	!OWL 11.1,z/z.,t.bb 

E32ffer. 
	

CLAUI)ES CLEAN (.2 

REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 	 1A2.03 



L.:11Y 0[' SEDU- WOOLLLV 
DGTRAN WARRNT RESISTER 

1::I/31/C4 	 PilUE 

HHHHN; VLNLL.:11! NHME 	 1JELH11-1 11UN 

Wi-11:161N1 WIRL 

',3L27iPL,:,INC 	SUPPLIES 	 LOS 	1717.11 
: 1. N 

SL:PPLIES 
OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES 	r1) 
A.FILL/UPLNWINLi bUPPLIL 	1,1) 	 14n.:31 

SUpPLLLS 	 ,.. 3( 
WHI*.(HNI 

COMPL-IE SUPPORT GROUP 	REPAIR/MAINT-COMPJTER 	LID 	275. 0 
WPRRANT ToTft.. 	 2'..!. 

2DUF. 1:.!NO (WA) 	 TELEPHONE 	 FD 	 C.19 
WHI-W0k: 11,11AL 	 („la 

LUUNINY5IDE ChEvRuLLI 	REPAiR • MAINIENANcE 	LI. 	 ,:.:]... 
AJ•--qA1R & Mii..,: - HUIU 	:-'I.) 	 LUJ.c.! 
REPAIR & MAINT - AUTU 	::,1) 	 54.3L 
REPAIR & MA...N1 - nuic 	P9  
WARRANT ToTnL 	 319. 36 

:RYSTAL SPRINGS 	 SUPPLIES 	 LG!3 	 t5.92 
SUPPLIES  
UPLI-V4IINLi bUPPLILS 	 Lb 	 1...L/tt 
uPEF(AIING SUP1,LIES 	 -4.) 	 `L..t:..Lit 
L.WLM:INLI !....J,V1..1: 	 L.:: 	 !:-J./%; 
u','ERATINS SUPHL,IES 	 SWR 	 17,5,0 
OPERATIN LuPPLILG 	 OM 	 I =1•. •,:i ::::; 
OPERATING SUPPLIES 	 SAN 	 1.q.30 

WMR;-)NT FI.:J4L 	 l'I-JT.-J'0 

0,:2,E.c.. 	DAVID EVANS e: RE:SOO IN: 	ENGINEERING-SKABiT LI UH I 	-lb I 	a!, OM., 53 
W1HHHNI 101c L 	 ;.,ud6.6,_-2; 

1.,._ - ..:.; 	I.;HY ;.41E.L.L'zib bYSIL.:1 	INL.!-(11.11--Ui‘,k1N.:_-.Ni--INU 	 . ,, 

	

1 , 	 e,O. 14 
WARRANT TO7CiL 	 4ZI4 

53L'...:,=4 	DESTINATION WIRELESS 	REPAIRS/MAINT-EUIP 	 i-L 	 LL,13 
REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 	 P;-" 	 .T'1 .:'1 
T:LEP:1ONE 	 -- 16.1/ 
ILEEpHONE 	 1 	 L7...!6.!-JE. 
UPENWINU SpPLiES 	 LL.JH 	 ;:.:11.4 

WHI4J-WNI 	;11:1-11_ 	 1 0 L-.: . ,_-..; 1 

DICIT_ SYSTEMS 	SOLUTNS 	PRCFESSIONAL SERVICES 	FIN 	192.0G 
PRCFESSIONAL SERVICES 	FIN 	 24r01 
PRI2FESsICNPI. SERVISEE 	FIN 	Li10.Ci 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 	FIN 	 e.f3.0:2 
OrrISE SLIP:L.1ES 	 La_  
U].... Fla: 1.;I_WPLILlb 	 LUL 	 ilL;.U'L 
W- 4`ILLL bUl-q....LI: 	 LUL 	 ;:.1.1.01. 



PD 
PU 
PO 
PU 
PU 

PD 

PD 
FD 
FD 
IU 
FD 
1712 
t- U 

1-1.) 

CIAR 

SAN 

. 160 

1:;3 i WARRANT y=7:R 

'.HENDO 

PROFESSI:.)NL EERVICLD 
PHULUNNI_ 

tjENYILL. 

1--:JJ!- EbtflUNIAL 
erE3SIONAL aTRY10EE 

P_2=SIONAL 3LnICES 
SERYI:ES 

W,-UN7L5SIONAL SE.:V:CES 
PrftMLOSIONAL SERVICED 
PROLESSIOAL SERVICEE 

sLRvIoLs 
t5ERviL:LJ 

sERVJ.OLs 
UNEMPLUYMN: 
H:PAIR'3/MAINT-EQUIP 
M:1='AI:'.1kIh] -EQUIP 
7: -EQUIP 

REPIL;./MAIrj-r-:ULIIP 
PLPA1R41rCINi-LUOIP 

NLPH1H:-3/MH.;.Nr-EIUUiP 

OFESS1UNAL CLRVICES 
PROFL2O1ONAL 
PROFESSIONL SEPVIDLS 

21f.,.]T;11,. 	 =3OLUTNS 	VOIDED WARIIWINI 

;;ULLJIML: 	VU,L;Eu ;.,HkNkNI 
W-1=1-. TOTAL 

DMCJA•S. SHELTUN, TFiLP2. 

VULIIILL HIE, LIU 

L 	LuMBEft 

-.uILION/RECICTRATION 
WAF;RANT TOTAL 

MRINI UF 
WAHkHNI 

REPAIR/MAINTENANCE 
MD— F'  

NEPAIR:MPIAENNCE 
REPAI 8, MAINTENANCE 
BUiLDINES 	STRUL:.T.JR:S 
HLPH:%:-.J/MHINIENPNLI.71 
KEPHiWc_./M1-11NTENNUL 

SUPPLIEL 

W"Ii= IMPROVLMENTD 
OTLLR IMPROVEMENTL, 

J'23 12t,00 
12.'5.00 



12/.:31:C4 	lt5; 

HHHPN1 	VLNE'L, NW1L UL=.7iLHI:2_,JN 	 HMULT.41 

UffTz.H 	.1.0.:-Y-__7-.1.:NI 	 .0.1'...;' 
s.JTHER :IT:rOYEINENTC 	 ;-:"/,  
OTHER IMV-RIMAEr-,ME 	 PK 	 J2..',,13 
uTHER IMPROVE1r;ENT 	 IDK 	 22.:q 
UTHLR IMPPOVENT23 	 .0.C.111 
UTHER IMPROVEMEN7S 	 PK 	 R.J. 11 
tI:'!- P.:'. IMPROV:MENFC 	 PK 	L .;./Z: 
U;HE;-; IMYNUVLMLNIL; 	 PF: 	 1 2.:„. tb 
HLPH,.R/MRINI - LUW.k.' e‘ .61-1)G 	ULM ::-.PSJ.4t.:„ 
UPL,%!.-; INd aiPPLIL;.... 	 ;:::1 	 .... 	' L 

S.-I O 	 1 	 .i. 

LJ-LKII-1;iNU UUPWLIE 	 :1-._;: 	 ,,k,12 
SMALL TOOLS/MINCH :;:L1P 	_. 	.313.'1_; 
3PERATINO SUPPLIES 	 ilT 	 t0.05 
u:,LKil,Nt..; LUPPL.P.:!_ 	 ..31 	 1:,0.7'D 
ur.'EF.k.ATIU FiLuDPLIL 	 ._1..JR 	 „::L.03 
CPLRAFN2 SLP:ILIES 	 R 	 66.08 
LIPEPATING SUPPLIEL 	 SWN 	 11.w;::: 
uLiwINLi ',:iLli--1.-LIL:::, 	 '.-_.:',WN 	 B. !::.•I 
UPLIVING ;:-.5UPPLihL; 	 L-;WH, 	 10. /L1- 
1:_:1_u.!.....LI.S ,:, ',_„AULUIT,:._ 
h;_, IIN!-..;:MHINI -euiLDiNo 	sc2.*:, 	 14.;::',7 
;',L;Fi:::._:Mk.,:I'J-IIILYILDIE 	:i:;N 

53271 a 	E LLNEER 

E 	,JM2Lk 

WARRANT TOTAL 

YODLL Wil=MT 
WANRkNI 	TL-tAL 

VUII3LIJ 

2,,3C'.7,.VJ 

.1,.fm 

.lem 

.49V 
IU;HL 

'.::3, EOS ITERNATIDNOL PLPri.:R/MT-L:.:mr:UIER LIV: 2,10',..:.01,  
WW:O.ZANT TOTAL 2,100.0C! 

ENTERPRISE CALEC, 	INC. CONTAINES :2nN -Lz.2:::!,..) 
WPHNAW 	ii.JIL. ;:;,,:1160.':) 

3,6,7272J EMEHuLNuY kEPUhliNU -W,U!. E.- .1AJNi-ziL 	!:.-;LI1\')1-...!; PD L1L,J..6J 
WE-1 t .1Nr 	[UlkL 210.2. 

.._,.::?L, ELTEK EYSTEMS P':i 1:!TriDLE 	ECU1PME\JT EWN 3S.'z, 

f:L:2,,/ ',12tiRREm 	..11n,_ Li.LTIND 	LUPPLI.:.:'_ FL: 3..'i •J. ue 
Li-LrP!iNt3 	;-.UPI-'LIL:_:: - 1.;` .:,.-J.t 

f,L.--0-;NI 	TO.,-L 1..1,, 

	

GE'ir!TIELO HErARING 	F-HLT=ICt.„:(7 , SEYICES 	P2 
PRDFL2IONni_ SERVIL= 

WflRRANF TLiAL
F 

 

HL:nTIN5' 	nIR COND 	MAINT 	EflENEL 
v4AHHAN: :urAL 



_1 	OF 
FLL-jiLN 

12/1/0,"- 

	

~N ;ELI 	 DECF:IPTION 	 AML:_ 

	

t.,33•2 	 L'.'.LEPP':.C1SEI: INC 	OTHER 1MPflOVEMLNIS 	 PR 

	

n,-,..;23a 	t.;.J;ILjU NE:WUftAINU 	 ILL'aPHONE 	 ImILN 	 t-J5,,VPZ 
kf--11-. 	:U:_-4;._ „,.., =.--. .. ,..T. t..  

	

5-;.2.:T. 	L3:21YLORD BRLE. 	 ZJPPLI..:2 	 LIE 	 d9..2.];....: 

..::!0.b2 

UUnNLTIHN 

. o o 

	

531.!34 	 JIi 	 TRAVEL 	 Z7.50 
L'f=1 1,.-.!PANT TOTAL  

	

j.3.i.:35 	HAD' COMPX1Y 	 Or.'ERATING SUPPLIEE 	 '.. -::k 	 1:Yf r32 
UPc_HRINU 'SJPPLILb 	 SWP 	"L.114:, 

WkRHHNI IULAL 	 L2.:.J.,2;13 

	

:2; 	 IUMLIN/NLUISNWIJN 	 •U 	 i.7:d0.0t; 
WARRANT TOTAL 

	

....),..,,, 	H. L. r'_:14-E1-: LOMPNY 	OPERArING SUPPL1L:::_; 
ARFWIN-  

	

t_p" -2,__I 	HL1.TUHN :LnUPLHIU• 	 LI:!LP!...; 	 '.;_lv. 	jOt.',.SL, 
wA1'x:RAN1 	:UAL 	 tOz...J.t.A.-, 

	

t-,2,'.:_;SI 	HULLAND HLHLIH t.iLNV. 	i*:_liLD fIL-1 1 1_:,_ 	 j U 	 BW.,_,!, 
WPRRPN 	TL -oiL 	 ;...,:J'!3 

	

'5,:::;0 	HULML.k.:, !'.E!7:10 	 REPAIR & MAINT - .ILli0 	PD 	 ,.t. ■2,.' 
WARRANT TOTAL 	 3. L3 

	

'L...1: -LV1 	HUM!:-AL zDt2...:„.1:_iY t) 	..:K1_311 	HUNHNL 6'OLILIY 	 PO 	 x;')fi. t:V,J 
HUMHNE. 

 
 SUL:IEIY 	 Pi) 	 ...,n.:...'1„,. 

WARRAT T0 2.1L 	 :tu..uu 

	

4LL9: 	:1,- 1,IN I."]::-.,ANCIAL Cc:F.:VIC:: 	REPPIRivIPINTENANCE-LiJUIF  

',532:3. 	INDUS T. :LECMIC CU MC 	1i::.1N; JE GENERAL EUU1J- 	 ',31AJH 	...;,..2;t716„1/ 

J.21;E:Jti- 	iNLDHN L.„1:2, N;,Thr `::;:7.Y1:_!.. 	LA.U.:: ;-_:;:-:HU..1 	LULN:Y 	 L...LD 	 1-13.15 
:. -_,..21 -.','.. SKACIT COIJNYY 	 .; , ;2:..:: ..• . z;..-,! 
12.C:f:YAS 51-,, •61T nOiNT%.) 	_10 	 yL  L. ,:::_., 

.2.UOL':_ '..:::KAUI -; .1.:LUNT',1 	1  12. 	 4r3.9S 
(2.2.LW,O S'A.7-1IT OUUN•H 	L )3 	 5. W 



t-ILD1qL-4LILILLY 

12/31/e! 	 PH151:_ 

VLNOL::; 

	

tlY(121: COUNTY 	Lib 	 39.7L 

	

'20..JNT( 	' 
	

10.11: 
I<ORS 	I L. 	CULY,ITY 
20jE: 	 LIB 
BOOKC SKAt,_;11 Ct,:UNTY 

1:J.':J;Ljt ■ 	 LIB 

	

LLLY'flY 	Li6 
cuL2v,.. 	 LIB 	 11.0 

	

LLUAIY 	LIB 	 YLtr.-; 

	

COUNTY 	L12 
WFWFMNT TL:TAL 

..u1DCD Ar-tlANF 
to:).:-!RAFTI 	ADr,..1L 	 .00 

_ 	c.:;:.;13 	_ 	1 	l.il I 	.L L._ 	I f.._! J. I I UP',1 	 LP-1 	 :3 e LC 
WI•2114,kf 	, 	I LI I 1-1L 

TELEPHONL 	 LIN 
ELEPHONL= 	 PLN 
IELEPHONL 	 CIL; 
TELEPHONE 	 '2,/4 
ILLL-JmuNE 	 LIU 

NkRffi-INI 	:1.11HL 

E ■INEu MEDILk_ 
W1RRANI TOTAL 	 182.Z0 

 .UL. 

	

MAINIENflNCE 	-c 21.57 
P.EPA! 58.:2c 
BUILDINBS 	 [Ai 
BUILLIM3 	 FO 
BUILDING'6 	L-JIHOL.;UWas 	1--13 

REPAIF2/M1iI:'ITENNCE 	 RV 	 31.81 
E_PU/MI-IINTENPNCE 
MIPAIR/MAINT CO'IM 	 58.L1 

LUNK C:1-; 

	

: 	 6ITIJAIR/MAINT-SENID 1:TR 	PR 	 ,4L 
HEPHIRIMAIN1 -SLIT 

bLVWLIiL 	 1t.0e 
JPLV;HrINL 
HL-q11;-;SIMA...NIENHNLE 

	

LUjiP 	LLM 
REPA1R/MAINT-EQUIP 	BLDO CEM 	 14.(3z 

2LEt; LL• 
( UPPLIEC 	 ST 

fUOLti../Y,!,N; 
t.;MALL TOOLS/MINOR EQUIP 
MHIN,L14iLL 	 C.WP 	 _ 
MH.I.LNHNUL Liv LiNE 

kkr),Lm;E 



„J-1111\-1: 

1615r9 
-L 

)LNLiR ,1W1E 

MA1N1ENCE 'OF LINLC 	SW,',' 	 7.0o 
M:-LN, UV- !_71 1LNLR:-IL LOU;..' 	:-J: 	 2C':2 
UPEHH1INU ::121-1 1-1-1.L 	 bilK 	 r 'I. . .'_I. 
ajtA,;HIINU !..- X•9--)Lit_U 	 LMH 
UPLHHI1NU :7.5CP!-"-IL: 	 :..iV1' 	 L.;. 1J. 

OPLWITIN3 SUPPL1L2:. 	 2i,-!P 

OPERATINS SUPLIES 	 Ol.,. 	 ,n. ,.J.4 
r„S-:LW-Ir..NG SUPLIE: 	 2',,J 	 ..,..LL., 
DPLRATINO SUPPLIES 	 !...-,: 	 2.1.VJE- 
UPLHNIINU bLi:J.-"-11..7..L; 	 L.:1 	 '4F..2.,'.! 
UPLHHI1NU 2UPLihb 	 1.5Wi.• 	 i14. :L 
JPLX,-111.:4Li 1:-..L2PLiE;::; 	 -....U1-( 	 ::.!1.P.SLA 
UPI:NI-I:F.1j ,L2,UPPLIL-c.:. 	 '..:.-;W:” 	 15.V.Is 
PERAFINE 'JU.,-:-:LIE,,3 	 SW 	 7,0.1. 

OPERnT:NO 9UP1::sL11- 	 CWE 	 !.,•;'''': 

,'PL!'-',INL 2JPPLIE 	 '.;  
....;mmLL 1.30LC & r[NDP EGUIfl 	.1;' 	 ,_;1..LL 
PC)RIAPLE :UUIP'1:,:N-! 	 %-_:.WR 	4.'!i../;-D 
RLiJklim.LNI-,Ez.u...LL,N 	;:.1J;-4 	 ...:1.,:i.  
UPERAIINI:i L.A_A-JP,.. 	 SAN 	 nc..,..o.J 
UPLHH.ir.: 	:Aii''-'Lli:-....) 	 ;I:ir..1  
UPLM:H.!.N!-D a.IPLIL--- 	 :FIN 	 ;:!,.tic7j 

	

10 	 H::)PWARL 

111 11.;,21N't NUL AHRIAL 

	

D,2,ZOL-] 	KAP-EIN's (CE PARDWARE 

`',ArY 1::;KFL:EN  

VC_J1E) 
WAR7PN1 TOTAL 

✓ULL;i:-.1) 
IUIRL 

VOID•E WARRANT 
t_44,;qnNT T,-rnr_ 	 .00 

PROFESSIOML 	 2, 7;22. ,3!-.3 
Wil;-;HHNI 

AMMUNITION 	 PL) 

WARRANI TOTAL 

smnLL TOLL'.2 1, MINLL 
xclpnN TD:nL 

PNUI- LE!--1,IJ:\HL 

LkE,, UHP 

LAE3IDL INDUST_EF.:; 	 OTHER 1r1PR1-IVE 



L3EDRO. 

11 

HNLUN: 

WW-01:f:,N1 

PRUE--  L.:3'S '1 	 IL; :73 	Llj 

/ 

tf30k-.J 	1_:.71fT_L 	HCAL-HCA:tE 
WCIRRAN1 

ns2;,11;1c 	i_AzL JUHN-z3LLN 	tjUN'.3 

wa) CONTRP:I:Pf'; 	 ;'CLIL3/K.:N:R 	 LLM 
J.41::.7z/MAINT-LOU..2 a 1.:,L_L; 	J.LM 
P:RMiNG 

bE•LINHL 	 a4h: 
UPLRHIINL:i 

101THL 

1.:W° 
.2AL 

PUBLISHINS 	ADVERTISINB 	 LK 
W1Ia-nNi 

1 r` 

II 

LLXISNLXiS 	 ILIIIILIN/HtIbPd • ROTIUN 	ILJ  
WARRAN! AJIAL. 

t,71.__CJUSHLIN 	LArDLEY LUk:. 	SrIALL MOL3 a  Y:1 0l EULI:-' 	v1.) 
IL27(-4- 

OPERATING SUPPLILS 
Of.;1,11 

MLLILJN, NL1WL-.L_ I 	 JPEHH!.»Ni.-. t;LPLI.c.!-_:.   
1:!:TYLL 	 -4213%.: 
WARRANT TL,-':I_ 	 431_,.; 

NIL,  1-JTJ':::_:N 	 P11.11TENLINCE Or '_... 	 S'JR 	1f.:„..Y1 
IJPI7LATINI_:: 212PPLIL- 	 BM 	.::- 12. - -__:4 

MN1  

MINUIEMPN 	 ..J;.:LV;L_IJUL 

TIURTLNEON 
4,a4r,MANT rtImL 

'NUCS, 
1. ; rJ 

'L 	 1:2,UUKS :_-L;K;ILIF COUNTY 



L 	. 	. 
-CLES:E 

r! 	-1 	21'..-1 

WHNRW.. i t U 

L 1_ 

• ./ 

WA RPA 	C :AL 

LL LUMMUN I LA 1 ILJ1,73 1 1...L1..:1-1 -!;_i,11.. 	 I. _1`„ 	 a' L... ..2.... 

	

::...L_LI-1-11._IN'..:. 	 L...,..',L.. 	 :_:-:..,' . c..11.: 
:I:  

NEXTEL :ELL_ PHONL3 	 t_(:,::.: 
E.1,......:-'14'1:._ 	 PC 	fl.0.̀ _,„ 

'-;:.:;....1D7'■-•r_r.4..._ 	 1-  :.",, 	 1 -f7 	-1,fr k : 	1 	, 	- J • 

I LLE:PHON: 	 : .:,..)."-' 
CLE:LL PI- ONEE 	 ;:'-'! 	 ie,,,,, 	, 

A I.: .1. is 	 —...... 

c.-__E....PHUI\IF.,-,_ 	 I:, t--- 01 	 lt .,.. n j.3 .:: 
; '4.1— Ii.L P HUI \IL 	 Z.; I 	 1 ..' / n ,!....1,!,./.1 
N/.....%,ILL 	LELL 	-..1-i•LiN,L._:::. 	 I :-... -•;.E., ,i ',:, 

4:_.,7',. 1 	...1_ 	1...1......_....., 	:-1-FX,;',:,!:,1 	 ...1-  ..[., 	 1 7.;.:_!., ': G 

	

WA ',.R R -..-:•1;IT 	1, L',-:?ir..._ 	 :,. , 

NL RTHWEL r L.:1W1INL EUPPLIL___ 
LUPPL1E0 

WARRANT TDIAL 
1 

r-7LjNI 

WAHFOIN, 

T HL; 	NG 	 NG SUI-WL 	 • 
W AR 	I TOTAL. 

	

,., ,..., L., ...._ .. 	P ; W ,..; 	. ...0;.:1 	,7  J. ,.:-.: 	Li1/4-V,:: I r't::::11` .1. .]!— 	. - RLI 1 . _.[.)1__... 	L I i,: IT 	 ,-,..—, 

	

i ..., 1 	•,_ , 210-1f: . 	.' .' 
... 1,=.', T,': RAN r 	- r u rAk... 	 i..., -....,!., 	1 

	

;__;.,2...,..;,:x 	ui.-1.- 1 L:t... 	.01.:1-1U I 	 5..-::,_: ;-'P I.. . ::,..!.7.; 	 :- .: I. 	 1 • :- .., . ":1::-.; 
',._::',...1%-'. 1_ I  
OF 1.7  .L ;.2 E., / 0 PEil frl I I N :; 	..:,'.,.'; ':- r,L._ , F__:_. 	la 1..; 	..,f).,1. 13.' 

	

wAF-mr--2-.Nr -F3 1PIL 	 :: 1 .7  ,. [;,'.: L. 

	

1 	, 	 I 	 ..611 
I 	 J.1.1 	

.. 	 1 .  

	

...-Jiqr-ri,r1r1T-  'FL .1 nL 	 '11 

N1NUHi,Y 	 IN 	 !•::0 
WWC--i!kNi ILUHL 

	

, ,,,,, „_ ._, ._, 	OL i 1..Zi. 	; ,;.:1:"1:: ', 	LL_ I a :I.:-..":3 	 l_,(-: 1::_ i-  -,./ 	,.L.-:,.1.: ;III:: HI 	 1..;L:".• 	 ....,L., • I.•' 
L:`T [-; 2. 'N',  _., 	 '6:1, 2: 

	

I : i ," I .3 	 '..3'.,;1 1: 	 '.. a' . 1,il_.. 
f2 

 

	

L. 'J T I.. ; i. r',g3 	 S 1....,i F.' 	 S"-:..,  . L', t., 
l_ii-.'Lli-;F, ', ,',. l'-:::_i 	'...-_•;-". 'L_ :. L_ - 	 3`,,J -. 	',_-.' ..' 1  

L.I.: : ; li. '.",#'._- 	 ',..i;lisS 	 1'11 . l'..:; 



; 

Luz;: 	114 

1 I 	 PACE: 

....1-11,..1N1)1-;‘!. L...,. l.; i%,  
L_.--11.11\11 	)1-0,1 	 Ub 	 ;z:,f.„ '[',.". 
;•1.1 	:1',..: -• L._, .:1..21 	.;__': !",- 	 i- :'-.. 	 ,2,",.:?. ;:: .' 
VI J. -.,1_; .--L...,-11_,-NIJF.CY 	 PK 	 L'L.::. '..:,' 
M I ;.3u - Li'-'3J.Jr.1D11'( 	 PI,; 	 1...',„ 27 
M =1. S.; C: •-- L_:11'_';',11:;. 1.7; Y' 	 PK 	 '._!'.'.. _I.. 
i 	..: ,.1;C:, I '1.ibIL:TI 	 r r w7,... , 	 I 	. ::. i_ 
'1 I '-:,.;1::: 	 1_111.,1 N L. 	 cr,:.-.1Y1  

.e i .,,..ii : - L.,;_i_..ir-.11.,, ..Y 	 51 	 1 ,f:. 
M.Lbl-; -.1...17.41.1;‘- 1)i-( l• 	 ;.:;; ; 	 1 'i . 	 . 
111.;31.; ---LHUNIJK1r 	 .-. : 	 1 ,'". 	..11, 
MI :_:1t2 - L..(:.!:.„R:1:.J11, 	 .. ;   
il I ,:1C -. L.PLIN11):7-; I 	 31.  
L F l'..1;'.10'....1 	 OL.,!1-'. 	 la. ,;- 
....'';',..INDRY 	 _.;t-JR 
1._PAJN;21C.' 	 ...1-1 : 
L_I-ILJND R Y 	 ':+4--r} 	 i1. :1-1  

44f-11 1 .!)-li'l 1 	I L,1 ; :-..:L 	 . 	iLf 	IL', 

VUIDEL: WHk -MNL 
WA111--.H 

RUPP I r;,-- 	NI - EOU] 	2LDL. 	CLM 	 ,!1 
Lr1--?.1.1H 1.

TO :AL 	 I 0. yl 

Jfl- 	CE 	F,'cl 	̀-! 	 ; '1) 
1Y1F-11 	 1 1) 

ra:-..Pr.1 J. R 	N 	 ' 	13LLIU 	1 	 o. 
• 

UVLNHLL LkUNDRY 	 INU 

C ,_:TWE_T UNLIMITED 

:-TOL :1- iCCtLJEF; 	BA7 E IL.  E S 

2n I PIMME'd, TIRE cm .z, 1NL 	 i-UTO 

FLHAIR/MAIN'T 	 .1:2-LDO 

	

iLf-IT I tff2i 	LE 
UPLPR I 1 NE C,LPHLIL 

; 1 :',16 

	

! NU 	'1.. I 

1.!K- 1.-1 1.1 	 N; • LiJ T' 

53339 	 'LE ' 1_;_H,‘4-17 	 YO 
r 'L  

F.;:":1\.:1.  

' 	 DE_ 12. I-11.1 ;-'1„7. 	 - 	E 
',-.111;:.1-U IN I 	; 

' 1.1 	 PET FED 	I 	 1-•'D 



• ;:i.! 
15;;E/D 

LI 

MLUILL 

MISC—DUES/1-.:UR,312R1PHIP PL-.) 
LTiiL 	 UO 

I 

;__,',2,...:.;,:i. t; ir `U.L3L 14: U 1 ILI I Y 2 ,..::; —U. I I 	IIJ 	I 	1 L IL:  2,:e.,.11, 
1L:2,L.IG 	U1ILITIL3 —  ,—,, 2::.).L.  

PUDL1L 	1_:',ILI:"ILI, I .  ,.C..; 
21.1LIC 	U13L1:1,::::: HL...., ..11;-; 

.. 1_.:LI,L," 	UTILIL(-3 ...jaM ,;J:./1 
PUZL...it., 	U11...IIIE J -..,1 ..-JC.L..: 
PUBL1L 	uliL1H.E.,,,-; Lib 1.01 
UJL..,4.. 	L.,LA.)... !,.A:41';: 11V., 	:f....: 

AJEL.11., 	L,ILI:IL5 ,(31%.,N 27.Z6 

I,....-i.:3.(..1 
I--'U2 	UrIL171....„12 	mnLL .:::::. 12,.tif 
:- ..21z 	ul1.LIn.2::-mnLL i.....:-_,, ;:--:. 	q t3 
I-1 	 J1''1._ .! L 	LI 	I 	I L I 	, 	1.-. I :', 

1 'Li 1-24... .1,. L.: 	LI I 	_ILI 	I 	IL:75 

:-)1.2.2.1..., 	4, 	•„_, 	I 	IL .1 	, 	.: 	I. 	!,-, 	-L.uslif, 	L 

I 'JUL I L.; 	..,..4 	I 	.., L., J. 	I 	- ,......S • 	L.; r-: 	CT F: 

L, 

IA' Y 
I. 	. 	1:.. 

yr y., 

1. , 	.,.I LI .' - 	J.:, 

!_:., L .. 	/ . 	E,c,'. 

I 	I:: f. „ 	1.:,':: 

, 	"Z. a . 	.- .: 

PU12.L:::C 	UTILI'lLE: ! -', !,._::.;.!..._: 
:' 	'.J. 	:I_ 	; 	I- 	:_!..:.; I..111 

PUN__:.° UTILiTILL 8 : 3 L: . 	:, L3 
P 'JD L. .1 	L 	42 	' 	._. I 	I 	. ! ... '.,j 	I .... t-'7'...' . 	1 	V: 

PUBLJU 	UJILI:I.:„ 'I 	1 ■: 9 	1-,13:j. 	11 
1-'4_1;,!.-1-..; 	LtI 	IL.t. 	I 	ILL i ,,f.'. 	f...7, 	I 
PUBL1U 	U I ILI I .11....; L 	I..1'. 1 'r..']ft . 	,_,...; 

PUBLI:",-.; 	UTILITILS :::.:F 11(2. -11 
1.:',32,1,.1C 	Ur1LI:IL:::: 
AJBL:A: 	L111L,TIL;2. ',:.J.''.N ,..2,..:`1.. 	,;.: 
WAUMNT 	.. -:.. — .%):._ .1...1. ., 	.) 	- 	2:. 	4,a2 

'1 Li 	; 1'L...Tsl-2' 	 Lt•1-. 	14...:L. 	;: 12:-'-'f__1,..:.::-... 

1-1"...Y.'j 	I 	I ;UL-_. 
lli.',' 

I 	'1. 
1 	il „ 	.:L',...,' 

._0,! '.4. 	2.: -.1.(:, 
1.`LY.-...; 	I 	--1L- E.._ I. 	I.;  

!.:1 	I 	..,.;-.■'•i 	I I t.; 	•AL.. 

:;. 

'I 353. IS 



j;_) 	 It0„00 
WARRANT TO -; F L Ov, 

• .:.:Lil'jPERAT I L,  
WAPPANT TOTAL 

LIP; LIH I 

• I INL7: 

far.ct 

r 

Y 

M-111.1N1 

'„YLN!.;:iR 

E 	fl: 	DTC-_;Y::T 	 FCCI-:"E 	LL,  f.JN 

RE..1,CHr,RLT a LEH ENU 	NO 
[PO 

y 	ti 1 . 

	

. 	1ZI 

5.211:J0 	NEL.1[1112.LL ',OFFICE E.,,,,JPPLY) 	 F I) 

1_1 : "LR 	.1.ril!:-,:::::.:'„' -._rl:Ji.,: !.:.; 	 ',_11; ■ 	t...; y  .̀.! L..- f.i . 32" 
I.,i ; Ht_ h: 	- f"I.-. :-.LI ';.' .:_fYtIL.I'.1 '. !:.; 	 E'WH 	 .1:,,, ;::: .L.:!1+ . ...4.:: 
.._! I HE F-{ 	,I. HI •' I ;!LJ V L. MI: `.; I b 	 b N lq 	 T. y i : 8 . i.::Li 
LI 	HI:- ;-... 	1 I 'd ' • ;!.. ',' L-.. Fill-.:. 11 I . Li 	 bWK 	 ..: 1 ,_fi Li'L'-,.". t:_ -: HER:.,..rirr.:::2_triu.:-..: -rs 	SWF; 	.:. , 17,..• 1". 65 
1...cr HE Fi: 	I Y1,1-7.  RI.:; ,:::.r.,!:.: 1 \I 	',:__::: 	 SVP 	‘,.., I. '..'.. -,.. L.:;-:, 

R I Till 2U REPA I N. 	Mk .1 N rc Nnrlc:L 	ENG 	 !I '..„ ,.._. 

	

1-...:JH i lc.-",  mr IA i -Euu 1 P 	 :. ,;: 	 L b%:. 0.L. 
WHNNFIN I 	Ill I Hi_ 	 i.-.:! 1 L . 0 ':) 

11`.: 
R FY-1N T 	0"-  L 

OPLRMINL 
WARRANT TOTAL 

fibbUCL H I P 
	

• 	

ik 1 ION.3 

	

R F-1 N I 	HI_ 	 016 

R 	12. F7,1 	 I .II:.-..1-`1.:.1 'k.- ',-_.:., 	L. 	04.-1 i r4 	..:...I' 	I.L. 	 'L. 	 1..:':J. 	•i::', 

•ilf;kr,..,-..: . 	1 '::!1 f.., _._ 	 ii:::-7  3 „ 'Ll ..:, 

I= 7...; 	 SP LS 	I NDU'.".,' TRI ES 	 DS' r: 	 1.32. IZHZ; 

I-  I) 

	

= 	I U I 	 -Lb 	4!! 



f 	',.;:]C.H,f ,:[, 	G 	...;'-ER 

'1. -11L  

; 	 U;- .71.-,_ 	 .11.5a. I 	 'Y 
vjf 	HI-4:'1 	; 	L 

SERT-fl_ 	 DOC:r,;-...; SKr-1E1F: 
: 	 . 

L..: 	 /L. 
if% 	I 

1-1r4L) 	 1j•; I 	LP: 	L.-.I...1\tc.;!.: 	 ;.L.' 

r 	L. I ,
.1."J,1„ 

P•lli :13 

UPE:RAT 	 E2(;-, 
F I 	"Li 1 ,  

.L 11 I • Ll■- i "La: 
f 	rr.I.1 N I -- 	It) is 1.-2,LJLi 	m 	 E (1. 

J. 	 1 

	

; r.-?„1:1P; 	 P 	r,-I- 

rici 	 EI 11 CL. D3 	 1:c. J. 
• 

S. 	 97 

1. 

L“Li 
• '7) / 

i;'4 	 I 
Mf-1 N 1—L1,AL:1k! 

	

, 	i Li 	-.I_ 	 .`14. t, 

5231S6 	LED RC • W,rJ DULL Y Ci.::U-11A__.! : ;Jr- 	F.) D v E R - 1 :; : i.  4 2 --_-_::—.... ER/caYIEJTC HO I 	L,, ...:2! r  :.' . 1-  7 LI' 
.')1, ;: :! ' 	m : 	!.,..; . im 

SE.DRO- 9;...!ECL,-:./ !7- rMtvr:--::7,F2 1!1., r 	r- r'1,731Elv: :'.7!-. :!- '.L.  ; 	 !. !r_i.  
,,,ifl;i:fir.4: 	; Li : ;.41.... 	 1 , 	:1111::: . 	-!i 

L...f.;.,::.L-,:,L, 	SL,„:hL — ',..,;LILLL_LY 	.......JUL.;!::.HUELLI 	(-1.GVLI, 6.;.NU— L_UU:.-:(L --"Liiila',..: 	....Li; 	 :... 	..: Iii z „ .,_.i 
L..11.11.-RRAN1 	TLY:- i::::._ 	 f..„,:.-..L.;-,:.1.!„),,,J 

=,..-- -,:.:, 	EJLTD!;:C.. -WOOLLLy r"!_75r:um 	 s t-.! !•fiLr.:.4, UM 	 . 
■ • r . 

..  

1 4RE-MNT T 01-a_ 

1 - L;r2 

)1_11. 	 '210. 1ZiO 

5(.11:,_!; ,......1 	 ;.__ ' . 	.J 	L: ,'L.:--,!!......; 	r+10!". 	IY_Ii 	0 	.:-t1 L H.;1.3 	:If-fr',11-1C,EN1EN' 	EITit.3 	; 	::':-.:1,, ..:. fi 
:-.!( ',.',:' 	.•.'.. ' 	! 	__ 	 -. , 1::` ..:: t 	'21: 

J2.,.3..'....'. 	IX.. 	L.t.. 	:.'_....!.._ 1 ',_, 	14•..21-e,-,;:-.i 	DEP I 	"1..L.:LL-Lf.1:‘4 , ..:_!Lr__ 	 ',7, - L, 	L.L',.-.:. , ::' 'z:z.i . 0 i/3 
i-h•.::. 7.1'f-3.r.; 	 .:::-_,  



.1 	 COMM CiC ION PL_"` 

; 	 I 	',-I 	UL.1.--; 	I 	 IL:E—ME..1_/.1.t..;1•1!.. 	L. 	Y.. (.11'.1t..., 	I 	!) 
; 	; 

L..,..-,;,1.._:.. 	,- 	..:,_... 	'Ll'..-,;_ ,:l-_.; 	,;.._;!-',E3 	'1. 'L1_1 ,2 	Hf;-152-1. a 	D 1 E;;:'-_)`-_-.=.. ;__ 	L;;L:IN 	...:.:.:, 	I. 	.. 	_:. 	?'..' 
...)12.;!.;.:;•-•;:•••■ 	! 	l'_.; 	f 	;.. 	 .....,. 	: 	t,-_',.. 	' 

.;!•,:2;Lii 	I 	LL',:....'. 	'L,:: r‘ 	1 ..i;-. 	'.j.... 	;Y.', .. 	!__;: 	.',.-■̀._; 	'. 	L:;:".-•-; I (DP 	'-_-_-,E.1';',' 	I 	L.,:1:7:,:-; 	t:',.̀.-.....r,-; 	IL; 	:' 	' 	J. „ 	c_:::-..., 
4Ir:',10∎1-41‘-.1 	t 	I 	L 	H';... 	 % 	1 	;1'1.. 	;_ 	:.. 

b._ J. 1. 	.a. 	r 1; 	 ; 	 1. 	L'_.; 

; 	CUL.r.C1 	 1 L. 

I 	1 	I 	*1 	I 
, J. n ,25 • 

21. Lf:1,-.1.1 

L.)! 'Li ;;',-1 I 	 '1-11..  

U!'- 	I J. 

I 	.I. 	 ; 

r.:'E.RA 	11,4ti: 	 L.:L..; 	 —; 	 1 
! 	 -P; 	 , 	 7. 

L.L.:LJ1F) 	1 

TUT 

!_A-,c):L: 	i 	I 	 •;.(.1-'1 	I 	- 	;-' 

LAT,' 1 	..1I -;UP4 	 L1V-i 	; 	 tly, 

tr...11-11--Jej-li',4 	I 	U 	; 	t-1L. 

t.,.:,:,1., t; 	',_4J."4.,11 	LU;lErN 	.?, 	r(-11!'_'., 	.....,i 	. 	Cl 	;.... 	:-'.;. 	I i'.:':' 	L_';..F1.._:;.L...i.; 	 I..........,, 	f  
! -VI 	NC:: 	!..:;1..1::' -' ...;. L. 	,-.....: 	 :1.1", 	 . 	. 	., 	1 

_;, ;_-_11-: 	.:1-4L., 	'c.IL;--1, -"L_.!.1:::::..; 

1-q...;;,'.1 	; 	1 r4,3 	'6U1-11-'1._1,..-.._ 	 t--'K 	 J. ,..',..-::, . 	ic.,,, d,  
I.-';. 	..' 	: 	. 	.1',1- 	;...__;-",-1 	ILL 	 ', 'I-", 	 1L.1 . 	L',:::_,' 
C. 	i ._ ki-1 	J.;- .1 ,_:: 	-1-_,LI:,- , 'L ILI:: 	 1---1-: 	 1-S. 	L 
.F 	1:-.. 	 ,:. 	:.I: i'..P.-.. 	,.':.;'..2 ---“7 I._ .. 'EE3 	 ,=1;1'-.;;`1 	 ... 	.I. L-F • 	I-- 

1,'. "-'41--: '- ' ' f.‘ ..' , ■- 	: [3 FA._ 



!JjIJ:NN 

PHU:L.  

L.: 	. 	•Jr.; 	 ; 

; 

WARRANT TOTAL 

f;61; 

NkHHHNI WIAL 

L. '4-  
WARRAN! 

.;1%flL12.1 	J!:YLr: 	_L 
1,W2HnNr 

YHLLL.'i 
	

DLIEbS'ea2/4::;,-LIPI.L..., 	 IT 	 1,.:14;,.1:iL 
12, UURL5 	t.j1.1,;,.1.A1 	L',..,U*--„: -.( 	 _...1.;.• 	 L',:..:!" .1.: 

 

LECr-:L_ ;A_JBL:.'zr:JONC 
LECi•L PUBL1LAIIONS 
LLU:HL PUBLIL4%!:.; 
LLEkL 
LEW-IL 1--'LIBLit_j-11,Uri 

LL:AL 
LLCAL PUBLICATIONE3 

r 	; 

ADVER-1131AU/LLUNL 
2UDLLL: 

14W-.1-  -1N1 	IU,RL 

WkRRI!,1",,r Toy r'- 

/': 	• 

La3 

PLN 

,_; 

WflnANT 10ML • r  
J. 1 I-1 	 a 

). 	: 	._; 111: 	L.. 	 r ,L 
fl 	f 	NI 1-01' 
	

U 

WARRqNT !'L; At.. 

H 
	

• 	

0, 

WARANT 7UM__ 

- 	 , 11) 	 1-2,L 



- 1.  

• ..;-; 
, 	 1 	5'2 	 • 

 

 

 

L. L .3 	; 	(-1 I 	 1 • .;. 
WAR 1:-. ;1',".41.  

• •,r 	• 	• 2' 

vs r_ 

 

I 	:7 	 ! 

• I' 

: 

1--:,̀'-; 	T 	,..; 	1 	'__!_ 	....'.: 

	

- 

L .  

■—■ 

. 	1 	l'_H-1DI...,...... i , L_1 	:__ .__;.;_k;•; .1_ 	L.. f.-'; .".i;- ._ . 	,  
r7,LIP._.`,1 	1,:-- LJEL / .1) 3: :::,:.r L !__ 	1 • ,1• 1 	 , 

;,4)11;•.; I 	',-P..; 	; 	1 	1...J 	,_ 

I 	 1..;US 1 UM , ''LIB F. 	1 	1Y10.1.1\4 I 	— 	f-11„; I 

; 	 .•&  

1" 	1 0-1-AL 

& 	14 	; 	r. 	I 1-'1) ;2: 	. 
I P. /1‘,11-' 	;',4 	E.:-.GIL;11:' 2;1'. 1 

1; n 
:, --ELT.L.: `?"1-1 1.N 	i 	1:..N; 111;._:.. -' 

1'4 I L.P.11-1NLAL — L.J...1,...1. 

I 

:1:_11T: 	F:.? 	__; ‘.3 

_140e_, I i t-J 
1 	• L . 

I 	; I 	!./ 171 	f1 	I 	.11' 

U : 	-IL,. 1 L.. 

- 	 1__L. r1]-1 	 'Ft 	: 
‘",•--11\"1 	I 

_1 4.; 	 ;_"; 	 . 	& 	11.;L',.:., T12reE:.',2 
Li• 

7.; ..1f; I. L. 	sr. 	.; 	1- 	
1 	I 

L. , 12 	 .) 

_ 	 ; 02, 



'1 

I 
1 Z. 	

I 
	

I 1. 

	

PrIL 

:C3: „YILJ% 

AnFWPiNT 

I •.1 f.-0..i2! I 	 2u, 
kV 

JPL I NU 
rif 	; 	 . J. 
alnLL ; :JCL L a NiNLJ 
L!!:ERgTJNO :::CPPLIES 	 Er.IN 	 J. 

! 	I 

CELL P1-111q.!L 
WHM-JINI 

1 	 LUN NUNIHIAL ILLI:J . 1. 1UNL 

	

L:LLPHUHL 	 JUL,  

	

LILT'. • :11r-1E 	 t...! 

r4 
FLLEPHONL 

	

*!LLLPH7.-ps!L 	 !DLN 

	

;LL_LVHUNI:-. 	 LNU 
ILLLPHUNE 

II 

	

TELEd!.;J:'IL 	 IN:JP 

	

'::LEPHL:NE 	 N ;7' 

L: 	1.1.f 	T 	.:; C.; 	P 

T:LEPHONL 

	

:c_LLPHUNL 	 ; 
ILLLPHUNL 	 I 

012;RkNr 

	

-*;EIL-.:1:; ILfIA1_ 	 dD 	 1 0'..J. ..1 1,Z 

	

;L1.:71:L.,  !—;,:.DID-IL 	 '-;) 	 1 -. sf. . 4...7  e 

	

W n n 1,76 SCI : Tu "(•.,I... 	 2iLL. 00 

WH --:.MN, 	I- 

SHE:J:17: 	 PLE:W/LLui:;:- Nkriu 

fl—  OF 	-- POR 	ULAP2S 	r 	. 1LL 	Troi, 	T 	DCMIPiLI: 
WHI-C.4-1N I 

, 



u 
I.. 	f-X •SANI TO I 

kiLL:YLL.INE 

fIL 

pn3E. 

- ff 	 , 	' 

1.  It 

4,1 	Or::  OF S PT: FE.ITTfl;k1;EG - COUR-:-  
I:: airt: T 

TOIPL 

L_ 	 L 	 , .1:VJ 4 

! --!!...V.;I 	; 	U I i 1. L.11%, 	L, 	! 
r1  ,•,••,I  

 

, 

,NL _. LL 
WHKMIN : 1U I HL 

 

tts.:, -,•21. 	•,,,...,111.)' a.+ 	l.._  LECi..i.E:•!!...i 	LA....11 I.1. ‘` 	I r .,••• 	; L;..5 I ;--1.., ... 	 ,...'..L.to: 

.. 	,',...,.... 	 ;  .• 	.,.. 	• 	..• 
:;_.I -t:-11 P / VI (.1 .1: 1'11-  - -:: '.!11 1 ID 	,& 	1..'1.1..4. 	C.-.._:.I'l ... L.. .-1; / 

I7, .1. 1-.......L1._:.Z !!'11....:..r....P ..:. 	 , .:. I, 

	

-_- 	 :!. 
f ?1.- ':.(-11.!.: 	!:;11! 	:.1- `;' 	1,.....DL111:1 !i'l 1: NI I 	L. i 

ULU- I 
WAR1TiNT TuTAL 

5;34 	CULV, SUPPLIII:S & BOOKS 
•-!:1. • ;ait'2 1 	! 	; 

C.:;RW,1-2 ! U 



0'66 

1 R._ 

10_:. 000 

,.11-61Z1 

t::`.1i) 	f:; 

',11;•..11r) 

v1,04f 

1,31 uuv: 10,Jt 

lu HL 

412 004'. 000 

:!i37 

J." 

rL(•i12 TuTH. 

;; 

I 

00U 

0.11 

. ' 

C.L.. L. 7 

(.3'2 
1./..:•„!.' OLf ...i.1 V:127 

0:31 

01:2 
OL. 1 000 01 j 
,:.f0 000 6 
001 000 0;- 1 

Vii60 

00 000 0 
'4L.:12.1:1 000 OL'L! 

I 001Z Ott; - 	7 
.. 	• 	2 

00 00C 

"" 

04f0 

•._ 	.. • .1 

: 	• •r) 

4, ;.:.:31. 



I . ;1-1N 	1.4f 	:; 	•!.; 11%, 	 :;.; 

0,4 11  

[ 	 wn7 	 _T4 
L -1(;3TLI) :7:X.OVE 	 .. Y.T...Y4LOE'Z., BEEN FUNISH:D. 

• — 

- I. 

Oz..; 	 MLMBE;q:c7, 

IHL 
,;'1C1.....$ 	 UF LUR 	 IJELN RE:i;LIVLf. 
NUA3ES    KRu  	 APPOVLD 

DW.flYIENT 	 ;-;,TLJLN: 

NUM12E!:.; 
DATILD THIS 	 DFIV Li-  	 5 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

December 15, 2004 	 JAN 1 2 2005 
From Cub Scout Pack 4067 	

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
.-',C;ENDA NO. 	  

To the Mayor of Sedro-Woolley 

Cub Scout Pack 4067 requests the use of the Sedro-Woolley Community Center 
for a reduced fee rate on Saturday February 5, 2005 for our annual Pine Wood Derby 
race. Cub Scout Pack 4067 is a nonprofit organization servicing 1-5th  grade boys through 
out the Sedro-Woolley School District. Any reduction in the Community Center usage 
fee would greatly benefit our program. The races are scheduled to start at 10:00 AM and 
last until 1:30 PM on Saturday February 5, 2005. You are welcome to attend. 

Sincerely, 

Dan J Long 
Cub Master Pack 67 

Ph# 854-0148 



f 

December 17, 2004 

City Clerk 
Courthouse 
Sedro Woolley, Wa 98284 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUN2. 42:2S 
,,GENDA NO. 

Re: Community building 

City Clerk: 

We, the Washington Old Time Fiddlers, a non profit 
organization, happily rented the community building 
for our 2004 Christmas party. 
We now request that you rent us the same building for 
our 2005 Christmas party on the first Saturday of 
December. 
December 3, 2005. 
If this is possible, would you please contact our member, 
Bob McLaughlin at 855-2334. He will make the necessary 
arrangements for payment and confirmation. 
Thank you so much for your assistance in this matter. 
Sincerely, 

Gwen Roberts, chairman 
Washington Old Time Fiddlers 
District #4 



Sesci/V W00/4 Little  League Baseball 
P.O. Box 254. Sedro Woolley, Washington 98284 

	
Phone (360) 854-9299 

December 27, 2004 

City of Sedro Woolley 
Mayor & City Council 
730 Murdock Street 
Sedro Woolley, WA 98284 

HO/ 	330 
NO 

A31100,AA•C!-.1C3S 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCILABgBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Re: Use of Community Center 

Dear Sirs and Madams, 

Sedro Woolley Little League is requesting the use of the Community Center for the 2005 
season baseball signups. 

Sedro Woolley Little League is a non-profit organization and is also requesting a waiver 
of the rental fee for the use of the building. 

The dates that we are requesting are: 

Saturday, January 29, 2005 
Monday, January 31, 2005 
Thursday, February 3, 2005 
Monday, February 7, 2005 
Thursday, February 10, 2005 
Saturday, February 12, 2005 

Please send the response to: Milo Sligar 
1505 South 27th Street 
Mt. Vernon, WA 98274 
3.CD• CpG 	ao -202_ cel( 

Thank you for your consideration of this event. 

Sincerely, 

Milo Sligar — Vice President 
Sedro Woolley Little League 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

December 15, 2004 
From Cub Scout Pack 4067 

To Mayor of Sedro-Woolley 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL
. 
 

AGENDA NO. 	  

Cub Scout Pack 4067 would like to request to use the Sedro Woolley River Front 
Park Covered Group Picnic Area at the reduced fee rate on Thursday, June 16, 2005 for 
our annual End of year picnic and Rain Gutter Regatta race. Cub Scout Pack 4067 is a 
nonprofit organization servicing 1-5th  grade boys through out the Sedro-Woolley School 
District. Any reduction in the Group Picnic Area usage fee would greatly benefit our 
program. The Picnic is scheduled to start at 5:00 PM and last until 8:30 PM on Thursday 
June 16, 2005. You are welcome to attend. 

Sincerely 

Dan J Long 
Cub Master Pack 67 

Ph# 854-0148 



‘..,ma a ry II) %. .11,11 \HA. i.trt iNsUKANCE WhIPANY 

Mutual of Omaha Plaza 
Omaha, NE 68175 
402 342 7600 
mutualofomaha.com  

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 

BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 
UNIT ACCIDENT INSURANCE 

CS 4 606 4067 01/01/04 MB270526 

CUB SCOUTS 
	

When filing a claim, be sure to include in 
24356 WICKER ROAD #37 
	

the space provided on the claim form, the 
SEDRO WOOLLEY 	WA 98284 
	

"MB" number above your name and address. 

MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 

Medical Expense Benefit: $15,000 	 Ambulance Service Benefit: $6,000 
-Nonduplieatiornkrnotmt--$710. 	 —Speci 	fled-111j u—fy-13-e-ntfit : $35,000 
Dental Injury Benefit: $5,000 	 Heart or Circulatory Malfunction Death Benefit: $10,000 

United of Omaha Life Insurance Company 
(called "We," "Us" or "Our") 

Hereby certifies that each eligible person who is registered with a participating Tiger Cub Group, Cub Pack, Scout Troop, Varsity 
Scout Team or Venturer Crew and for whom the required premium has been paid (called "you," "your" or "Insured") is insured 
under Policy Form S28Y (called the policy). Nonscouts, nonscouters and guests who are being encouraged to become registered 
leaders or scouts are automatically insured while in attendance at a scheduled activity. We agree to pay the benefits described in 
the policy, subject to its provisions, for injuries received while you are: 

(a) participating in any activity approved and supervised by the Boy Scouts of America; or 
(b) traveling to or from any activity approved and supervised by the Boy Scouts of America (travel is not limited to "as a 

group"). 

EXCEPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
(a) the cost of medical or surgical treatment or nursing service rendered by any person employed by the Boy Scouts of America; 
(b) any loss caused by suicide or any attempt thereat; 
(c) any loss caused by intentionally self-inflicted injuries; 
(d) eye refractions, replacement of eyeglasses or contact lenses or hearing aids or the fitting thereof; 
(e) loss caused by act of declared or undeclared war; 	 - • . 
(I) 	dental treatment or dental X-rays, except when required as the result of injuries to sound, natirralleeth,, 
(g) 	disease or bacterial infection (except pyogenic infection which shall occur with and through ail accidental cutor wound). 

DEFINITIONS 
"Injuries" means accidental bodily injuries which result, independently of sickness and all other causes, in: (a) loss of life, limb or 
sight, paraplegia, hemiplegia or quadriplegia; and/or (b) expense incurred for hospital and professional services specified in the 
policy. 

"Hospital" means a place licensed as a hospital (if licensing is required by law), which is operated for the care and treatment of 
resident inpatients and which has a graduate nurse always on duty, and a laboratory and an operating room (both on the premises) 
where major surgical operations are performed by persons legally qualified to do so. In no event, however, will the term "hospital" 
mean a hospital or an institution or part of such hospital or institution which is licensed as or used principally as a clinic, 
convalescent home, rest home, nursing home or home for the aged, or treatment center for drug addicts or alcoholics. 

"Irreversible Coma" means: (a) a state of unconsciousness in which there is a cessation of activity in the central nervous system as 
demonstrated by an electroencephalogram (using criteria established by the American Electroencephalography Society); and (b) a 
diagnosis of brain death by the attending Legally Qualified Physician. 

BENEFITS FOR HOSPITAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
When injuries result in treatment by a legally qualified physician or nurse (RN or LPN) beginning within 60 days after the date of 
the accident, we will pay the expense incurred up to the usual, reasonable charges normally made within the geographical area 
where treatment is performed for necessary Services and Supplies listed below, but not to exceed the specified limits for each 
accident. 

M18757 7-00 —1— 	 Policy Form S28Y 

    



City of Sedro-Woolley Fire Department 
Dean Klinger, Chief 
PO Box 659 / 220 Munro Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284-0659 

(360) 855-2252 • Fax (360) 855-0196 

 

To: Council Members 

From: Asst. Chief Olson & FF Youngquist 

Subject: Request for Out of State Travel funds 

Date: 12/15/04 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL AMBERS 
AGENDA NO 

Date of travel Sunday February 13th  through Saturday the 19th. 

Requesting approval; for out of state travel, for the purchase of meals only. 
All other expenses which includes travel and housing are paid by the federal government 

I will be attending a course (Challenges for Local Training Officers) at the National Fire 
Academy in Emmitsburg, Maryland. This six day course content, deals with a variety of 
training challenges facing the training officer, including dealing with personnel, program 
planning, delivery, training liability, etc. 

Firefighter Youngquist will be attending Command and Control of Incidents Operations, 
this six day course covers topics include; problem-solving and fire command, interagency 
and mutual aid, ICS, incident management, size-up and strategy, tactics, etc. 

I believe these courses will be a great benefit for us to attend to help us to perform our 
duties, to better to serve our community. 

Thank You, 

/f/ 

Todd Olson 
Assistant Fire Chief 



City of Sedro-Woolley Fire Department 
Dean Klinger, Chief 
PO Box 659 / 220 Munro St. 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

(360) 855-2252 • Fax (360) 855-0196 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DATE: 	January 5, 2005 
	 JAN 1 2 2005 

-no° P.M. COUNCI,LgiAivlbERS 

TO: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 	 AGENDA NO. 	  

FROM: 	Dean Klinger, Chief 

SUBJECT: Skagit County interlocal for Confined Space Training 

Situation:  

Skagit County has asked that we enter into an interlocal agreement in order to 
act as the pass through for money to pay the instructor for the Confined Space 
Rescue class. The money is coming from ODP (Office of Domestic 
Preparedness) in grant form to Skagit County DEM, Skagit County will reimburse 
us for instructor costs. The total cost of the grant is for 25,000 and the cost of the 
class is 20,000 plus lodging and meals for the instructor. The class is opened up 
to the entire region and will be taught over two weeks. The first class is February 
/ 11'h  and the second is March 7t  -11th. The class size is 20 students per week. 

Recommended Action:  

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to enter into an 
"Interlocal agreement for confined space training ", with Skagit County. 



SKAGIT COUNTY 
Contract # C20040500 

Page 1 of 3 

After Recording Return to: 

SKAGIT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
700 SO. SECOND STREET, ROOM 202 
MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273 

 

II 1.1 I 	III 	I II 	ilirillill 1111 
2 0 0 4 1 2 1 D 0 0 4 0 

   

    

    

Skagit County Auditor 

12/15/2004 Page 	1 of 	3 9:46AM 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

Sedro-Woolley Fire Department 
AND 

Skagit County 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Sedro-Woolley Fire 
Department ("SWFD") and Skagit County, Washington ("County") pursuant to the 
authority granted by Chapter 39.34 RCW, INTERLOCAL COOPERATION ACT. 

1. PURPOSE: 
To provide Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD)/Terrorism & Confined Spaces 
seminar(s) for a total of 10-40 students. 

2. RESPONSIBILITIES: 
SWFD will be responsible to provide seminars that comply with the requirements of the 
FY04 State Homeland Security Program grant. The seminars are also to provide 
instruction sufficient that successful participants meet all pertinent state & federal 
confined space rescue regulations. 

The County will be responsible to provide pass-through grant funds to cover exercise 
expenses, up to a maximum of $25,000, via State Homeland Security Program grant 
funds. 

3. TERM OF AGREEMENT: 
The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2005 through October 31, 2005. 

4. MANNER OF FINANCING: 
The County will pass through funding, from its award of FY04 State Homeland Security 
Program grant money, to SWFD. 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 1 of 3 



01111111011  
2 0 0 41 21 500 4 0 
Skagit County Auditor 

3 9:46ANI 

1211512004 Page 	
2 of  

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 2 of 3 

5. ADMINISTRATION: The following individuals are designated as representatives 
of the respective parties. The representatives shall be responsible for administration of 
this Agreement and for coordinating and monitoring performance under this Agreement. 
In the event such representatives are changed, the party making the change shall notify 
the other party. 

	

5.1 	The County's representative shall be David Bond. 

	

5.2 	SWFD's representative shall be Chief Dean Klinger. 

6. TREATMENT OF ASSETS AND PROPERTY: No fixed assets or personal or 
real property will be jointly or cooperatively, acquired, held, used, or disposed of 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION: Each party agrees to be responsible and assume liability 
for its own wrongful and/or negligent acts or omissions or those of their officials, officers, 
agents, or employees to the fullest extent required by law, and further agrees to save, 
indemnify, defend, and hold the other party harmless from any such liability. It is further 
provided that no liability shall attach to the County by reason of entering into this 
contract except as expressly provided herein. 

8. TERMINATION: Any party hereto may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) 
days notice in writing either personally delivered or mailed postage-prepaid by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the party's last known address for the purposes of 
giving notice under this paragraph. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall 
be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination. 

9. CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS AND WAIVERS: The 
Agreement may be changed, modified, amended or waived only by written agreement 
executed by the parties hereto. Waiver or breach of any term or condition of this 
Agreement shall not be considered a waiver of any prior or subsequent breach. 

10. SEVERABILITY: In the event any term or condition of this Agreement or 
application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall 
not affect other terms, conditions or applications of this Agreement which can be given 
effect without the invalid term, condition, or application. To this end the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions 
agreed upon by the parties. All items incorporated herein by reference are attached. 
No other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

12. OTHER PROVISIONS: Not applicable. 

SI(AGIT coUNV 
Contract* C20040500 

Page 2 oi 3 



ed W. Anderson, Chairman 

Reco 	-nded: 

By: 

By: 
Trisha Logue, Budg / Finance Administrator 

ment read 

By: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this e-  day 

APPROVED: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGI COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

GOVERNMENT AGENCY: 

Title of Signatory 
(Date 	 

Print Name of Signatory 

Mailing Address: 
(Street address required 
in addition to P.O. Box) 

6/1  M v..esa  
Don Munks, Commissioner 

Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Commissioner 

For Agreements under $5000 

Gary Rowe, County Administrator 
(Authorization per Resolution #R20030146) 

Approved as to Indemnification: 

By:  
Risk Manager 

Approved as to Form: 

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
Page 3 of 3 

11111111111111111111111111111  
200412150040  

Skagit County Auditor 

12/15/2004 Page 	3 of 	3 9:46AM 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040500 

Page 3 of 3 



Memorandum 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 
To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson ( 

Date: 12/7/2004 

Re: 	State Purchasing Intergovernmental Agreement Revision 

Background: The City of Sedro-Woolley has been part of the State Purchasing 
Cooperative for some time. This membership allows the City to purchase "off the 
State contracts" with the Office of State Procurement responsible for bidding law 
compliance. 

The prior intergovernmental agreement has been revised to comply with HB2615 
local public notice requirements. 

Recommendation: By motion, authorize the Mayor to sign the attached 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Washington Department of General 
Administration. 

:00 P.M. COUNCI.LQ-.11.13EkS 
AGENDA NO. 	-••••  

1 



ORIGINAL 

State of Washington 

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
Office of State Procurement 

Rm. 201 General Administration Building, P.O. Box 41017 • Olympia, Washington 98504-1017 • (360) 902-7400 
http://www.w.wagov  

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE 

PURCHASING AGREEMENT FOR 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS 

Pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW and to other provisions of law, the State of Washington, Department of General 
Administration, Office of State Procurement, Purchasing and Contract Administration, (hereinafter called the "Office 
of State Procurement" or "OSP"), and the following named municipal corporation or political subdivision of the 
State of Washington, or political subdivision of another state, 	  
(hereinafter called the "political subdivision") hereby enter into this Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement 
(hereinafter called the "Agreement"), the purpose of which is for undertaking governmental purchasing activity that 
each party is authorized by law to perform, upon the following terms and conditions: 

(1) The Office of State Procurement, in contracting for the purchase of goods and services 
according to the laws and regulations governing purchases by and on behalf of the State 
of Washington, agrees to contract on behalf of the political subdivision, to the extent 
permitted by law and agreed upon by both parties. The political subdivision accepts 
responsibility for compliance with any additional laws and regulations governing 
purchases by or on behalf of the political subdivision. 

(2) The Office of State Procurement shall comply with its statutory requirements regarding 
notice for bids or proposals for goods or services subject to this Agreement, and shall 
either post the bid or solicitation notice on a web site established and maintained by OSP 
for the purposes of posting public notice of bid or proposal solicitations, or shall provide 
an access link on the State of Washington's web portal to the notice. 

(3) When the Office of the State Procurement has entered into a contractual agreement for the 
purchase of goods or services on behalf of political subdivision(s), the political 
subdivision may purchase goods and services covered by the contract on the same terms 
and conditions as the State of Washington. Purchases by the political subdivision may be 
made by a purchase order issued by the political subdivision to the state contractor. The 
political subdivision accepts full responsibility for payment for any goods and services it 
purchases under contracts negotiated by OSP with private vendors or items it purchases 
directly from OSP. 

The political subdivision reserves the right to contract independently for the purchase of 
any particular class of goods or services, with or without notice being given to OSP. 

This Agreement shall be effective on the later of the two signature dates appearing below, 
and shall continue in force until canceled in writing by either party. 



Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement for 

Political Subdivisions 
Page 2 

(6) In the event that either the Office of the State Procurement or the political subdivision is 
abolished, this Agreement shall continue in operation as to any public agency succeeding 
to the powers and duties of the abolished party, except as canceled or modified by 
operation of law. 

(7) The political subdivision agrees to use only contracts available to the political 
subdivisions, and only in accordance with those contract terms and conditions. The 
political subdivision further agrees that all purchases from OSP contracts will be made 
only for the direct use of the political subdivision's programs and will not be made on 
behalf of other jurisdictions (political subdivisions). 

(8) The Office of State Procurement is required by statute to recover the costs of 
administration of its contracts. The Subscription Fee Schedule illustrates the fee structure 
which is based on the total organization budget. This subscription fee is due upon 
subscribing for the first year of membership and by January 31 of each year thereafter. 
Subscription term is January through December. The political subdivision agrees to pay 
the annual subscription fee as a part of this Agreement. 

(9) OSP may from time to time make changes to this table in either the expense categories or 
fees, which will be effective with the very next subscription period. 

Subscription Fee Schedule 

Initial in box Expenses of more 
than 

Expenses of less than Annual Fee 

$0.00 $3,000,000 $200.00 

$3,000,001 $7,500,000 $500.00 

. $7,500,001 $21,000,000 $900.00 

• $21,000,001 $30,000,000 $1000.00 

$30,000,001 $68,000,000 $2000.00 

. $68,000,001 $90,000,000 $3000.00 

- 	- $90,000,001 $150,000,000 $4000.00 

$150,000,001 and over $5000.00 

(10) The State Auditors' most recently published Local Government Comparative Statistics 
report will be used as the authoritative document to resolve any issues regarding total 
expenses. Where a political subdivision is not reported separately in that document, the 
most recently approved budget will be used. 

(11) In addition to the subscription fee, the political subdivision will pay $85.00 per vehicle 
($75.00 if ordering through the Internet) for each vehicle purchased from the state vehicle 
contract. Payment will be made to the contractor unless otherwise directed by the Office 
of State Procurement. 



Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement for 

Political Subdivisions 
Page 3 

(12) In addition to established contracts, custom contracting and procurement services are 
available for a predetermined fee. These include development of contracts and/or single 
requisitions that meet specific needs. The cost for these optional services, typically a flat 
fee, is established at the time of request. 

(13) It is not the intention of the parties, nor shall this Agreement be interpreted, to create a 
separate legal entity for the performance of this Agreement. Instead, the Office of State 
Procurement shall be responsible for administering this Agreement. 

(14) Political subdivisions shall be responsible for filing a copy of this agreement with its 
county auditor's office or the auditor's office in Thurston County, Washington. 

(15) By its signature below, the Office of State Procurement confirms it approves of this 
Agreement as required by RCW 39.34.050 and it is authorized to enter into this 
Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.080. Similarly, by its signature below, the political 
subdivision confirms it is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to RCW 
39.34.080. 

Please return by mail with payment to: State of Washington 
PAF-Pol/Subs Fund 425 04 20 000214 
303 General Administration Bldg. 
P.O. Box 41008 
Olympia, WA 98504-1008 



Intergovernmental Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement for 

Political Subdivisions 
Page 4 

OSP has assigned you customer number, 	 . Please provide this number when ordering from 
contracts or communicating with OSP. 	(Completed by OSP, will be returned to you in executed copy) 

Organization contact information: 

Contact Person (To whom contract documents and related communications are to be mailed or faxed). 

Name: 

Address: 

City, St. Zip 

Phone Number: 	  

Federal Id #: 

FAX Number: 

Email Address: 

The undersigned understands and agrees to the terms and conditions of this agreement and attests that the 
expense/budget category checked above is true and correct. 

Political Subdivision Authorized Signature: Applicant must provide an authorized signature. 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 	  

Date: 

What is the most significant reason for joining the State Purchasing Cooperative? 
Specific Contracts 	  
How did you hear about the State Purchasing Cooperative? 
Trade Show ❑ Customer Service Visit ❑ Procurement Staff ❑ 

Other (please specify) 	  

Office of State Procurement Authorized Signature: 

Name: 
Date: 



General 
Administration 

Hundreds of contracts and services 
Below is a sample of the many great products and services we have to offer. Please visit our 
homepage at http://www.ga.wa.00v/ or to view our contract listing go to 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ga/inet/pca/pcacont.htm  or contact us by email at pcamailoa.wa.gov  
for more information. 

Need Professional Services or Consultants? 
Our Professional Services Solutions team has over 600 pre-qualified consultants who can meet 
your consulting needs in areas such as information technology, auditing, management 
consulting, environmental consulting and more. Their competitive two tier process can save 
you as much as 40% and takes less than 3 weeks. Visit their website at 
http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/ps2  or send an email to ps2mail©ga.wa.00v 

2005 Vehicles 
Automobiles, Police, Utility Vehicles, Light Trucks, Vans, Fuel Efficient Hybrid Gas/Electric 
Vehicles http://www.oa.wa.gov/vehreo/vehacq.html  

Charge Card Services 
Fuel, Travel and Purchasing Card Programs, Airfare, Lodging, Meals and Goods and Services 
http://www.oa.wa.gov/pca/contract/04298c.doc  
http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/03703c.doc  

Bakery Products 
Bread, English Muffins, Bagels, Rolls, Buns, Doughnuts and Dessert Items 
http://www.ga.wa.gov/pca/contract/08501c.doc  

Washington Ultimate Food Acquisition Service 
Canned Food, Dry Goods, Frozen Foods and Beverages 
http://www.oa.wa.00v/pca/contract/0770  lc. doc 

Lawn and Grounds Equipment 
Contract Mowers of all types and sizes, compact utility tractors, utility vehicles, agricultural 
equipment, golf and turf equipment and more. 
http://www.oa.wa.gov/pca/contract/04402c.doc   

Two Tier Janitorial 
This janitorial services contracting program will save you both time and money when 
contracting for this type of service. For information email pcamailPga.wa.gov  

Road Snow, Ice Control Products, Deicer and Salt 
http://www.oa.wa.gov/pca/contract/07904c.doc  

Digital and Color Copiers 
http://www.oa.wa.00v/pca/contract/05899c.doc  
http://www.ga  .wa .gov/pca/contract/07903c.doc 

General 
Administration 

Cflice at State Procurement 



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

Department of General Administration 
Office of State Procurement 

210 11th Ave SW Rm. 201 GA Bldg. / PO BOX 41017 / Olympia WA 98504-1017 / (360) 902-7400 

http://www.ga.wa.gov  

December 1, 2004 

To: 	Valued Co-op Member 

From: 	Lana Mitchell, Customer Service Representative 

Subject: 	2005 Washington State Purchasing Cooperative Membership 

We would like to thank you for making 2004 successful for the Office of State 
Procurement (OSP). We currently offer more than 240 contracts to our local government 
members and 209 for Non Profit members. Membership is more than 680 strong, 
demonstrating the known value of participation. This approach to contracting allows us to 
provide value-added professional public purchasing services that help you; 

• Save real dollars 
• Leverage buying power for maximum discounts 
• Improve vendor service and performance 
• Save you valuable staff time 
• Eliminate redundant processes 
• Allow your staff to focus on specialized needs 
• Continue to develop contracts and programs YOU need, and improve processes to 

make it easy for YOU to do business 

Please refer to the enclosed document for a highlight of some great contracts that save 
you time and money. If you would like to preview a complete list of contracts available 
to you, visit our website at http://www.ga.wa.gov/purchase.   

We all have that difficult contracting problem for a particular good or service at one time 
or another. If a contract is not available for your requirement, let us establish one for you. 
We offer our consulting and contract development expertise at a rate that is less than you 
might think. Call (360) 902-7400 to inquire about this type of service. 

Also enclosed is your 2005 annual membership invoice, including our return address. 
Please submit your payment which is due January 2005. Your annual rate has been 
calculated using total expenditures and expenses as reported in the most recent State 
Auditor's Publication Local Government Comparative Statistics.  Review your invoice 
and corresponding rate in the subscription fee schedule (see page 2 of the 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement). If you have any questions or 
comments, please call me at (360) 902-7415 or email me at lmitche(iwga.wa.gov. 

Page 1 of 2 



In the 2004 legislative session HB2615 was passed which provides that local public 
notice requirements can be met by the public notice requirements of the contracting 
agency. The office of State Procurement advertises their bids through an online vendor 
register and bid notification system. Vendors access bids by registering at the 
www.ga.wa.goviwebs. This method complies with RCW 43019.1908 "Competitive 
bidding required by RCW 43.19.190 through 43.19.1939 shall be solicited by public 
notice, and through the sending of notices by mail, electronic transmission, or other 
means to bidders on the appropriate list of bidders who shall have qualified by 
application to the division of purchasing." We also publish an advertisement in the 
Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce each Wednesday stating the Office of State 
Procurement is conducting bids for goods and services for state agencies. 

The last enclosure is two signed intergovernmental agreements which have been revised 
to be consistent with the language contained in HB2615. We are asking you to sign 
them, keep one copy for your records, and return the other marked original with your 
annual membership fee. 

Again thank you for partnering with the Office of State Procurement to meet your 
business needs. If you have any questions please contact me, Lana Mitchell, (360) 902- _ 
7415 or by e-mail at lmitchega.wa.gov   

Page 2 of 2 



Memorandum 

Date: September 1, 2004 

To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

From: Debbie Allen, Wastewater Treatment Foreman  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 
720 Murdock Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 856-1100 

Fax (360) 856-5269 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

"I:00 P.M. CO UN C11411.AMBERS 
‘GENDA NO. 	 

Subject: 	Earth Tech Contract 

Background Information: 

On Tuesday August 24, 2004 the City experienced a large volume of rainfall in a very short 
period of time. This in turn created high infiltration and inflow (I&I) at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant as storm water found its way into the sewer system through old cracked and 
broken lines and illegal connections, such as roof drains. 

The Wastewater Treatment Plant is designed for maximum monthly flows of 2.07 MGD (million 
gallons per day) and peak hour flows of 7.18 MGD. While operating with two pumps on high 
speed, which is maximum capacity, the plant was unable to handle the flow and spilled from two 
different structures. The design engineers have been called in to verify hydraulic calculations 
and analyze flow data to determine if the plant failed to perform or if we just exceeded our plant 
capacity. 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize Mayor Dillon to sign a contract with Earth Tech Engineering to determine the cause of 
the August 24, 2004 overflow and, if required, define and design any desired modifications and 
to provide engineering assistance during modification construction, as needed. 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 04 - 
(To be used for engineering, professional, and consultant services) 

This Agreement made and entered into this  8th 	day of  September 	, 20  04 
by and between the City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State 
of Washington, hereinafter referred to as "City" and  Earth Tech  
whose address is 	10800 N.E. 8th  Street, Bellevue, 7th  Floor, WA 98004  
, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating 
to professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a 
competent and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set 
forth in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by 

the City, services as  Consultant  
	that are requested by the City of Sedro-Woolley 

[ ] from time to time ("on-call"). 
These services shall include: 

[ x ] see Attachment A, "Scope of Services; or 	Services as requested by the City to  
review and determine the cause of the August 24, 2004 headworks and diversion structure  
overflow and. if required, define and design any desired modifications and to provide engineering 
assistance during modification construction, as needed. Such requested services may include  
office engineering and drafting, on-site visits, and preparation for and attendance at meetings.  
The Consultant will utilize various in-house staff to respond to requested services.  
Reimbursables will be reimbursed at actual cost. Administrative labor will be paid at the  
approved rate in the attached fee schedule.  

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with 
the IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with 

PROFESIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 	 Page 1 Y:\CO\TRACTS\Public  Works Contracts\ S_W Professional Services Agreementdoc 



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 4 

state government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence as soon as practicable after the execution of 

this Agreement shall be undertaken so 

4. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended 
by such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated 
in a written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

5. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pa- the Contractor 
[ ] $ 	 per 	 , plus an additional sum for costs as 

normally billed by professionals in the business, including mylars, extra-ordinary postage, 
copying and transportation, together with applicable sales tax, if any. 

[ x ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment [ x ] B [ ] C, "Compensation and 
Schedule of Payments". 

[ x ] $ 10,000 	is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement, and it 
shall not be exceeded without City's prior written agreement in the form of a negotiated and 
executed supplemental agreement. 

The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 
the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within 
ten (10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

6. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the 

Contractor under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's 
services for use by the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be 
deemed the property of the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, 
including reproducible camera-ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, 
duplicates of 35 mm slides, and copies in the fouli of computer files, for the City's use. The City 
shall have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in 
part, any reports, data, drawings, images or other material prepared under this Agreement, 
provide,! 	ths. Con`...ractor shall 	liability fc7 th.J 	ef th,2 rc--tr-,:stnr's work -nrodu,t. 
outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

7. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through the date indicated in (3) 

above or December 31, 2004, whichever is later. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon 
written notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 

a) Material violation of this agreement. 

Page 2 



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 4 

b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services 
related to this agreement. 
B. This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 
either party. 
C. Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations 
under this agreement which accrue prior to the date of termination, or which, by their 
nature, are intended to survive completed perfoiiiiance of the scope of work, including 
the obligation of the City to pay for competent services performed prior to the date of 
termination. 

8. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

9. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro- 

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

10. Liability and Hold Harmless. 
Each party shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the other party of any claim, 

damages, losses, liability or expense cause by or resulting from their negligence related to the 
performance of this contract. 

[ x ] The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under a professional 
liability insurance policy covering the work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and 
amounts as are acceptable to the City. 

[ 	] The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under a general 
liability insurance policy covering the work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and 
amounts as are acceptable to the City. 

For purposes of this agreement the Contractor waives immunity under RCW Title 51, the 
State Industrial Insurance Act for any claim brought by the City. 

11. Employment Security. The Contractor shall comply with all employment 
security laws of the State of Washington, and shall timely make all required payments in 
connection therewith. 

12. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall 
be mutuall:,. 	u_pon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

13. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between 

the parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable 
unless set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

Page 3 



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 4 

14. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified 

and confirmed. 

15. Assignability. This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written 
consent of the other party. 

16. Notices. Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in 
writing and shall be delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the party at the party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address 
stated herein by giving notice of the change in accordance with this paragraph. 

17. Choice of Law/Venue. Any dispute under this agreement or related to this 
agreement shall be decided in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for 
any court proceeding arising under or related to this agreement shall be in Skagit County 
Superior Court. 

18. Non-exclusive Agreement. This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-
Woolley from entering into a contract with another person or firm for similar services. 

DATED this 	day of 	 , 20 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 

	

	  
Mayor 

Attest: 

City Clerk 

CONTRACTOR: 

By: 	  

Page 4 



Earth Tech, Inc. -- Northwest Region 
2004 Rate and Fee Schedule 

BILLING RATE SCHEDULE 
Effective January 1, 2004 

BILLING TITLE 

HOURLY RATE 
(actual dependent upon 

personnel used) 

Principal 150.00 - 
Project Manager 140.00 160.00 
Structural Engineer 140.00 160.00 
Sr. Engineer 135.00 150.00 
Sr. Project Designer 130.00 145.00 
Project Engineer 110.00 135.00 
Engineer 90.00 120.00 
Field Representative 75.00 100.00 
Technician 65.00 90.00 
CADD Operator 65.00 90.00 
Word Processor 55.00 75.00 
Project Administrator 70.00 85.00 
Clerical/General Office 60.00 75.00 
Business Management 85.00 105.00 

Principal Surveyor 100.00 120.00 
Project Surveyor 85.00 105.00 
Surveyor (Office Technician) 70.00 95.00 
Survey Crews 

Two-Person 116.00 126.00 
Two-Person - GPS 163.00 170.00 
Three-Person 170.00 

Auto Mileage 	 $0.375/mile 
Photocopies 	 $0.07 ea. 
Project Related Expenses (Reimbursables) 	 Actual Cost 

NOTE: 	These rates are subject to modification to reflect adjustments to employee salaries throughout the year 

at 1-year intervals on the employee's yearly anniversary date. 

E 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Engineering and Public Works Department 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

720 Murdock Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

DATE: 	January 6, 2005 

TO: 	Mayor Dillon / City Council 	 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

(1:-- 	2.:- 	
REGULAR MEE'GNG 

FROM: 	Rick Blair, Director of Public Works / City Engineer 	 ,)AN 1 2 2005 

SUBJECT: REQUEST TO SURPLUS PART OF GARBAGE TRUCK ;:O0 RM. COUNCIL__ Cii•stNibERS 
•.GENDA NO. 

BACKGROUND: 

Please see the attached memo from Leo. 

Leo has arranged an opportunity to get $500 for the scrap remainder of the garbage truck body, 
and have it picked up from our shop in one piece, rather than having us need to cut it into pieces 
and haul it ourselves to recycle at Skagit Steel. 

This truck body is the remaining part of the truck which became the rolloff dumpster haul truck 
converted with the USDA grant, so in effect, we get another $500 towards the effort. 

PROPOSED MOTION(S): 

Motion to surplus one detached scrap garbage truck body from the Solid Waste Division. 

Thank you. 

RJB:rjb 

YACOUNCIL\050106-Memo to council-surplus garbage truck body.doc 



edro 	Solid Waste 

°alley Division 

DATE: 	January 6, 2005 

TO: 	Blair Public Works Director 

FROM: 	Leo Jacobs, Solid Waste Foreman 

SUBJECT: SCRAP ITEM 

The body of the garbage truck we turned into the roll-off truck needs to be removed from 
our shop area. It is basically scrap metal. We have taken all the replacement parts off that 
we could use. We were going to take it to Skagit river steel sometime in the future 
however some one stopped by that saw it; he works for a garbage company in 
Bellingham (SSC). He said he would give us 500.00 for it that is about what Skagit river 
steel would give us but we would have to cut it up in smaller pieces and would haul it. 
I have also had several sales men here looking at it offering nothing but to take it off our 
hands for free. How should I proceed or can I proceed. 
Like always they would like to get soon. 
If it ok we can send him an invoice and he can pick it up next Monday. 



--7417.1  
4 	.4- 

wr 

, 	 f At."' dr ,4.04 	
•••• 	' 

Aro 
 

ir"=""•.,. ' 6 
Ni41  L ' 	.714 

-6666 411*. 

ba*

ii 

 

• 

----a- +7--.1111• =,-11-16,41%; 	ft..-11 - 

	

+a 	 la 	 "  

	

d zr-t 	 • 	 2C.f 	 ..tr 



-7* 

- drioN 	 • , 	TA.liarlfet 
."1  wag :s.1.71:Air 4;81111 

imprwitiom 	- 

I I  

• :lire • - _ 
' 	 cint"4-  4114-7.• 

1
7.4.4 

-.
• 	 ,..; 

- 
Mat 

--44dousi %AWNED' 
• - -AA — r 

At 
, 	,'• 

r '!•k 	Fr' I- 

l:6-"Irf 	" 	• 	"" 	• .11,  

--411110.Pr 	 771' 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL C 
AGENDA NO. 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 



-.0111k0, CITY or 

	 SVAPIRE9PLLZ otscow4v
1.7 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCii.. 
AGENDA NO. 	 

To: 	Sedro-Woolley City Council 

From: 	Mayor Sharon D. Dillon 

Date: 	January 4, 2005 

Re: 	Appointments to Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 

Issue: Two (2) openings on the Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission. 

Background: There are two (2) openings on the Planning Commission, 
the position has been advertised and one person has applied, 
application letter attached, and the two members that were on the 
commission have not chosen to reapply. 

Recommendation: Mayor recommend that the City Council appoint the 
Mike Macomber at this time and continue looking for the second. 

Motion: Move to appoint Michael Macomber to a six year term on the 
Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission expiring December 31, 2010. 

0 Page 1 



Wednesday, December 29, 2004 

To Whom It May Concern: 

My name is Michael Macomber and I reside at 417 Spring Lane, Sedro-Woolley, 
Washington. 

I would like to submit my name as a candidate for the planning commission opening as 
posted on the city's website. 

I have a strong interest in becoming more involved in my community and particularly 
more involved with city government. Hopefully, this position would help me do both 
those things. 

I have lived in Skagit County my entire life and been a resident of Sedro-Woolley for the 
past five years. I graduated from Concrete High School and earned my associate's 
degree from Skagit Valley College. My plan is to continue my studies at Washington 
State University through its distance education program. 

My community involvement includes working closely with my church as well as 
volunteering for a time with Skagit Literacy. I am a frequent attendee at local events; I 
never miss a Loggerrodeo parade. 

My current job has me working Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., which 
allows me free time on the evenings to attend planning commission meetings and 
workshops. 

Please consider me for this opening. If you have further questions contact me at the 
numbers listed below. 

Sincerely, 

Michael R. Macomber 
417 Spring Lane 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
home: 360-856-0664 
cell: 360-333-1393 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

720 Murdock Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone: (360) 855-0771 	Fax: (360) 855-0733 

Memorandum CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

To: 	Mayor and City Council 

From: Staff 

Date: 1/6/2005 

Re: 	Interlocal agreement with Skagit County — SR20 Bicycle and Pedestrian Trail 

Background 

In 1994 and 1995, the City received two grants from the Washington State Department of 
Transportation which allocated federal funds for preliminary engineering costs associated with 
the SR20 Bicycle and Pedestrian Trail project. The grant amount estimates preliminary project 
costs to total $80,000 to extend the trail from District Line Road to the eastern city limits where 
the Cascade Trail begins. 

The first grant is for Phase I of the project, which includes the section of trail from District Line 
Road to Borseth Street with an estimated project cost of $50,000, with $40,000 coming from 
federal dollars, and $10,000 coming from the City. 

The second grant is for Phase II of the project, which includes the section of trail from Borseth 
Street to the eastern city limits to join the Cascade Trail at approximately Township Street. The 
estimated project amount for preliminary engineering is $30,000, with $24,000 coming from 
federal dollars, and $6,000 coming from the City. 

Further review of this project uncovered two substantial dilemmas with the project's first phase 
of the trail which would cause the project to incur additional unforeseen expenses. The most 
difficult stretch of the project to engineer will be the District Line to Borseth Street section with 
approximately half of the length located in the County near wetlands or within a narrow strip of 
land between SR20 and the railroad which will require more intense design and engineering. 
Therefore, in October of 2000, the City requested that both grants be combined for use on Phase 
I (District Line to Borseth Street) for preliminary engineering only, and that the City would 
continue to seek funding to continue the trail to the eastern city limits. 

This project has changed hands several times through different staff members and has been 
recently turned over to Skagit County for administration. City staff members have met with 
Skagit County Public Works Department staff to ensure that the project moves forward. 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBEI(S 
AGENDA NO. 	1 /43-71-1  



The City does not have authority to be a "Certifying Agency" for federal dollars, and because 
both grants include federal funding, Skagit County has agreed to administer the funds for design 
of the project. 

On December 15, 2004, the City received a draft interlocal agreement from Skagit County Public 
Works for review and consideration. The agreement is written so that Skagit County will 
provide the required administration and services to the City in order to fulfill the federal funding 
requirements and to move this project forward. 

Once a full design for the trail and the environmental work is complete, the City can move forward 
with the project, perhaps utilizing volunteers groups interested in helping to complete the construction 
of the trail. 

Recommended Action 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the interlocal agreement between the City of Sedro-Woolley and 
Skagit County concerning the SR20 bicycle and pedestrian trail project. 

Page 2 



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
JANICE MARLEGA, P.E. 
SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
1800 CONTINENTAL PLACE 
MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273 

DOCUMENT TITLE: 	INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SKAGIT COUNTY AND 
CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY CONCERNING THE 
SR 20 BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN TRAIL PROJECT 

DATE SIGNED: 

GRANTOR: 

GRANTEE: 

COUNTY CONTRACT: 

 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SKAGIT COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SR 20 BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN TRAIL PROJECT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this 	 day of 	 , 2004, by 
and between SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON (hereinafter referred to as the "County") and the CITY OF 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and collectively hereinafter referred to 
as the "Parties". 

THIS AGREEMENT shall remain in effect throughout the calendar years 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007, and shall be 
considered fulfilled prior to that date upon the completion of the conditions stated herein. 

WHEREAS, RCW Chapter 39.34, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, authorizes any public agency to contract with any 
other public agency to perform any governmental service or activity which each public agency is authorized by law 
to perform; and, 

C'Documents and SertingskIlahrlocal Settingsaernporary Internet Files OLKA9,interlocal DRAFT doc 

1 



WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is necessary to provide a bicycle/pedestrian trail through Sedro-Woolley 
as identified in Attachment A in order to improve the level of bicycle and pedestrian travel and safety; and 

WHEREAS, the design of such improvements will require hiring a consultant, contract administration, public 
participation, preparation of plans, specifications, and estimates and related activities hereinafter referred to as the 
"Design Phase" of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has federal funds for the design of the improvements identified in Attachment A; and, 

WHEREAS, the City does not have the authority to be the Certifying Agent; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Public Works Depai 	tinent is certified by the Washington State Depaiunent of 
Transportation Highways and Local Programs to document and otherwise administer federally funded projects; and, 

WHEREAS, this Agreement will formally outline the participation and responsibilities of the Parties in the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows: 

I. DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK 

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT: The purpose of this agreement is to identify the scope and extent of services to be 
provided by the County to the City for administrative oversight of the City's SR 20 BICYCLE / PEDESTRIAN 
TRAIL PROJECT, hereinafter identified as the "Project". The Engineering Division of the Skagit County Public 
Works Department, acting under their Certification of Acceptance Agreement with the Washington State Department 
of Transportation, shall provide all services necessary to comply with the requirements of the Federal Highway 
Administration and Washington State Department of Transportation for administration of the design of the City's 
federally funded Project identified herein. 

The County is the approving authority in the following project items: 

a. Location and design. 
b. Utility agreements. 
c. Railroad agreements. 
d. Standard consulting engineering agreements. 
e. Public hearings, findings, and orders. 
f. Plans, specifications, and estimates. 

STANDARDS AND REFERENCES: The County will administer the Project in accordance with the rules, 
regulations and procedures as required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT), WSDOT Highways and Local Programs, and the laws of the State of 
Washington. In general these rules, regulations and procedures are documented in the following publications. The 
latest editions of these publications shall be used: 

• Local Agency Guidelines (M 36-63), Latest Revision, published by WSDOT Highways and Local Programs 
(LAG Manual). 

• Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, 2004 English Edition, published by 
WSDOT and Washington State Chapter APWA, with latest amendments and revisions. 

• Design Manual (M 22-01), Latest Revision, published by WSDOT. 

• Standard Plans for Roads, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, (M21-01). 

• Plans Preparation Manual, (M22-31). 

C 'Documents and Settings\llahr1 Local Settings\Ternporary Internet FilevOLKA9\interlocal DRAFT.doc 



II. DETAILED RELATIONSHIPS, SERVICES AND PRODUCTS: 

Project Documentation: Unless specifically noted otherwise, the City shall maintain original copies of all project 
documentation in the City's project files. Duplicate copies shall be transmitted to the County's Project Manager as 
required or indicated below. The City shall retain the documentation for a period of not less than three years from 
the final payment of any federal aid funds. 

Management Coordination: The County and City shall, by exchange of letters, identify the key management 
personnel with responsibility for the project. 

The City shall appoint a staff member (hereinafter referred to as "City Representative") to represent the City and 
serve as the County's main contact for the Project. The City Representative shall be responsible for providing 
information pertinent to the Project including plans, provisions, permits and other information of a similar nature for 
which the City maintains records to the County Project Manager. 

The City will be responsible for consultant selections, and contract negotiations and administration in accordance 
with WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines. The City will be the contracting party on agreements entered into for the 
purpose of accomplishing the work outlined in this agreement. The County shall review and approve the consultant 
selection process prior to the City proceeding with selecting a consultant. 

Federal Aid Agreement / Fund Obligation: The City will be responsible for obligating federal aid preliminary 
engineering funds through WSDOT Highways and Local Programs by executing the appropriate Local Agency 
Agreement and/or Supplement thereto. 

The City shall be responsible for paying for the total cost of the Project. The total cost of the Project is defined as all 
related project costs including, but not limited to, preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition, permitting, 
legal, administration, consultant engineering, environmental assessment and costs related to county, state and federal 
services. 

Project Design: The City shall be solely responsible for the conceptual and physical design of the project, and the 
specification of all construction and materials to be incorporated into the project. 

Plan and Specification Review: The County shall perform a detailed review of the Plans, Specifications and 
Estimates (P,S & E) for the Project to the extent that the P,S & E conforms to the requirements of FHWA and 
WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. The City will be provided with a written list of all discrepancies 
discovered by the County during the review. The City shall be responsible for correcting, or causing the 
discrepancies to be corrected. 

The County will review and approve design plans, specifications and the cost estimate at the 60%, 90% and final 
design stages. 

Environmental Review: The City shall be responsible for ensuring that all required environmental reviews have 
been completed. The City shall also be responsible for preparing and submitting the Local Agency Environmental 
Classification Summary (ECS), and any other environmental documents that may be necessary, to WSDOT 
Highways and Local Programs for approval. The City will forward a copy of the approved ECS, as well as any other 
approvals for environmental documents, to the County. 

Permits: The City will verify that it has applied for, and received all necessary permits, and will provide copies of 
all permits to the County. The City will make application for time extensions of permits that have expired. The City 
shall be responsible for making any plan revisions necessary to comply with changed permit conditions. The County 
will review any plan revisions before they are submitted to the permitting agencies. 

Right of Way Certification: The City is responsible for acquiring all the necessary right of way for the project, and 
will be responsible for obtaining the Right-of-Way Certification from WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. The 
City will forward a copy of the approved Right-of-Way Certification to the County. 

C Documents and Settings \ IlahrLocal Settings \Temporary Internet Files DLKA9 \interlocal DRAFT.doc 

3 



Federal Aid Billings: The City shall be solely responsible for preparing and submitting Federal Aid progress 
billings to WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. 

Project Management Review: If selected by WSDOT Highways and Local Programs for Project Management 
Review, the City will provide the project records for the Highways and Local Programs Area Engineer's review. 
The County will provide representation. The City shall correct any deficiencies in the project records identified by 
the review. 

Reimbursement of Costs by City: The City shall reimburse the County for all costs of direct and indirect labor plus 
an administrative fee of 10 percent of direct labor costs for the worked performed by the County pursuant to this 
agreement. 

Liability: The City shall hold harmless and indemnify the County from any and all costs, claims, demands and 
obligations of any nature arising by reason of the negligent act or omission of the City, its employees, consultants or 
contractors relating to the subject matter of this contract causing injury to any person or property damage. 

The County shall hold harmless and indemnify the City from any and all costs, claims, demands and obligations of 
any nature arising by reason of the negligent act or omission of the County, its employees, consultants or contractors 
relating to the subject matter of this contract causing injury to any person or property damage. 

Future Oversight: If the City obtains federal funds for the construction of the Project, this agreement may be 
supplemented to include the scope and extent of services to be provided by the County to the City for the 
construction phase. 

Property: Real and personal property purchased with City funds shall be the property of the City and shall remain 
with the City at the termination of this agreement. 

Termination: This agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed and accepted in writing by the 
Parties. 

If this agreement is terminated by the City prior to the completion of the terms as outlined herein, the City shall 
reimburse the County for any costs incurred or that may be incurred as a result of the Project. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written below. 

DATED this 

 

day of 	 , 2004. 

  

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 	 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

SHARON DILLON, Mayor 	 TED W. ANDERSON, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

DON MINKS, Commissioner 

PATSY NELSON, Clerk/Treasurer 

KENNETH A. DAHLSTEDT, Commissioner 

C.' Documents and Sertings:Ilahrlocal Settings:Temporary Internet Files\OLICA9\interlocal DRAFT.doc 

4 



Approved as to Form: 

PATRICK HAYDEN, City Attorney 

Approved: 

Approved as to Content: 
CHAL A. MARTIN, P.E. 
Director/County Engineer 

BILLIE ICADRiMAS 
Risk Manager 

TRISHA LOGUE, CPA 
Budget & Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

ATTEST: 

MELINDA MILLER 
Civil Deputy 

JOANNE GIESBRECHT, Clerk of the Board 

C Documents and SettingsqlahnLocal SeningskTernporary Internet FilesDLKA9\interlocal DRAFT doc 

5 



Memorandum 

To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL rHAMBERS 
From: Patsy Nelson 0S1 	

:AGENDA NO. 	r)  

Date: 1/4/2005 

Re: 	Amendment #1 to Skagit County Interlocal re: SR20 / F&S Intersection 

Background: The existing agreement with Skagit County to administer the SR 20 / 
F&S Intersection project has expired. Skagit County has sent an amendment which 
extends the expiration date to 12/31/06. The original interlocal agreement is attached 
for reference. 

Recommendation: Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment # 1 to Interlocal 
Agreement #005093 with Skagit County. 

1 



By: 	  B 

AMENDMENT #1 
ORIGINAL AGREEMENT # 005093 

City of Sedro-Woolley and Skagit County agree to amend Agreement No. 005093, as set forth 
below under "Terms of Amendment". 

TERMS OF AMENDMENT: 

This AGREEMENT shall be extended through December 31, 2006. 

All other terms and conditions of the original contract shall remain in effect. 

Date: 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

Mayor 

Attest: 

914-g4 	GU-5e(fr  
Finance 'rector 

Approved as to Content and Form: 

Oublic Works irector 

Ap• oved a to Form:  

APPROVED: 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

Ted W. Anderson, Chairman 

Don Munks, Commissioner 

Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Commissioner 
For contracts under $5000: 

Gary Rowe, County Administrator 
(Authorization per Resolution #R20030146) 

Recommended: 

City Attorne 	 Department Head 

Approved as to Indemnification: 

By: 	 By: 	  
Risk Manager 	 Trisha Logue, Budget / Finance Administrator 

Attest: 
	

Approved as to Form: 

by 	  
Joanne Geisbrecht, Clerk of the Board 	 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
Contract Amendment 
Page 1 





12/29/2004 15:29 FAX 	SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS 
	

002 

• 

06cA3 ✓ 

• Skagit vunty Auditor 
10/31/2000 Pag/ 1 of 9 2:23:20PM 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
LUIS PONCE 
SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
700 SO, SECOND STREET, ROOM 202 
MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273 

DOCUMENT TITLE: 	INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SKAGIT COUNTY AND 
CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY CONCERNING THE 
SR 20 INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

DATE SIGNED: 

GRANTOR: 

GRANTEE: 

COUNTY CONTRACT: 

(To t3&re Z. 1 -6;5:  DOO  

SKAGIT COUNTY 

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

005093 

  

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SKAGIT COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

SR 20 INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this 	 day of  na-D66,10_-,  2000, by and 
between SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON (hereinafter referred to as the "County") and the CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON (hereinafter referred to as the "City") and collectively hereinafter referred to as the 
"Parti cs". 

THIS AGREEMENT shall remain in effect throughout the calendar years 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003, and shall be 
considered fulfilled prior to that date upon the completion of the conditions stated herein. 

WHEREAS, RCW Chapter 39.34, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, authorizes any public agency to contract with any 
other public agency to perform any governmental service or activity which each public agency is authorized by law to 
perform; and, 

C:Wr'INDOWMTEMINsactiocaLPIN.dos 

1 



12 / 2 9/2004 15:30 FAX 
	

SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC \\KS 
	

(0 003 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that improvements to the SR 20 Intersections as identified in Attachment A are 
necessary in order to improve the level of vehicular, bicycle, pedestrian and road safety; and n 3  
WHEREAS, the design of such improvements will require advertising for request for proposals, contract 
administration, public participation and related activities hereinafter referred to as the "Design Phase" of the project; 
and. 

WITEREAS, the construction of such improvements will require advertising for bids, contract administration, 
construction inspection and related activities hereinafter referred to as the "Construction Phase" of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has federal funds for the street improvements identified in Attachment A; and, 

WHEREAS, the City does not have the personnel or authority to be the Certifying Agent or perform the administrative 
tasks associated with the design and construction of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Public Works Department is certified by the Washington State Department of Transportation 
Highways and Local Programs to manage, document and otherwise administer federally funded contracts; and, 

WHEREAS, this Agreement will formally outline the participation and responsibilities of the Parties in the project. 

.NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED as follows: 

L DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK 

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT: The purpose of this agreement is to identify the scope and extent of services to be 
provided by the County to the City for administering the City's SR 20 INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, 
hereinafter identified as the "Project". The Engineering Division of the Skagit County Public Works Department, acting 
under their Certification of Acceptance Agreement with the Washington State Department of Transportation, shall 
provide all services necessary to comply with the requirements of the Federal Highway Administration and Washington 
State Department of Transportation for administration of the design and construction of the City's federally funded 
Project identified herein. 

The County is the approving authority in the following project items: 

a. Location and design. 
b. Utility agreements. 
c. Railroad agreements. 
d. Standard consulting engineering agreements. 
e. Public hearings, findings, and orders. 
f. Plans, specifications, and estimates. 

g. Advertisement and award of construction contracts. 
h. Construction administration. 
i. Construction material testing. 

STANDARDS AND REFERENCES: The County will administer the Project in accordance with the rules, regulations 
and procedures as required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT), WSDOT Highways and Local Programs, and the laws of the State of Washington. In general 
these rules, regulations and procedures are documented in the following publications. The latest editions of these 
publications shall be used: 

• • Local Agency Guidelines (M 36-63), Latest Revision, published by WSDOT Highways and Local Programs 
(LAG Manual). 

CAWINDOWSNTEMPintet:ocal.FIN.doe 

2 



12/29/2004 15:30 FAX SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS [a 004 

 

• Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and Municipal Construction, 2000 English Edition, published by 
WSDOT and Washington State Chapter APWA. 	

0 05093 
• Design Manual (M 22-01), Latest Revision, published by WSDOT 

• Standard Plans for Roads, Bridge, and Municipal Construction. (M21-01) 

• Plans Preparation Manual, (M22-31) 

• Construction Manual (M 41-01), Latest Revision, published by WSDOT Construction Office. 

It. DETAILED RELATIONSHIPS, SERVICES AND PRODUCTS: 

Project Documentation: Unless specifically noted otherwise, the City shall maintain original copies of all project 
documentation in the City's project files. Duplicate copies shall be transmitted to the County's Project Manager as 
required or indicated below. The City shall retain the documentation for a period of not less than three years from the 
final payment of any federal aid funds. 

Management Coordination: The County and City shall, by exchange of letters, identify the key management personnel 
with responsibility for the project. 

The City shall appoint a staff member (hereinafter referred to as "City Representative") to represent the City and serve 
as the County's main contact for the Project. The City Representative shall be responsible for providing information 
pertinent to the Project including plans, provisions, permits and other information of a similar nature for which the City 
maintains records to the County Project Manager. 

The City will be responsible for consultant selections, and contract negotiations and administration in accordance with 
WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines. The City will be the contracting party on agreements entered into for the purpose of 
accomplishing the work outlined in this agreement. The County shall review and approve the consultant selection 
process prior to the City proceeding with selecting a consultant. 

Federal Aid Agreement / Fund Obligation: The City will be responsible for obligating federal aid construction funds 
through WSDOT Highways and Local Programs by executing the appropriate Local Agency Agreement and/or 
Supplement thereto. 

The City shall be responsible for paying for the total cost of the Project. The total cost of the Project is defined as all 
related project costs including, but not limited to, preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition, permitting, 
construction, legal, administration, consultant engineering, environmental assessment, testing services and costs related 
to county, state and federal services. 

Project Design: The City shall be solely responsible for the conceptual and physical design of the project, and the 
specification of all construction and materials to be incorporated into the project. 

Plan Review: The County shall perform a detailed review of the Plans, Specifications and Estimates (P,S & E) for the 
Project to the extent that the P,S & E conforms to the requirements of FHWA and WSDOT Highways and Local 
Programs. The City'will be proVided with a written list of all discrepancies discovered by the County during 
The City shall be responsible for correcting, or causing the discrepancies to be corrected. 

The County Project Manager, the City Representative, other City and County Staff and consultant staff will meet on a 
regular basis to review the scope and progress of the work to ensure that the Project meets the objectives 	Ile City and 
County. The County will review and approve design plans at the 10% and 30% stage and design plans, specifications 
and the cost estimate at the 60%, 90% and final design stages. 

Contract Review: The City shall be responsible to ensure that the contract provisions are acceptable to the City's 
governing body, including review and acceptance by the City's Legal Counsel. The City shall provide written 

CAW1NDOWS1TEMINnterlocal F1N.doc 

3 



12/ 2 9/2004  15:31 FAX 	 SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS 
	

U005 

verification to the County that the contract documents are acceptable to the City. 
	 0 0 '5 0 9 3 

Environmental Review: The City shall be responsible for ensuring that all required environmental reviews have been 
completed. The City shall also be responsible for preparing and submitting the Local Agency Environmental . 	, to 	 hwa 

Right of Way Certification: The City is responsible for acquiring all the necessazy right of way for the project, and wi 
be responsible for obtaining the Right-of-Way Certification from WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. The City will 
forward a copy of the approved Right-of-Way Certification to the County. 

Prevailing Wages, Trainbig, Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Business Enterprises: The City will 
be ri..5-p.on6i-ole f9r ctrz‘utioo. 	conlplimee with kit:•:::.re 

	

pv:.n.•;• 	 .1`11,01,0„:•. 	 . , • 	.. : 	..:• 	..*. 

	

c 	•...: 	 OZ? 

!  
• . 	. 	: 	• 

	
• 

7e.,:71! 	fVr7
. 
 77.72.7111. W:717, 	 4717.77M7..75,F47.77790r77T 	07! 1772:71.;r7 •2 	 T."7.7!  • 	 ' 	"*.:,`7,7,-.77  >- 77, 



12/29/2004 15:31 FAX 
	

SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS 	 lj006 

• 

Local Programs and affected utilities. 
	 005093 

The City shall conduct the conference in accordance with LAG Manuel procedures, and shall take and prepare minutes 
of the conference for distribution to the parties. 

Notice to Proceed: At the pre-construction conference the City shall transmit to the Contractor a Notice to Proceed 
establishing the construction start date and computed completion dale. 

Materials Control and Contract Documentation: During the life of the contract, the City shall be responsible for 
preparing and maintaining all necessary reports, documents, records and estimates in accordance with the requirements 
of WSDOT Highways and Local Programs as set forth in the WSDOT Construction Manual as modified by the LAG 
Manual. The City shall perform all required quality control inspection and administrative tasks necessary to comply 
with WSDOT and FHWA requirements. 

The County may perform a detailed review of the materials control and contract documentation to the extent that the 
documents conform to the requirements of FHWA and WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. The City will be 
provided with a written list of all discrepancies discovered by the County during the review. Within 3 working days after 
the City has received the written list of all the discrepancies, the City shall provide the County a written response 
explaining the discrepancies or detailing how they will be corrected. The City shall be responsible for correcting, or 
causing the discrepancies to be corrected. 

Changed Conditions: Changed Conditions shall be defined us Minor and Major. Changed conditions that, in the 
estimation of the County, will not create additional costs, or that do not affect the engineering principles fundamental to 
the design shall be considered minor changes. Minor changed conditions will not be immediately reported to the County, 
but will be documented in the project records and as-built drawings. 

Changed Conditions that will result in increased costs, or that require consideration and input from the responsible 
design engineer shall be considered major changes. The City shall immediately notify the County of any major changed 
conditions encountered during construction 

Progress Payments and Retainage: The City shall request that the Contractor and consultants establish a monthly cut 
off date for pay estimates. The City shall prepare a monthly pay estimate for the contract. The pay estimate shall provide 
general contract information and information for each item of work regarding the contract quantity, quantity for the 
period, quantity to date, monetary amount for the period and monetary amount to date. The County shall review and 
approve all progress payments prior to payment by the City. 

The City shall be solely responsible for providing timely payment to the Contractor for the work performed and for 
withholding retainage from the payments in the amount and manner as required by Washington State Statutes governing 
Public Works Contracts. 

Federal Aid Billings: The City shall be solely responsible for preparing and submitting Federal Aid progress billings to 
WSDOT Highways and Local Programs. 

Contract Completion: Upon a finding by the City and the County that the work is physically complete, the following 
procedure shall be used: 

1) The City will provide a letter to the Contractor notifying the Contractor that the work is Physically Complete, 
and establishing the date of Physical Completion of the work. The letter will also notify the Contractor that all 
obligations under the contract must be satisfied in order to make the final payment on the contract_ And, that the 
Contractor and all sub-contractors are responsible for submitting their completed "Affidavit of Wages Paid" to 
the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries. The City shall also send a copy of this letter to the 
Washington State Department of Labor and Industries and to the County. 

2) Within IS days of the notice of Physical Completion to the Contractor, the City shall notify WSDOT Highways 
and Local Programs and arrange for final inspection by the Regional Highways and Local Programs Engineer. 

CNWINDOWSITEMPtiotalocal.FIN doc 

5 



12/29/2004 15:32 FAX 	 SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC INKS 	 tg 007 

The County shall be notified of the date of the final inspection and invited to attend. 	005093 
3) Upon satisfactory final inspection, and receipt by the City of all necessary documentation from the Contractor, 

the City will prepare the Final Pay Estimate and Final Contract Voucher for signature by the Contractor, and 
will forward the signed original Final Pay Estimate and Final Contract Voucher to the County, along with a 
letter of Contract Completion. Once the County has reviewed and approved these documents, the County will 
forward them for the City's signature. The City shall process the final payment as described under "Progress 
Payments and Retainage", and return the signed Contract Completion Letter to the Contractor. 

4) The City shall also forward a copy of the Completion letter to the Washington State Department of Revenue 
and request confirmation that the Contractor has paid all necessary sales tax for the project. 

Upon completion of the above process, and provided that there have been no claims or liens made against Contract 
Bond or Retainage, the City shall be responsible for releasing the Contract Bond and the Retainage in the time and 
manner required by Washington State statutes governing Public Works Contracts_ In the event that the City fails to 
receive any such releases and/or affidavit, the City shall notify both the County and the Agency to deterrr.:70. " -' 
of the missing documents. 

In the event that a claim or lien has been filed against the Contract Bond or Retainage, the County shall assist the City, as 
far as practical, with the resolution of the claim or lien. 

Project Management Review; If selected by WSDOT Highways and Local Programs for Project Management Review, 
the City %yin provide the project records for the Highways and Local Programs Area Engineer's review. The County will 
provide representation. The City shall correct any deficiencies in the project records identified by the review. 

Reimbursement of Costs by City: The City shall reimburse the County for all costs of direct and indirect labor, 
administration, equipment rental, engineering, materials and supplies for the worked performed by the County pursuant 
to this agreement. 

Liability: The City shall hold harmless and indemnify the County from any and all costs, claims, demands and 
obligations of any nature arising by reason of the negligent act or omission of the City, its employees, consultants or 
contractors relating to the subject matter of this contract causing injury to any person or property damage_ 

The County shall hold harmless and indemnify the City from any and all costs, claims, demands and obligations of any 
nature arising by reason of the negligent act or omission of the County, its employees, consultants or contractors relating 
to the subject matter of this contract causing injury to any person or property damage. 

Roadway Maintenance and Other Facilities: Upon completion of the Project, the City shall be responsible for 
maintenance of the street and other facilities. 

Property: Real and personal property purchased with City funds shall be the property of the City and shall remain with 
the City at the termination of this agreement. 

Termination: This agreement shall remain in effect until the Project is completed and accepted in writing by the 
Parties, 

_ . 
If this agreement is terminated by the City prior to the completion of the terms as outlined herein, the City shall 
reimburse the County for any costs incurred or that may be incurred as a result of the Project. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written below. 

DATED this 

 

day of 	  2000. 

  

CAWINDOWSITEMPtinterlocal.FIN.doc 

6 



VfEtY=, Chairman 

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 

SHARON puLoN, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

IC K. STENDAL, City Supervisor 

PATRICK HAN N, City Attorney 

CHAL A. MARTIN, P.E. 
Director/County Engineer 

Approved as to Cont 

VINCE CLAY 
Risk Manager 

ATTEST: 

HIL, Y A, TIOMAS 
Civil Deputy 

PATTI J. CHA 	F6 Clerk of the Board 

12/29/2004 15:32 FAX 
	

SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC IVKS 	 U.  008 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT OUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ROBERT HART, Commissioner 

TED W. ANDERSON, Commissioner 

005093 

Approved: 

ALICIA HUSCHKA 
Budget & Finance Director  

Approved as to Form: 

CARINDOWS:TEhiPlintalosaLFIN.dog 

7 



12/29/2004 15:32 FAX 	 SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS 
	

2009 

•• 

Attachment A 

005093 



005093 
720 Murdock Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
(360) 855-1661 
Fax: 855-0707 

12/29/2004 15:33 FAX 
	

SKAGIT COUNTY PUBLIC WKS 

Scope of Work 
CA Agreement between  City of Sedro-Woolley and Skagit County  

Task 1  

Intersection of SR-201 Skagit Steel Site 
.11 

Provide CA oversight between the City of Sedro-Woolley and Skagit County Public 
Works for the feasibility, design and construction of a four way intersection and fully 
actuated traffic signal. 

Funding will be through the Rural Economic Vitality Grant Program and local funds. 

Work shall progress as soon as the CA Agreement is signed and executed 

Task 2. 

Intersection improvements F&S Grade Road and SR-20. 

Provide CA oversight between the City of Sedro-Woolley and Skagit County Public 
Works for the feasibility, design and construction of a three-Way intersection and fully 
actuated traffic signal. 

Funding will be STP-U and local funds 

Work .shall progress as soon as STP-U funds are obligated for the feasibility study. 



Sedro-Woolley Police 
Department 

Memo CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7.00 P.M. COUNCITHAMBERS 
To: 	Mayor Dillon and the City Council 	 AGENDA NO. 	  

From: A/Chief Doug Wood 

Date: 1-7-05 

Re: 	Spillman public safety system order supplement 

Background and Situation 

In May of 1994 the Sedro-Woolley Police Department began using the Spillman system as our 
information system. All of our complaints and contact information is stored in this data base. We 
signed a contract with Skagit County, in 1994, and they purchase and maintain the software, hardware 
and maintain this great system. 

This order supplement replaces the contract that we have been operating under. This was done to 
accommodate changes in Skagit County Information Services organization, software updates and 
changes on our local operating systems which deal with some security issues with us updating our 
local system. 

Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends that the Council authorize Mayor Dillon to sign the order supplement with Skagit 
County 

• Page 1 



Skagit County 
Spillman Public Safety System Services 

ORDER SUPPLEMENT 

 

HJNG 

 

CSA NUMBER 04685 
SUPPLEMENT NUMBER 2 

Customer: 	City of Sedro-Woolley 

Address: 	720 Murdock Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

This Order Supplement is executed pursuant to the terms and conditions of Skagit County's 
Interlocal Cooperative and Customer Service Agreement (CSA). The parties acknowledge they 
have read and understand the terms and conditions contained therein. This Order Supplement 
sets forth additional provisions identifying services to be provided by the Information Services 
Division of Skagit County, to be performed for the City of Sedro-Woolley, hereinafter called 
"Customer." In the case of difference between the terms and conditions of the CSA and this 
Order Supplement, the Order Supplement shall take precedence. This Order Supplement replaces 
any previous agreements that deal with the subject matter of the Spillman Public Safety System 
or FORCE as it was previously called. 

For the purposes of this Order Supplement's relationship to the CSA, the "Provider" as defined in 
tia.2 CSA will he Skagit County. 

These services are for the exclusive use by the Customer. Use of these services by external 
Customer entities (e.g., municipalities, not-for-profit organizations, third parties, etc.) must be 
reviewed with Skagit County for approval. These entities may be required to sign an 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 1 



agreement with Skagit County. 
This agreement supersedes any existing agreements relating to agency usage of the Spillman 
Public Safety System or Skagit County Mug Shot System. 

1 	SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

This Order Supplement shall address Customer access to information derived from the 
Spillman Public Safety System, hereinafter known as the SPSS, Mug Shot System, 
hereinafter known as MSS. 

2 	GENERAL CONDITIONS 

2.1 USE OF SOFTWARE 

Use of the SPSS system shall be in accordance with the licensing policies of Spillman 
Technologies, Inc. and polices and procedures defined in the SPSS Policy and Procedure 
Manual. 

2.2 DATA AVAILABLE 

The County shall deliver data derived from the SPSS to network devices accessible to 
Customer personnel and software applications. If the Customer opts to utilize the MSS, 
then the County shall deliver Mug Shot pictures and related information identifying an 
individual. 

Extent of access shall conform to the regulations set forth in Chapter 13.50 RCW and other 
applicable federal, state, and local law. 

The Customer will not sell, give, loan, lease or otherwise transfer title, possession, or allow 
access or use of any of the data or screens by any person, firm, corporation or association 
without prior written approval of the County. 

Dissemination of data or information is the responsibility of the agency recording the data 
or information in accordance with the Customer Service Agreement and Public Disclosure 
Act, Chapter 42.17 RCW, and the Washington State Criminal Records Act, Chapter 10.97 
RCW. Other entities will not disclose data except through specific contracts, court orders 
or agreements with application and data owners. 

2.3 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 2 



Proprietary information disclosed by either party to the other for the purposes of this 
Agreement, which is clearly so identified in writing as proprietary, shall be protected by the 
recipient in the same manner and to the same degree that the recipient protects its own 
proprietary information. Such information will be disclosed only to those employees of the 
recipient requiring access thereto in order to perform this Agreement. All information or data 
on the County network shall be treated as proprietary regardless of ownership. 

2.4 CUSTOMER NOT TO HAVE OR USE LIST OF INDIVIDUALS FOR 
COMMERCIAL PURPOSES. 

The Customer agrees, warrants, promises and swears under penalty of perjury that it shall not 
use or allow others to use directly or indirectly the data, screens, or access thereto as a list or 
lists of individuals for commercial purposes. 

2.5 THE COUNTY MAY PRIORITIZE PROVISION OF ACCESS. 

The County may limit, control or prioritize the access described herein to any extent 
necessary to prevent such from unreasonably disrupting the County's operations and to 
prevent excessive interference with other essential functions of the County and to the extent 
necessary to provide access to its public records by other members of the public. 

This may include scheduled shutdowns for backups or maintenance and unscheduled 
shutdowns due to hardware or software malfunctions. 

2.6 ASSIGNMENT. 

The Customer agrees that it shall not assign any right or interest in this Agreement without 
the written permission of the County. Any attempted assignment by the Customer without 
written permission by the County, or its authorized agent, shall be wholly void and totally 
ineffective for all purposes. Furthermore, the Customer and the County agree that neither 
shall delegate any obligation which it has under this Agreement without the written 
permission of the other party. Any attempted delegation without written permission shall be 
wholly void and totally ineffective for all purposes. 

2.7 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

The information supplied by the County described herein is provided on an "as is" basis 
"with all faults". 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 3 



Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require the County to maintain the 
information or data in a more current form than the County shall from time to time 
determine. 

The obligations of the County and the rights and remedies of the Customer set forth in this 
clause are exclusive and in substitution for all the warranties, obligations and liabilities of the 
County and rights, claims and remedies of the Customer against the County express or 
implied, arising by law or otherwise, with respect to any data provided hereunder, including 
but not limited to any implied warranty arising from course of perfoiiiiance, courses of 
dealing or uses of trade, and, any obligation, liability, right, claim or remedy for tort, or for 
any actual or alleged infringement of patents, copyrights or similar rights of third parties, or 
for any other direct, incidental or consequential damages. 

2.8 TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT - EVENTS OF DEFAULT. 

This Agreement may be immediately terminated without notice upon an event of default, 
which events of default include but are not limited to the following: 

a. The Customer wrongfully uses the data provided by the County. 
b. Unauthorized copying of data. 
c. In the event this Agreement is determined to be in conflict with federal or state law, 

County resolutions or ordinances which are in effect at the time of this Agreement 
or may be imposed in the future. 

d. The Customer uses or attempts to use information provided in such a manner as to 
violate a taxpayer's right to privacy or to create an unfair competitive disadvantage 
for a taxpayer. 

e. The Customer sells, gives, leases, or loans access to the screens or the data 
contained therein to any person or in any way, directly or indirectly, allows copies 
to be made by any person without the express written approval of the County. 

f. The Customer allows access to the screens or the data contained therein, or any part 
thereof, to be used as a list of individuals for commercial purposes. 

g. Failure to conform to Regional Inter-Governmental Network (RIGN) security 
requirements, section 11. 

h. If the vendor of the SPSS changes its support, architecture, licensing, policy or 
creates any other condition that would create a situation where Skagit County could 
no longer meet the scope of work as defined in appendix A. 

3 	SERVICE AGREEMENT PERIOD 

This Agreement commences upon execution by signature of both parties and shall 
terminate on January, 1st  2008. The Customer may terminate this agreement prior to 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 4 



the termination date, with a 30 day written notice. Skagit County, may terminate this 
agreement with a 60 day written notice. 

4 SERVICE PROVISIONING 

Requests for new service, changes to existing service, or billing and service agreement 
changes should be submitted, in writing, to: 

Skagit County Information Services 

Attention: Michael Almvig, Manager 

700 South Second Street, RM 100 

Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

Phone (360) 336-9465 

FAX (360) 336-9490 

5 	SERVICE OFFERING AND RATES 

5.1 	SPILLMAN ACCESS SERVICE 

The SPSS shall be available 24 hours per day 7 days a week except during system failure 
or scheduled maintenance. 

Basic support shall consist of network management; SPSS account management, security 
management, application troubleshooting, network connectivity and management, 
network troubleshooting to the Customer Point of Presence, and capacity planning. Basic 
support shall apply to all Public Safety personnel who are employees of the Customer. 
Public Safety personnel are considered Law Enforcement, Prosecutors and Fire 
Personnel. 

Basic support for the SPSS shall be provided each business day from the hours of 8am to 
5PM Pacific Standard Time excluding Skagit County holidays and weekends. 

The basic scope of service for the SPSS is provided in Exhibit A, hereinafter, 
incorporated by reference. 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 5 



Basic rates for the SPSS access are reviewed in June of each year to derive budgetary 
estimates. Final rates are detellnined after the Board of County Commissioners have 
adopted the next years budget. Rates are subject to change based on costs incurred by the 
County. 

See Exhibit B, Hardware and Software Required to Access the SPSS  for hardware and 
software requirements. Please note that hardware and software requirements are subject 
to change. Skagit County will review and publish requirements in June of each year. 

5.2 MUGSHOT SERVICE (OPTIONAL SERVICE) 

5.2.1 MSS SERVICE SCOPE 

The MSS shall be available 24 hours per day 7 days a week except during system failure or 
scheduled maintenance. 

Skagit County will operate and maintain a system that will make available mug shots has 
derived from the Skagit County Jail. 

Basic support for the MSS consists of network management, MSS account management, 
security management, application troubleshooting, network connectivity and management, 
network troubleshooting to the Customer Point of Presence, and capacity planning. Basic 
support shall apply to all Law Enforcement personnel who are employees of the Customer. 

Basic support for the MSS shall be provided each business day from the hours of 8am to 
5PM Pacific Standard Time excluding Skagit County holidays and weekends. 

See Exhibit B, Hardware and Software Required to Access the MSS  for hardware and 
software requirements. Please note that hardware and software requirements are subject to 
change. Skagit County will review and publish requirements in December of each year. 

5.2.2 MSS SERVICE ESTIMATED COST 

The MMS Service will be billed based on actual costs incurred. 

Basic rates for the MSS access are reviewed in June of each year to derive budgetary 
estimates. Final rates are determined after the Board of County Commissioners have 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 6 



adopted the next years budget. Estimated rates are subject to change based on costs 
incurred by the County. 

Budgetary cost estimates are available upon request. 

5.3 CUSTOMER EQUIPMENT COSTS 

The Customer shall be totally responsible and liable for all costs incurred in the 
acquisition of its own equipment, including telephone lines and other supplemental 
equipment and the costs of connecting that equipment with the County's equipment. 
Where required by the County, the Customer will buy equipment specified by the County 
for this computer network access. The Customer will be responsible for trouble shooting 
and maintaining their equipment and data link. 

Equipment that is resident in County facilities shall be tagged with an inventory tag 
identifying that equipment as Customer owned. 

6 	BILLING GUIDELINES 

All billing for services shall be on a quarterly basis based on the actual expenditures for 
the previous quarter. 

6.1 	CALCULATIONS FOR SPSS BILLING 

The formula for SPSS Billing shall be: 

(TEQ — S) * AA/TA 

Where; 

TEQ = Total SPSS, RIGN, and Helpdesk Expenditures in Quarter 
S = Subsidies from 911 Center or other revenues (including grants) 
AA = Number of Agency Accounts 
TA = Total Number of Accounts 

6.2 CALCULATIONS FOR MUG SHOT BILLING 

The formula for MSS Billing shall be: 

((TEQ — S) * ACO)/ TCO 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 7 



Where; 

TEQ = Total Expenditures in Quarter 
S = Other external revenues (including grants) 
ACO = Agency Commissioned Officers 
TCO = Total Subscribed Commissioned Officers 

6.3 SERVICE ADDS/CHANGES 

Service additions or changes occurring on or before the 15th of the month will be charged 
for the full month. Additions or changes occurring after the 15th of the month will be 
invoiced starting the following month. All service additions or changes must be submitted 
in writing. All additions and changes will be billed on a time and materials basis. 

6.4 SERVICE CANCELLATION 

Services canceled on or before the 10th of the first month of the quarter will not be 
charged for the quarter. Services canceled after the 10th of the first month of the quarter 
will be charged for the full quarter. All service cancellations must be submitted in writing. 

7 	NETWORK AVAILABILITY 

The SPSS and MSS availability objective is 99.8% seven days a week, 24 hours per day. 

7.1 NETWORK MAINTENANCE 

The SPSS, MSS, and Skagit County networks will be available as set forth in Section 7 
with the following exceptions: 

7.1.1 SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE 

Skagit County Information Services reserves the right to schedule preventative 
maintenance on all systems. Preventative maintenance will be scheduled a minimum two 
weeks in advance and attempt to minimize impacts to each user agency. The Customer 
must notify Skagit County Infoiiiiation Services one week prior to the scheduled 
maintenance window, if the Customer requires the SPSS or MSS to be available during 
scheduled maintenance. Scheduled maintenance may result in loss of service to the SPSS 
and/or MSS for a period of time. 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 8 



7.1.2 SOFTWARE AND HARDWARE UPGRADES 

Software and Hardware upgrades differ from normally scheduled maintenance, in 
systems will be unavailable for the duration of the upgrade. It is conceivable that an 
upgrade may take a couple of days. In the event of an upgrade, the Customer will be 
infolined a month prior to the scheduled upgrade time. Skagit County will make every 
reasonable attempt to schedule the upgrade to minimize impacts to each Customer, 
however, due to the wide use of this system and the minimal amount of support 
personnel, there will be Customer impacts. 

7.1.3 EMERGENCY MAINTENANCE 

Emergency maintenance will be coordinated with the Customer whenever possible. 

7.2 CUSTOMER MAINTENANCE DEMARCATION POINT 

Skagit County will repair, configure and maintain the SPSS, RIGN and MSS from each 
system to the Customer's' Ethernet side of the last network device owned and maintained 
by Skagit County. Responsibility to repair, configure or maintain Customer workstations, 
electronic messaging systems, network equipment, network transmission lines, printing 
devices, smart devices, or any other equipment or software application resident on 
Customers network shall be the responsibility of the Customer. 

8 SUPPORT COVERAGE 

8.1 SKAGIT COUNTY HELP DESK COVERAGE 

The Skagit County help desk is staffed approximately 8 hours per day, five days a week. 
Support hours are from 8:00 AM - 4:30 PM. The phone number is: 

(360) 419 - 3338 

Guaranteed availability of the Help Desk personnel is not possible due to staffing 
constraints. The help desk will log computer and network problems and dispatch 
problems to the responsible engineer. If the help desk technician is away from the phone 
for any reason, the caller will be asked to leave a voice mail message. The help desk will 
return the call as soon as possible. 

The Customer may also send electronic mail to us regarding problems at 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 9 



HELPDESK@CO.SKAGIT.WA.US. This address is monitored during business hours 
(8:30 AM - 4:30 PM) Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

The Customer is responsible for providing a current contact list to Skagit County 
Information Services. 

8.2 AFTER HOURS COVERAGE 

All calls for after hours support should be made to the Skagit County Help Desk Number 
as provided in section 8.1. The Helpdesk and support staff will log and start to resolve 
any issues on the next business day after the call has been received. 

After hour basic support is not part of this agreement. After hours support is covered in a 
separate service agreement. 

9 CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT 

All configuration changes to the SPSS and MSS system will be made by Skagit County 
Information Services in coordination with the Customer. The Customer will provide 
Skagit County Information Services with a primary and alternate contact name of 
authorized personnel who can coordinate/request changes to the current network. 

10 DISASTER RECOVERY 

Skagit County Information Services backs up the SPSS and MSS system to tape on a 
nightly basis. These tapes are saved for a period of three months and then rotated. The 
County will not maintain information longer than this time unless the Customer requires 
data be dumped to tape for archival purposes. 

11 SECURITY AND INTEGRITY 

The Skagit County network is protected from the Internet with firewall security to 
prevent unauthorized access from the Internet. The Customer is responsible for 
securing their organization's computer resources against all unauthorized access. 

If the Customer determines to disconnect from the Skagit County RIGN they must 
notify the County immediately. Such action will terminate this agreement. 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 10 



11.1 AUTHORIZED USE 

This agreement is intended for use by the Customer's employees only. All accounts must 
be approved by Skagit County Information Services. 

11.2 INDIRECT ACCESS 

Customer will take measures to prevent unauthorized third party indirect access to the 
SPSS or MSS system. Examples of this would be gateways, dial-up, or cascaded telnet 
sessions where the originator is not a Customer authorized user of the RIGN, but whose 
resultant IP address would appear to the network as being the Customer's address. 

11.3 USER ACCOUNT ACCESS TO SPSS SYSTEM 

Each user who has an account of the SPSS or MSS systems shall have a unique user 
account with a unique password. This account is used within the SPSS or MSS to 
determine the system rights of that user and to provide a method of accounting for access 
to information. Sharing of accounts within an agency for the purposes of reducing access 
cost is expressly prohibited. 

11.4 FIREWALL MANAGEMENT 

Skagit County will attach Customer network to a Firewall device that is resident on the 
RIGN. Skagit County will manage this device and work with Customer technology staff 
to resolve networking issues that may appear on Customer network. 

The firewall is intended to protect the Customer from other RIGN members that may 
have contracted malicious software applications. The firewall is also intended to allow 
legitimate governmental network services, such as the SPSS, to be passed through. All 
services that will be passed to Customer from the RIGN will be coordinated with 
Customer technology staff 

Skagit County will facilitate management of the firewall. If another governmental entity 
and the Customer wish to cooperatively share a technology service, Skagit County will 
configure the firewall to pass the service. In order for Skagit County to configure the 
firewall, the other governmental entity must be an RIGN member or a member of the 
State Inter-Governmental Network. Skagit County will not configure the firewall to pass 
traffic onto the Internet through the State Inter-Governmental Network, unless the 
Customer has a specific agreement with the State of Washington for Internet access. 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 11 



11.5 ORIGINATING AGENCY IDENTIFIERS 

To accommodate management of the Originating Agency Identifiers (ORI) as required by 
federal and state law enforcement agencies. It is required that each terminal, workstation, 
laptop, tablet pc, pocket pc, or other device that will require use the SPSS State Access 
application to access state or federal criminal history or other information that requires an 
ORI designation be statically addressed. 

The static address must be at the Internet Protocol address level not at the device Ethernet 
(MAC) level. Please have your technical support staff contact Skagit County Information 
Services if there are any questions regarding this protocol. 

Network devices that do not require access to State or Federal criminal histories or other 
information delivered by the State Access application do not need an ORI and 
consequently do not need to be statically mapped. 

11.6 REGIONAL INTER-GOVERNMENTAL NETWORK PROTECTION 

To protect the RIGN and other entities that may be attached to the RIGN from malicious 
attacks directly or indirectly originating from within the Customer's private network, it is 
expected that the Customer will take reasonable measures to protect their computer systems 
from malicious software. 

Reasonable measures include, but are not limited to: 

• Timely operating systems updates 
• Virus detection software on all personal computers, workstations and servers 
• Timely and periodic updates to virus detection software 
• Firewall technology between Customer's network and any other network that 

Customer is connected to that they do not directly administer. This includes the 
Internet. 

• Education of Customer employees on safe computing practices 
• Policies in place that address software installation, use of software, and malicious 

activity reporting 

12 CUSTOMER FIELD OFFICE ENVIRONMENT 

The Customer is responsible for providing an acceptable operating environment for all 
equipment used to access the SPSS or MSS. The Customer is responsible for the 
security, power quality and cleanliness of the equipment environment. Equipment 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 12 



replacement due to damage resulting from, but not limited to, power surges, water 
damage, improper handling or extremely high temperatures is the responsibility of the 
Customer. 

13 SUPPLEMENT CHANGES 

All changes to this Order Supplement shall be mutually agreed upon in writing in 
advance. All such changes shall take precedence over this original Order Supplement. 

14 SERVICES REQUESTED 

I request Skagit County to perform the following services on behalf of the Customer. Please 
place a "Yes" or "No", in the column titled REQUEST SERVICE to identify your acceptance of 
a service. 

Please authorize acceptance of services by initialing in the row of the service desired. 

Service Request 
Service 

Initials 

5.1 Spillman Basic Support YES 
5.2 MUG Shot Service Support 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 13 



ACCEPTANCE 

Customer hereby acknowledges and accepts the terms and conditions of this Order Supplement. 

CUSTOMER: 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 	 SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

DON MUNKS, Chairman 

Approved as to foiiii: 	 KENNETH A. DAHLSTEDT, Commissioner 

City of Sedro-Woolley Attorney 	TED W. ANDERSON, Commissioner 

Approved: 
Attest: 

By: 	  
(Department Head) 

City of Sedro-Woolley Clerk 
By: 

	

	  
(Skagit County Sheriff) 

ATTEST: 	 By: 	  
(Budget & Finance Director) 

JoAnne Giesbrecht, Clerk 
Board of County Commissioners 	By: 	  

(Risk Manager) 

Approved as to Form Only: 

By: 	  
Civil Deputy 

Order Supplement for SPSS Services 
Page 14 



EXHIBIT A 
2004 Rate Schedule for SPSS Support 

Installation Services for the SPSS System, Time and Materials. 
- Installation Services include all work in setting up the SPSS to deliver information to 
the Customer. This includes configuring network and security equipment to pass SPSS 
information and troubleshooting network equipment. All work will be performed on a 
time and materials basis, see Table 1 for hourly support costs. 
- Configuration of the Customer's workstations and network equipment is generally 
performed by the Customer. Skagit County will provide specific configuration 
information to the Customer so that this can be accomplished in an expedient manner. 
- Development (including requirements gathering, analysis, design, and implementation) 
and testing of a process that will format SPSS data for delivery to the customer. This 
includes work to include frequency of delivery. Customer is responsible to access data 
file and process it for their internal needs. 
- Connectivity to the Regional Inter-Governmental Network will be accomplished on a 
time and materials basis. This applies to new installations only. 

Basic SPSS access based on 1 user (Session). 
- Includes network management, SPSS account management, SPSS software and 
hardware upgrades, security management, application troubleshooting, network 
connectivity and management, network troubleshooting to the Customer Point of 
Presence, and capacity planning. Software and hardware required to access the SPSS 
system must be purchased separately by the Customer. 
- Includes Network troubleshooting and configuration on the Skagit County Regional 
Inter-Governmental Network 
- Includes access to the Skagit County Helpdesk to request for assistance on Spillman or 
Mugshot related questions. Do to the nature of the SPSS, the Skagit County Helpdesk 
will log the incident and forward the request for service to an application engineer to 
work on issue resolution. 

Note  
The Customer is responsible for troubleshooting, management, and operation of their 
equipment. 



EXHIBIT A 
2004 Rate Schedule for SPSS Support 

Table 1— 2004 Hourly Support Costs for Information Services Personnel 

Name Hourly Rate 
Overtime 

Rate Function Performed 
Almvig, Michael 52.00 $ 	52.00 Project Management 
Bogan, Lewis 39.00 $ 	58.00 Network Support 
Coryell, Steve 26.00 $ 	38.00 Application Support 

Duncan, Steven 35.00 $ 	35.00 Software Development 
Graham, Tom 33.00 $ 	49.00 Application Support 
Harrell, Tony 28.00 $ 	42.00 Application Support 
Holmes, John 41.00 $ 	41.00 Software Development 
Johns, Ryan 27.00 $ 	40.00 Spillman Public Safety 
KirKer, John 33.00 $ 	49.00 Software Development 

MacGavin, Charles $ 43.00 $ 	43.00 High Level Application 
Radcliffe, Karen 33.00 $ 	49.00 Database, Financials 

Stamey, Christopher $ 33.00 $ 	33.00 Financials 
Stubben, Kristen 25.00 $ 	37.00 Accounting/Procurement 

Young, Brian 31.00 $ 	46.00 Web Development 
Subject to change January 1', 2005 and each year following 

Rates are based on the actual cost incurred per year by Skagit County to support the Spillman 
Public Safety System in a year period. Rates are subject to change. 



EXHIBIT B 
Hardware and Software Required to Access the SPSS and MSS 

Basic SPSS Hardware and Software Requirements (As of July 2004). Requirements subject 
to change. 

Table 2 - Workstation Requirements 

Requirements for the 
Client PC 

Type of User 

General user 
Computer-lided 
Dispatch user 

User working. with 
- 

multiple screens 

CPU 333 MHz 333 MHz 333 MHz 

...\:eir.or: 64 MB 12S 'MB 12S MB 

E:?..ernet network card 10 	100 :... 	...o 10.'' CC. Mbo 10 100 .:!.,ft-.0s 

Network connection to 

*UNIX server 

10 :N.Ibps 100 :Naps 100 Mips 

Scree:. resolution !pixels) S00x600 or grea7er 1024x76S or greater 1024x 76S or greh;er 

C•olors pron.-ided by 

monitor and video card 

256 or more 256 or more 256 or more 

Hard disk space 20C ..\:B 100 MB 200 MB 

.\:onit Cf : 5-1nc 17-inc::: muitmum 21- 

Mc I:. recommended 

17-incll minimum 

21-inc 1-1 recommended 

Printers Supported — 

• Hewlett-Packared printers with a Jet Direct network capability. Printers must have static 
Internet Protocol addresses. 

Summit Requirements - 

• SUMMIT runs on a TCP/IP network with any of the following operating systems: Windows 2000, 
Windows 98, Windows NT®, or Windows XP Professional. 

MSS Requirements — 

The MSS will run with any system that supports Internet Explore V6.0 or above. 



EXHIBIT C 
MSS Cost Sheet 

Installation Services for the MSS System, Time and Materials. 
- Installation Services include all work in setting up the MSS to deliver information to the 
Customer. This includes configuring network and security equipment to pass MSS 
information and troubleshooting network equipment. All work will be performed on a 
time and materials basis, see Exhibit A, Table 1 for hourly support costs. 
- Configuration of the Customer's workstations and network equipment is generally 
perfoiiiied by the Customer. Skagit County will provide specific configuration 
information to the Customer so that this can be accomplished in an expedient manner. 
- Development (including requirements gathering, analysis, design, and implementation) 
and testing of a process that will deliver MSS data to the customer. This includes work to 
include frequency of delivery. Customer is responsible to access data file and process it 
for their internal needs. 

Basic MSS access based on 1 user (Session). 
- Includes network management, MSS account management, MSS software and hardware 
upgrades, security management, application troubleshooting, network connectivity and 
management, network troubleshooting to the Customer Point of Presence, and capacity 
planning. Software and hardware required to access the MSS system must be purchased 
separately by the Customer. 
- Includes Network troubleshooting and configuration on the Skagit County Regional 
Inter-Governmental Network 

Note 
The Customer is responsible for troubleshooting, management, and operation of their 
equipment. 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

720 Murdock Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 (360) 855-1661 

Memorandum 

To: 	Mayor and City Council 

From: Patrick Hayden 

Date: 1/7/2005 

Re: 	Trail Road Property 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

",:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
:AGENDA NO. 	  

I. Issue: Should the City authorizing Mayor Dillon to extend the Earnest Money Agreement for 
the Trail Road house with Bill Rimmer/assigns through March 31, 2005, on the conditional that 
the Buyer pays additional costs for the ULID (interest, etc.). 

II. Background: The purchaser, Bill Rimmer, is still intent on purchasing this property, but 
wants to extend closing to March 31, 2005, to coincide with his availability of funds. I 
recommend that we agree to this extension, so long as additional interest or penalty for the ULID 
1994-2 is added to the closing sale price. Mr. Rimmer agrees to this condition. (The ULID 
payoff was factored into the sale price. 

III. Recommended Action: Motion authorizing Mayor Dillon to extend the closing date for the 
Ernest Money Agreement for the sale of the Trail Road property to March 31, 2005, on the 
condition that any additional interest and/or penalty for ULID 1994-2 is added to the closing sale 
price. 





CITY OF • 
.0.10RO-WOOLL Ittlonor To TliE Nome/44p./ 

	CITY OF SEDRO-WOOD LFY 

Public Works and Engineering Depaitinent 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

720 Murdock Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
DATE: 	January 6, 2005 	 REGULAR MEETING 

TO: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 	 JAN 1 2 2005 

"I:00 	COUNCIL 
FROM: 	Staff ,/eir____e2 	

P.M.P. 
 AGENDA NO. 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Extension of Interim Moratorium on New Subdivisions Served 
by Township and Metcalf Streets Sewer 

Issue: 

In December, the City Council elected to extend the Moratorium on Subdivisions served by the 
Township and Metcalf Sewer mains for another 6 months. It is now time for the public hearing 
on this extension. Following the public hearing, findings of fact will be adopted by resolution. 

Background: 

As you know, the City has real problems with sewer capacity in the two main truck lines serving 
the City. 

This extension removes a portion of the City from the initial Moratorium area, and we are 
working at designing sewer upgrades to these sewer mains, and hope to begin the major work on 
the upgrades once funding for the construction is secured by Council. 

One section of the Metcalf sewer main along SR-20 and West Moore Street requires upgrading 
prior to 'turning on' the new Garden of Eden area (West Jones Road) sewage pump station. This 
will be the next section to be designed for construction. The Sterling Street trunk line (part of 
the Township Street sewer main) is nearing completion of design. 

Recommended Action: 

Motion to pass the attached resolution, adopting findings of fact in support of Ordinance  10  - 

RIB:rjb 

Y:\COUNCIL\050106-Public  Hearing-Moratorium.doc 



RESOLUTION No. 

AN RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY ENTERING FINDINGS OF FACT IN SUPPORT 
OF A MORATORIUM ON SUBDIVISIONS IN CERTAIN AREAS SERVED BY THE TOWNSHIP STREET 

AND METCALF STREET SEWER MAINS FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS AND REQUIRING NEW 
APPLICATIONS TO BE ACCOMPANIED BY CONFIRMATION FROM THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

THAT LINE CAPACITY IS AVAILABLE, AS ENACTED BY ORDINANCE No. 1494-04. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley enacted Ordinance No. 1474-04 on 
June 9, 2004, imposing a sanitary sewer moratorium on the Metcalf and Township Street lines 
for a period of six months, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley enacted Ordinance No. 1494-04 on 
December 8, 2004, extending the sanitary sewer moratorium on the Metcalf and Township Street 
lines for a period of six months, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley has held a public hearing for the 
purpose of taking testimony about the moratorium as required by law, within sixty days of 
passage, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley finds that the moratorium should 
continue for an additional period of six months, while it addresses the necessity of construction 
of improvements to the effected lines; now, therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, DO 
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. 	Findings. The City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley finds as follows: 

a. that the Metcalf Street and Township Street sewer mains are surcharging, based on the 
study by Pace Engineering and the report of city staff, and 

b. that land use subdivisions which use these mains are occurring or are expected to occur 
at an very fast rate, and 

c. that if no action is taken the expansion resulting from new subdivisions will occur 
before the capacity in the Metcalf Street and Township Street lines is increased to the level 
needed to service these new subdivisions, and 

d. that failure to require these lines to be improved concurrent with new development will 
result in increased costs to the citizens of Sedro-Woolley, an increased risk of health problems, 
and a decrease in the quality of the sewer system, and 

e. that a temporary provision of a moratorium on new subdivisions served by these lines 
and other requirements is in the interests of the health, safety and welfare of the City, and 



f. that City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley should affirm as a temporary measure 
as authorized by RCW 36.70A.390, on an emergency basis, a limited moratorium on new 
subdivisions served by the Township Street and Metcalf Street lines as extended by Ordinance 
No. 1494-04. 

Section 2. 	Exceptions. The City Council has identified four developments which have vested, 
been previously approved, or for which the applicant has relied on representations which would render 
a moratorium unfair or subject the City to substantial risk if further development was prohibited. The 
following applications are not covered by the moratorium of Ordinance No. 1494-04, provided, as set 
forth in Section 4 of that ordinance. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	 , 2005. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 





CM/ OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

720 Murdock Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 (360) 855-1661 

Memorandum 	 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Mayor Dillon and City Council 

Patrick Hayden / Staff 

1/6/2005 

Stanislaw / Janicki Annexation 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL cHAIVIEsERS 
AGENDA NO. 	t P  

I. Issue: Should the City Council complete the Janicki/Stanislaw Properties Annexation by passage of the 
annexation ordinance? 

II. Background: To date the Mayor and City Council has approved/completed the following: 

a. Accepted a notice of intent to annex property; 

b. Accepted a petition for annexation for property form consenting owners; 

c. Passed a resolution, following a public hearing, expressing intent to annex property of the 
owners who signed either the notice or petition; 

d. Approved and executed an agreement with Skagit County to share the cost of 
transportation and storm water infrastructure for Fruitdale Road and McGarigle Road; and 

e. Completed a public hearing before the Washington Boundary Review Board of Skagit 
County which combined additional territory to the annexed area at the request of Skagit 
County. 

The next task is to pass the annexation ordinance. A copy is attached for your consideration. 

The issues have been discussed many times. In short summary, this area consists of developed and 
undeveloped residential and industrial lands, and is served on the perimeter by City sanitary sewer. 
Skagit County has agreed to share, on a 50-50 basis, the cost of improving the arterial roads upon 
annexation, and the BRB has extended the boundaries of the annexation to include the roads and the 
areas westward to the present city limits. A major local employer needs the annexation to complete 
improvements for expansion, and has been discussing the controversial aspects of this expansion with 
its neighbors. Other cities are courting the industry. 

Note that, consistent with the City contract with Waste Management, the City is giving notice of its 
intent to assume jurisdiction of the solid waste services from Waste Management in an agreed-upon 
time frame. 

1 



The previous City actions and Council approvals have brought the City to this point, where passage of 
this ordinance is the next step. 

I am attaching the BRB decision and Interlocal Agreement with Skagit County. 

III. Proposed Action: Passage of an annexation ordinance entitled: An ordinance of the City of 
Sedro-Woolley, Washington, annexing real property contiguous to the eastern portion of the City, and 
adopting a proposed land use zoning regulation for the real property, and subjecting the property to 
its pro-rata share of city indebtedness. 

• Page 2 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, ANNEXING REAL PROPERTY 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE EASTERN PORTION OF THE CITY, AND ADOPTING A PROPOSED LAND USE 
ZONING REGULATION FOR THE REAL PROPERTY, AND SUBJECTING THE PROPERTY TO ITS PRO- 

RATA SHARE OF CITY INDEBTEDNESS. 

WHEREAS, Stanislaw Properties LLC, et. al., own real property that is contiguous to the 

City and within the urban growth area; and 

WHEREAS, Stanislaw Properties LLC, et. al., initiated proceeding to annex the real 

property to the City by filing a notice of intention to begin annexation proceedings; and 

WHEREAS, the City held a meeting with the property owner as required by RCW 

35A.14.120; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved an Annexation Petition between the property 

owner and the City; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner filed a Petition for Annexation with the City; and 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2004 pursuant to notice required by law, the City Council held a 

public hearing on the proposed annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the Petition for Annexation meets the 

requirements of RCW Chapter 35.13.125-.150 and is sufficient according to the requirements of 

RCW 35.13.130; and 

WHEREAS, at the public hearings, the City Council heard and considered comments 

regarding the annexation and the proposed zoning regulation; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the best interests and general welfare of 

the City and of the real property will be served by the annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the Boundary Review Board invoked jurisdiction, held a public hearing and 

by decision issued in their File No. 04-10, approved with modified boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Skagit County have entered into an interlocal agreement to 

resolve issues related to transportation improvements for Fruitdale Road and McGarigle Road; 

now, therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY DO HEREBY 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 



Section 1: Intention to Annex Territory. The unincorporated territory legally 

described on Exhibit A and depicted on Exhibit B, both attached hereto and made a part hereof 

("annexation area"), are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

Section 2: Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Designations. The Comprehensive Plan 

and zoning classifications as currently designated on the most recently approved zoning and land 

use map are hereby adopted for the annexed area described above. 

Section 3. Taxation and Indebtedness. Pursuant to the terms of the annexation petition, 

all property within the territory annexed shall be assessed and taxed at the same rate and on the 

same basis as other property within the City, including assessments for taxes and payment of any 

bonds issued or debts contracted prior to or existing as of the date of annexation. 

Section 4. Solid Waste Franchise. The City hereby gives notice of its intent, pursuant 

to written agreement, to assume from Waste Management of Washington, Inc. d/b/a Waste 

Management of Skagit County, a Delaware corporation: 

a. Solid Waste collection from residential and commercial Customers within territory to 

be annexed ten (10) years from the Date of Annexation; and 

b. Solid Waste collection for commercial Drop Box Customers located in the City limits 

of Sedro-Woolley, as now existing or hereafter annexed, for a period of five (5) years from the 

Date of Annexation. 

Section 5. Authority and Duties of Mayor and City Clerk. Pursuant to RCW 

35A.14.700, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and file the 

required annexation certificates and required attachments with the Office of Financial 

Management. The City Clerk is also directed to file a certified copy of this ordinance with the 

Board of Commissioners for Skagit County. 

Section 6. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 

invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 

section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 7: Effective Date: This ordinance shall take effect five days after its passage 

and publication as provided by law. 



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR ON 

JANUARY 12th, 2005. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AT TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 



ANNEXATION BOUNDARIES 

Those portions of the Northeast 1/4  and the South /2 of Section 18 and the North 1/2  of 
Section 19, all in township 35 North, Range 5 East W.M., more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at the point of intersection of the North line of State Highway 20 with the East 
line of Fruitdale Road, which point is in the Southeast 1/4  of the Southeast 1/4  said Section 
18; thence North along the East line of said Fruitdale Road to the North line of the South 
/2 of the Northeast 1/4  of said Section 18; thence West along said North line to the West 
line of said Fruitdale Road; thence South along said West line to the intersection with the 
Northerly line of McGarigle Road; thence Southwesterly along the Northerly line of 
McGarigle Road to the West line of the Plat of Knowltons First Addition as per plat 
recorded in Volume 7 of Plats, page 59, records of Skagit County, extended Northerly; 
thence southerly and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
along said West line and said West line extended to the North line of said Section 19; 
thence West along said North line to a point 1350 feet East of the Northwest corner of 
said Section 19; thence South 1 degree 20'00" West parallel with the West line of said 
subdivision and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley a 
distance of 673.55 feet; thence South 57 degrees 48'32" West a distance of 340.07 feet; 
thence Southerly and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley to 
the North line of State Highway 20; thence Northeasterly along said North line to the 
Point of Beginning. 

Situate in the County of Skagit, State of Washington 

Exhibit A 





BRB Decision 



WASHINGTON STATE BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD 
FOR 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

302 South First Street, Mount Vernon, WA 98273-3805 
(360) 336-9384 FAX (360) 336-9469 

MINIO1111311•1111111IIIIMEMEME• MMMMMMMMMMMMMM •11•11••••••1•111•11111111111N•1111111•11INEUE MEE EMEEMEESEMEMI 

December 8, 2004 

Honorable Sharon Dillon, Mayor 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
720 Murdock Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

RE: 	HEARING DECISION 
FILE NO. 04-10 CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY; Annexation (Janicki) 

Attached please find the Hearing Decision approving the above referenced proposal as modified, 
with the correct legal description attached. This document was filed at the County 
Commissioners' office on December 8, 2004. There is a 30 day appeal period before this 
decision is final. 

Please have your staff record your final ordinance or resolution completing this annexation, and 
send me a copy of the recorded document so that I can distribute it among interested county 
departments. 

If you have questions, please give me a call. 

Verj truly yours, 

ot t' /7  
Carole A. Korelin 
Planner for the Board 

Cc: Lacy Lahr, Planner 
Patrick Hayden, Attorney-at-Law 



PROCEEDINGS OF THE 
WASHINGTON STATE BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD 

FOR SKAGIT COUNTY 

IN RE: CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY 
	

FILE NO. 04-10 
Proposed Annexation 
Janicki 
	

RESOLUTION AND 
Skagit County, Washington 

	
HEARING DECISION 

The Notice of Intention filed on August 26, 2004 as Boundary Review Board File No.04-10 
proposed the annexation of certain territory known as. "Janicki" by the City of Sedro Woolley, Skagit 
County, Washington. On September 30, 2004, the Boundary Review Board received a written request 
from the Skagit County Board of Commissioners requesting that jurisdiction be taken and a public hearing 
be held, for the purpose of modifying the proposed boundaries. 

After notice duly given, a hearing was held on November 15, 2004 before a quorum of the 
Boundary Review Board at the Skagit County Administration Building, Hearing Room C, Mount Vernon, 
Washington. On the basis of testimony, evidence and exhibits presented at said hearing, and the materials 
in said File No. 04-10, it is the decision of the Board that the action proposed in said Notice of Intention be, 
and the same is, hereby approved as modified. 

FACTORS AFFECTING THIS PROPOSAL 

In reaching this decision, the Board has considered the many factors prescribed in RCW 36.93.170. 
The following have been selected for particular attention: 

Land Area, Population and Population Density 

This 102 acre annexation property currently has 99 residences, six businesses and a population of 210. 
The primary purpose for annexation is industrial development through the expansion of Janicki Industries. 

Land Uses 

The subject area is currently a combination of industrial, commercial and residential. The surrounding area 
includes a public school, a golf course, rodeo grounds, and residential areas. 



JANICKI ANNEXATION 
(Approved with Modifications) 

Comprehensive Plans and Zoning 

Skagit County 

The Notice of Intention lists "Urban Growth Area" as the current zoning for the subject area, and 
"Unincorporated Urban Growth Area" for the County's Comprehensive Plan designation. 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

The City's Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1997 and amended in 2003. This proposal is consistent 
with the City's plan for accommodating future population and employment. Upon annexation there will be 
a zoning change from industrial to residential on at least one parcel. 

Topography, Natural Boundaries and Drainage Basins  

The area is within the Brickyard Creek drainage basin. The topography is mostly flat, and there are no 
streams on the property. Boundaries are roads on the east and south, roadway contiguous to city boundary 
to the north and city boundary along property lines to the west. 

Proximity to Other Populated Areas 

Bordered on two sides by the current city boundary and on a third side by State Route 20, the subject area is 
in close proximity to urban services and community facilities provided by the City of Sedro-Woolley. 
Upon annexation city library privileges will extend into the area. 

Need for Municipal Services 

Much of the area is currently being served by city sewer. Changes in services upon annexation will include 
availability of sewer service to residences which currently are not connected. City police will patrol the 
area on a regular basis, and city fire, building and sewer departments will be active in the area. Solid waste 
will be provided within the next ten years. 
Skagit County PUD is the water purveyor and will continue to serve the area. 

Probable Effect of Proposal on Cost and Adequacy of Services 

Transportation 

A major annexation concern of the City's was the condition of the roads, which have not been upgraded 
recently and are in need of attention. Through an interlocal annexation agreement between the City and the 
County this issue, among others, has been addressed and a service agreement acceptable to both 
jurisdictions has been reached. 

2 



JANICKI ANNEXATION 
(Approved with Modifications) 

Sewer — Sewer lines are already in place along the length of the annexation area along both Highway 20 on 
the south and McGarigle Road on the north. 

Water — The area is included in the adopted Water System Plan, and annexation is consistent with the plan. 
This annexation will not require increased water capacity or additional improvements. 

Police Protection — The Sedro-Woolley Police will maintain patrol and response in the area. The record 
indicates no need for increased police officers. 

Fire Protection — the City currently provides fire protection by contract with Skagit County Fire Protection 
District 8. Once the area is within the city's boundary allocation of tax revenue will change accordingly. 
The Fire District expressed serious concerns regarding the boundaries of the original proposal, however the 
District "strongly supports" the annexation as modified to create logical service boundaries 

OBJECTIVES 

The decision of the Washington State Boundary Review Board for Skagit County tends to 
accomplish pertinent objectives specified in RCW 36.93.180. The particularly significant objectives in this 
proposal are as follows: 

Preservation of Natural Neighborhoods and Communities 

The entire land area between Fruitdale Road, McGarigle Road, State Highway 20 and the current city 
boundary constitutes a natural neighborhood by its proximity and location. The annexation proposal as 
originally submitted by the City left large holes in the boundaries on every side of this isolated land area. 
These areas, bounded by roads and city limits, could easily be defined as unincorporated "islands". 
Modification of the original boundaries to include these areas preserves the natural community under a 
single jurisdiction. 

This decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.180(1). 

Use of Physical Boundaries, Including But Not Limited to Bodies of Water, Highways and Land 
Contours  

The original proposal made use of property lines in several areas, creating the aforementioned holes in the 
boundaries. As modified, the proposal's boundaries are made up entirely of roads, including all right-of—
ways, on three sides. The entire west side, using property lines, is contiguous to the current city boundary. 

This Decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.180(2) 

Creation and Preservation of Logical Service Areas  

The original annexation proposal would have created service boundaries for the City, County and the Fire 

3 



JANICKI ANNEXATION 
(Approved with Modifications) 

District that under no circumstances could have been considered to be "logical". This is acknowledged by 
all three jurisdictions. As modified, logical service areas are created to meet the service needs of all 
affected jurisdictions. 

This Decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.180(3) 

Prevention of Abnormally Irregular Boundaries 

By creating "holes" in the City's new boundaries the original proposal created abnormally irregular 
boundaries. Modification by inclusion of these holes remedies that situation. Additionally, the arm of 
Fruitdale Road extending to the north has been included in the proposal as modified to include the entire 
road into one jurisdiction, preventing the potential service irregularity along the road. 

This decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.180(4). 

Incorporation as Cities or Towns or Annexation to Cities or Towns on Unincorporated Areas Which 
are Urban in Character 

The subject area is within the City's urban growth area. It contains a major industry and residential 
neighborhoods, and meets the definition of Urban in Character. The City will not extend additional 
services into this area without annexation. As modified, this annexation is a logical step into the City's 
urban growth area, and will provide the basis for continuation of growth into the remaining urban growth 
area. 

This decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.180(8) 

Consistency with Growth Management Act 

The annexation proposal within the urban growth area with irregular boundaries, as submitted, brought the 
City and the County together to discuss mutual concerns regarding growth within the area. The result is an 
interlocal agreement that identifies and meets the needs of both jurisdictions, works out a cost and revenue 
sharing agreement and creates a modified boundary that is agreed upon by all affected jurisdictions. 

This decision tends to accomplish the objective specified in RCW 36.93.157. 

Having considered each of the provisions contained in RCW 36.93.170 and 36.93.180, it is the opinion of 
the Boundary Review Board that this annexation proposal is approved as modified by inclusion of 
additional property. 

4 



JANICKI ANNEXATION 
(Approved with Modifications) 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASHINGTON STATE BOUNDARY 
REVIEW BOARD FOR SKAGIT COUNTY THAT, for the above reasons, the action proposed in the 
Notice of Intention contained in said File No. 04-10 be, and the same is, hereby approved as modified. 

ADOPTED BY SAID WASHINGTON STATE BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD FOR 
SKAGIT COUNTY by a vote of  __S  in favor and 	against this 7th day of December, 2004, 
and signed by me in authentication of its said adoption on said date. 

WASHINGTON STATE BOUNDARY REVIEW BOARD 
FOR SKAGIT COUNTY 

Torn Stowe, Chair 

FILED BY ME this 
	 , 20174 

 

day of 

 

c, 	fe  
Carole Korelin, Officer for the Board 

5 



JANICKI ANNEXATION BOUNDARIES 

Those portions of the Northeast 1/4  and the South 1/2  of Section 18 and the North /2 of 
Section 19, all in township 35 North, Range 5 East W.M., more particularly described as 
follows: 

Beginning at the point of intersection of the North line of State Highway 20 with the East 
line of Fruitdale Road, which point is in the Southeast 1/4  of the Southeast 1/4  said Section 
18; thence North along the East line of said Fruitdale Road to the North line of the South 
1/2  of the Northeast 1/4  of said Section 18; thence West along said North line to the West 
line of said Fruitdale Road; thence South along said West line to the intersection with the 
Northerly line of McGarigle Road; thence Southwesterly along the Northerly line of 
McGarigle Road to the West line of the Plat of Knowltons First Addition as per plat 
recorded in Volume 7 of Plats, page 59, records of Skagit County, extended Northerly; 
thence southerly and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
along said West line and said West line extended to the North line of said Section 19; 
thence West along said North line to a point 1350 feet East of the Northwest corner of 
said Section 19; thence South 1 degree 20'00" West parallel with the West line of said 
subdivision and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley a 
distance of 673.55 feet; thence South 57 degrees 48'32" West a distance of 340.07 feet; 
thence Southerly and adjacent to the Easterly City limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley to 
the North line of Sta.te Highway 20; thence Northeasterly along said North line to the 
Point of Beginning. 

Situate in the County of Skagit, State of Washington 



Skagit County - Skagit County tiVlap Paize 1 of 1 

City of Sedro-Woolley Annexation No. 04-10 

AJ1,7r- -•-• 

County Boundary 

Railroads 

Roads 

State Roads 

Local Roads 

Parcels 

Rivers and Streams 

City Limits 

Sections 

o 
_ . 	• 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

...• 

Or - 
,.• 	—f 	I ' --•-. 

- i 	ip 
• , . 	 i 	 L---i 

,..." 	; 	.70. 	• • •" 	 i 

- 	r• • L...; 	- ••• • ". 	 , 	- 	I 	1 
1 	i , 	 `-

--- i r--, *---• .._ 	 ---..;:l —1 
i 	...: 	. 	• 

•'• -pc, 	r.— 	 : 	•.____. --- ; 
,• 	•':, 	i 	 I 1 	 'r ••••—• 

•- - 	• :. _. 1 ---r,  
,,,k2s" 	 • 	• 	1 	 - -.-1-  , V N ' 10,--Y .:.:D-1R T . __ 

1 • 	;. R C 'IA '.', S ROAD • 

C1 - it ---. 
i-  - ':•,-... 	. 	. 

• - 	• 
:f 	 -- --:-.. _ Li :••,..,...,-._.; -• •-,---- ._—..: _____,:_.. _ _ .....7 __-.. .17 ; :. 
I I 	 '- ---•'-• — . .., - _ _ .: --. ' 	,.-1 • . - 	• 
.1 	 •• 	• n : I 
	

• 	: ; 
, '----'--I - n.------ -- '.

.. 	
_s 4  — .: . 	III : I-7-. •-• 7 .7  - -.--- I • i 	 L 

I 
-.; 	: 	I  

.:: 	, 	• 	ri . 	 ;-'-— I . 	.  

• 
—T 

	

	
! 

 
--L..— —...i !  

I 	: 	
1. 	

i. . , 	- : 	1-  AN L _A.NE..-  
0 	 7501t , ;  

Skagit County iMap 

SKAGIT COUNTY does not attest to the accuracy to the data contained herein 
and makes no warranty with respect to the correctness or validity of this map. 
Data contained in this map is limited by the method and accuracy of its collection. 

• ---" I 	; 

Map Scale: 

1 inch = 750 Feet 
(1 inch = 0.1 Miles) 

http://inside.skagit.local/GIS/Applications/iMap/Asp/iMap.asp?pm=true&RasterVector=vector 	9/28/2004 



Interlo c al Agreement 



SKAGIT COUNTY  

Contract # C20040498 

Pagel of 12 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
SKAGIT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
1800 CONTINENTAL PLACE, SUITE 100 
MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273 

412140012 
Skagit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	1 of 	12 9:11AIVI 

Document Title:  

Reference Number :  

Grantor(s):  
1. Skagit County 

2.  

Grantee(s):  
1. City of 5edro-Woolley 

2.  

Abbreviated legal description:  

Interlocal Agreement 

Between the City of Sedro-Woolley 

and Skagit County Regarding the 

Annexation Delivery of Services and 

Revenue Sharing for the "Stanislaw 

Properties, Et Al" Annexation 

Li additional grantor names on page 

Li additional grantee names on page_ 

Li full legal on page(s) _. 

Assessor Parcel / Tax ID Number: 	Li additional tax parcel number(s) on page ____. 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AND SKAGIT COUNTY 

REGARDING ANNEXATION DELIVERY OF SERVICES AND REVENUE 
SHARING FOR THE "STANISLAW PROPERTIES, ET AL" 

ANNEXATION 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to ensure the continuation of high quality 
and uninterrupted services to the affected residents during the transition period of the "Stanislaw 
Properties, et al" annexation (Boundary Review Board File No. 04-10); and 

WHEREAS, the City and County have determined that annexation is likely to have a 
financial impact, thus necessitating a funding arrangement to mitigate such impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City and County adopted the Countywide Planning Polices and entered 
into an interlocal agreement, which contain policies stipulating that consistent regulations and 
development standards are to be developed for the Urban Growth Area (UGA) and provide for 
joint review of development proposals within the UGA; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan (City Plan) and the Skagit 
County Comprehensive Plan (County Plan) have been duly adopted by each respective 
jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, the City and County recognize the need to facilitate and coordinate the 
proper transition of services and capital projects at the time of annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City and County find it mutually beneficial and in the public interest to 
enter into this agreement for services to the residents of the annexation area during a period of 
transition and thereafter, regarding County service provision and City service provision to such 
area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Skagit County ("County") and the City of Sedro-Woolley 
("City") do hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1- Term of Agreement: This Agreement shall be effective for a period of ten (10) 
years following recording with the Skagit County Auditor. Following termination, each party is 
responsible for any outstanding obligations it incurred under this Agreement prior to the 
effective date of the termination. 

Section 2- Geographic Service Area and Applicability: This agreement applies to the 
area approved for annexation by the Boundary Review Board in File No. 04-10, City of Sedro-
Woolley; Annexation (Stanislaw), as set forth on the attached Exhibit A (map). This area is 
generally described as lying North of the North right-of-way (ROW) line of SR 20, West of the 
East ROW line of Fruitdale Road extended North to the City limits, South of the North ROW 

20041 e 1 4001' e 
Skagit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	2 of 	12 g•iiAnn 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498  

Page 2 of 12 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 2 

line of McGarigle Road, and East of the Western City Limits between McGarigle Road and the 
North ROW line of Fruitdale Road. 

Section 3 - Land Use Plans and Development Regulations: 

3.1 List of Permits. The County will prepare and send to the City a list detailing the 
status of all applications and permits contained in the Planning and Permit Center's 
computerized permit data base on properties located within the proposed annexation area. 

3.2 Transfer of Permits. Following annexation, the City and County will review the list 
of applications and permits, and agree to transfer to the City all applications that have not been 
determined to be complete prior to the effective date of annexation. The County shall retain and 
process all applications and permits that are determined to be complete prior to the effective date 
of annexation. 

3.3 County to Solicit Comments. Prior to annexation, the County shall solicit comments 
from the City on land use and building permit applications that are within the proposed 
annexation area and provide copies of staff reports and recommendations. 

3.4 Pre-Annexation Development Regulations. Prior to the effective date of the 
annexation, zoning, subdivision, development, and building permits shall be governed by County 
ordinances then in place, except as provided herein. 

3.4.1. Pre-Annexation Applications. Prior to the effective date of annexation, an 
applicant for any zoning, subdivision, development, and building permit may 
apply for the desired permits from the County, under County ordinances and 
proceed to completion of the permitting process under said ordinances then in 
place, for the permits for which a complete application was filed and fee paid. 

3.4.2. Alternative Process. Alternatively, at the applicant's option, the applicant may 
apply for the desired zoning, subdivision, development, and building permit from 
the City under City ordinances, in anticipation of annexation, and proceed to 
completion of the permitting process under said ordinances in place at the time of 
annexation; provided, the City may defer any portion of the permit application 
process until annexation is complete, or if annexation is not completed, transfer 
the application to the County for processing under County ordinances. The 
purpose of this alternative process is to avoid delay and duplication of costs and 
effort on the part of an applicant. The City may require the applicant to sign an 
agreement documenting special conditions of the permitting process as a 
condition for applying with the City prior to completion of annexation. 

3.4.3 SEPA Regulations. The County and City shall be co-lead on any SEPA 
applications filed prior to the effective date of annexation. For purpose of 
convenience, any SEPA application shall be filed with Skagit County. The lowest 
categorical exemptions of either jurisdiction shall be used, but other County 

 

III 1 INIP IMII 0 H NMI 
200412140012 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 

Skagit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	3 of 	12 9:11AM 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 3 

procedural regulations shall apply. This agreement shall not affect SEPA 
processes outside the area to be annexed. 

3.5 Enforcement of Standards and Conditions. Following the effective date of 
annexation, the City agrees to enforce, to the extent deemed legally enforceable by the City, 
applicable standards and any conditions imposed relating to the issuance of a building or land 
use permit prior to annexation. The County agrees to make its employees avaiLble to provide 
assistance in the interpretation of conditions and applicable standards. 

3.6 Permit Renewal or Extension. Any request to renew a building permit or to renew or 
extend a land use permit after the effective date of the annexation shall be made to and 
administered by the City. 

3.7 Transfer of Financial Guarantees. All financial guarantees (e.g. performance bonds, 
mitigation funds, maintenance bonds or other bonds or sureties) required for a building permit, 
land use permit or enforcement action shall be transferred or assigned to the City after the 
effective date of the annexation. If the financial guarantee cannot be assigned to the City, the 
County will enforce the provisions of such guarantee on behalf of the City in accordance with 
this Agreement. The City shall have sole discretion over the acceptance of required performance 
and the release of said guarantees. 

3.8  Permitting Fees. The applicant shall pay only the fees of the permitting jurisdiction, 
and shall not pay two fees for the same application. Applicants filing for permits at the County 
shall pay the County fee schedule, and applicants filing for permits at the City shall pay the City 
fee schedule. The City and County shall allocate the fees between themselves based on their 
proportionate share of work and expense on each application, by agreement of the parties. This 
division shall be made following completion of the annexation process. 

3.9 Building and Building-related Permits. The types of building and building-related 
permits that are covered within this Agreement include but are not limited to: building permits, 
sign permits, excavation and grading permits, mechanical permits, plumbing permits, change of 
occupancy permits, tenant improvement occupancy permits, fire systems and fire sprinkler 
permits, and demolition permits. 

3.10 Land Use Permits. 

3.10.1 Land use permits defined. For the purposes of this Agreement, "land use permits" 
are defined as: site plan review, conditional use permits, development code 
variances, boundary line adjustments, planned unit developments including 
master planned developments, subdivisions, short plats, binding site plans, 
shoreline permits, home occupation permits, and critical areas permits. 

3.10.2 Dedications, deeds or conveyances. If a dedication for public use (or easements) 
is to be made after the effective date of the annexation, such dedication shall be 
transmitted to the City for review and a determination of acceptance. 

H 1I 111111 I iII it IlI II 111 1111 11 
2 0 0 4 1 2 1 4 0 0 1 2 

Skagit County Auditor 
12114/2004 Page 	4 of 	12 9:11AM 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498  

Page 4 of 12 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 4 

3.10.3 Final approval of subdivision, short plat and binding site plan. All final plats, 
short plats and binding site plans to be submitted after the effective date of 
annexation shall be submitted to the responsible officials designated in the City 
Municipal Code for a determination of acceptance. 

3.11 Code Enforcement. 

3.11.1 Code enforcement defined. For purposes of this Agreement, "Code Enforcement" 
means ensuring compliance with the Uniform Codes (including Building, 
Mechanical, Plumbing, Fire), Zoning Ordinance, Development Standards, 
Shoreline Master Program, Subdivision Code, and Critical Areas Ordinance. 

3.11.2 Continuation of code violation cases. Active code violation cases will be 
transferred to the City on the effective date of the annexation. Any further action 
in those cases will be the responsibility of the City. The County agrees to make its 
employees available as witnesses, if necessary and at no cost to the City, in order 
to prosecute transferred cases. 

3.11.3 Compliance Agreements. When a compliance agreement is being negotiated on 
property found to be in violation of Skagit County Code, the County shall inform 
tile City Code Enforcement Officer. The City may, at its option, be a party to the 
development of the compliance agreement. 

Section 4 — Transfer of Records: All original files of the County for building and land 
use permits, and fire code inspection and compliance records, within an annexation area shall 
remain in the custody of the County. The City may copy files on their own equipment or agree to 
pay for the cost of copying any requested records. 

Section 5 - Roads and Transportation Systems: It is the intention of the City and 
County that the City will annex all roads adjacent to and within the area proposed for annexation, 
except for SR 20, and to work together to bring these roads up to City standards using funds 
from both jurisdictions. The City and County agree that they will take joint responsibility for 
improvement of the roads as set forth in this agreement, in lieu of collection and payment of City 
transportation impact fees not previously collected by Skagit County from within the annexed 
area pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement regarding the unincorporated UGA dated March 22, 
1999, and the City, by separate agreement, will release the County from liability for uncollected 
transportation impact fees within the annexed area only, reserving any other claim. 

Section 6 - Joint Road Construction Projects: 

6.1 Annexation of Right of Way and Maintenance. The City and County agree that the 
entire right of way for all streets and roads adjacent to land proposed to be annexed, excluding 
SR 20, shall be made part of the annexation. As of the effective date of annexation, the City shall 
assume responsibility for the maintenance of all streets and roads included within the annexed 
area. The City and County acknowledge that the roads and rights of way included in the 

IIlII 111 HiltiliOn11111111111 
c 0 0 4 1 21 4001 2 

Skagit County Auditor 
12/14/2004 Page 	5 of 	12 9:11AM 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498 

Page 5 of 12 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 5 

annexation by the Boundary Review Board are illustrated on the attached Exhibit A, and are 
listed as follows: 

All of Carter Road North of SR 20 and South of McGarigle Road; 
All of Fruitdale Road North of SR 20 and South of the City limits; 
All of McGarigle Road East of the City limits and West of Fruitdale Road; 
All of Wedmore Place and Caulkins Place. 

6.2 Joint Construction Projects. 

6.2.1 The City and County agree that following annexation, they will jointly plan, 
design, and construct McGarigle Road and that portion of Fruitdale Road lying 
South of McGarigle Road to a design consistent with City urban design standards 
for a collector arterial and arterial road, respectively. (The improvements may be 
extended North to serve the Northern State complex by agreement of the parties.) 
The joint projects may include a turn lane at SR 20 and Fruitdale but shall not 
include signalization or work to SR 20. The projects shall include storm water 
facilities to the extent they are within the road ROW or serve storm water runoff 
from the roadway. 

6.2.2 Each jurisdiction shall pay 50% of the cost of these joint projects. Any grants 
received for this work shall be applied to reduce each party's contribution by an 
equal dollar amount. The scheduling of this shall be dependant on the availability 
of funds. The parties agree that at this time, a ten (10) year window to complete 
this work appears reasonable. 

6.2.3 The parties shall include these projects on their 6-Year TIPs and transportation 
capital facilities plans. The parties agree to develop a joint schedule of work to 
coincide with their availability of funds, so as to accomplish the projects within 
the ten (10) year window of this agreement, unless the time is extended by mutual 
agreement. The funding and construction schedules will be reduced to a written 
MOU as the project develops. 

6.3  Design/Construction Engineering and Project Management. The County shall be lead 
project manager. Each party shall provide 50% of the cost of design and construction, 
engineering and project administration. It is the intention of the parties to have their staff 
and employees work jointly together or allocate tasks to each, to the extent that the 
project avails itself of such allocation. The parties intend that the specific means by 
which each shall provide its 50 percent share — i.e., cash or in-kind equivalents — will be 
resolved through the adoption of one or more additional MOU's. The parties intend that 
additional MOUs will be executed regarding project management, financing, contribution 
of labor and costs, and other matters, consistent with this agreement, as the project 
evolves through the design and construction phases. 

l~ ll~ ~ll 11 III 
2 0 0 4 2 1 4 0 0 1 2 

Skagit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	6 of 	12 9:11AM 

SKAGIT COUNTY  

contract # C20040498 

Page 6 of 12 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 6 

6.4 Mitigation Funds. Funds, bonds or other sureties received for mitigation payments, 
transportation impact fees, transportation related SEPA mitigation payments, and other 
mitigation required of developers, may be applied to these joint projects by either party. 
Funds and contributions that have been required from developers for these specific 
projects shall be applied to the projects by the collecting entity. The party applying the 
funds or contribution shall receive credit for the application. 

Section 7 - Storm Water Management Systems:  If an annexed area includes drainage 
improvements or facilities the County currently owns, the City shall assume all ownership rights 
and responsibilities upon the effective date of annexation, except as provided herein. The City 
shall not assume ownership and responsibilities for storm water facilities owned or maintained 
by a separate taxing district, sub-flood control zone, or other entity that survives annexation. 

Section 8 — Police and Fire Services:  As provided by law, as of the effective date of an 
annexation, responsibility for police and fire service within the annexed area will transfer to the 
City. 

Section 9 — Administration:  This Agreement shall be administered by the City Mayor 
and the County Chair of the Board of County Commissioners or their respective designees. 

Section 10 — Notice:  Any notices to be given under this Agreement shall be personally 
served to or shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to: 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

Chair, Board of County Commissioners 
1800 Continental Place 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 

FOR THE CITY: 

Mayor, City of Sedro-Woolley 
720 Murdock Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Section 11 - Dispute Resolution:  

11.1 Panel Mediation. Disputes arising from the interpretation or administration of this 
Agreement shall be mediated by a panel of three people. The mediation process shall be 
commenced by written notice to the other party. A City representative, non-elected official, shall 
be appointed by the City, and a County representative, non-elected official, shall be appointed by 
the County. The Parties shall appoint such mediators within fourteen (14) days after service of 
the written mediation notice. A third mediator shall be agreed upon and appointed by the two 
appointed representatives. The panel of three (3) mediators shall attempt to resolve the dispute 
between the Parties through discussion and negotiation among the panel members. There shall be 

IIII II I61 	
II 
I

SKAGIT COUNTY 
[111 11 1II IIIIIit II 	 Contract # C20040498 

2004121.4001 c 
Skagit County Auditor 	 Page 7 of 12  

7 of 	12 9:11AM 12/14/2004 Page 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 7 

presentation of evidence or argument to the panel. Decisions of the panel shall not be binding on 
the Parties and all discussions and negotiations among the panel members shall remain 
confidential and privileged. Mediation shall be completed within sixty (60) days after service of 
the written mediation notice. Each party shall bear the costs of its appointed mediator and one-
half the costs of the third mediator appointed by the two (2) mediators. 

11.2 Court: In the event that panel mediation does not resolve a dispute between the 
Parties, the parties agree that venue and jurisdiction for any dispute lies in Skagit County 
Superior Court, and that this agreement may be specifically enforced. 

11.3 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the laws of the 
State of Washington. 

Section 12 - Assignment/Subcontracting:  Neither the City nor the County shall 
transfer or assign, in whole or in part, any or all of their respective rights or obligations under 
this Agreement. 

Section 13 - No Third Party Beneficiary:  The City does not intend by this Agreement 
or by any amendments or attachments to this Agreement to assume any contractual obligations to 
anyone other than the County. The County does not intend by this Agreement or by any 
amendments or attachments to this Agreement to assume any contractual obligations to anyone 
other than the City. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall not be interpreted to create such rights. 

Section 14 - Financial Responsibility:  Except as otherwise noted in this Agreement, 
each party shall bear financial responsibility for its own respective share of work performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 15 - Waiver:  No waiver by either party of any term or condition of this 
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any other term or condition or 
of any subsequent breach, whether of the same or different provision. 

Section 16 - Interlocal Cooperation Act:  This is an agreement entered into pursuant to 
Chapter 39.34 RCW (Interlocal Cooperation Act). Its duration is as specified in Section 1. 

Section 17 - Relationship to Existing Laws and Statutes:  This Agreement in no way 
modifies or supersedes existing state laws and statutes. In meeting the commitments 
encompassed in this Agreement, all parties will comply with the requirements of the Open Public 
Meetings Act, Growth Management Act, State Environmental Policy Act, Annexation Statutes 
and other applicable state or local law. The County and City retain the ultimate authority for 
land use and development decisions within their respective jurisdictions as provided herein. By 
executing this Agreement, the County and City do not purport to abrogate the decision making 
responsibility vested in them by law. 

Section 18 - Addenda and Amendments:  

31118110101  
200412 1400 12 
Skagit County Auditor 

12/1412004 Page 	8 of 	12 9:11AIVI 

SKAGIT COUNTY 
Contract # C20040498 

Page 8 of 12 



Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 8 

18.1 Process for Future Amendments. The City and County recognize that amendments 
to this Agreement may be necessary to clarify or change the requirements of particular sections 
or update the Agreement. Any modification of or amendment to this Agreement shall be 
executed in the same manner as provided by law for the execution of this Agreement. 

18.2 Mutual Consent. The provisions of this Agreement may be amended with the mutual 
consent of the parties. No additions to, or alterations of, the terms of this Agreement, shall be 
valid unless made in writing and formally approved and executed, as provided for in Section 27, 
by the duly authorized agents for both parties. 

Section 19 - Applicability:  The City and County agree that this Agreement shall apply 
to the unincorporated area generally described in the attached Exhibit A , which is incorporated 
herein by reference and referred to herein as the "Stanislaw Properties et al. Annexation." 

Section 20 - Document Execution and Filing.,: The City and County agree that there 
shall be duplicate originals of this Agreement procured and distributed for signature by the 
necessary officials of the City and County. Upon execution, the executed duplicate of this 
Agreement shall be returned to the Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners, who shall file 
copies of this Agreement with the Skagit County Auditor and the Washington State Secretary of 
State. Upon receipt by the City Clerk of the duplicate originals, each such duplicate original shall 
constitute an Agreement binding upon both the City and County. The Clerk of the Board of 
County Commissioners shall transmit one executed original to the City Clerk. 

Section 21 - Indemnification and Liability:  

21.1 The City shall protect, save and hold harmless and indemnify at its own expense, the 
County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees and agents, from any loss or 
claim for damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of the City's performance of this 
Agreement, including claims by the City's employees or third parties, except for those damages 
caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of the County, its elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, or agents. 

21.2 The County shall protect, save and hold harmless and indemnify at its own expense, 
the City, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees and agents from any loss or 
claim for damages of any nature whatsoever arising out of the County's performance of this 
Agreement, including claims by the County's employees or third parties, except for those 
damages caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its elected and 
appointed officials, officers, employees, or agents. 

21.3 It is understood that this agreement is solely for the benefit of the parties hereto, and 
gives no right to any other party. No joint venture or partnership is foirned as a result of this 
agreement. Each party hereto agrees to be responsible and to assume liability for its own acts 
and omissions, and those of its elected officials, officers, employees and agents to the fullest 
extent required by law, and agrees to save, indemnify, defend and hold the other party harmless 
from any such liability. In the case of negligence of more than one party, any damages allowed 
shall be levied in proportion to the percentage of negligence attributable to each party; and each 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498 

Facie 9 cf 12 

111111111\ 1 11111111i 111111 	II 
200 41 c 14001 e. 

SAngit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	9 of 	12 9:11AM 



ATTEST: 

(111,1 	i0eLL4s--rzY 
Patsy .1son, City Clerk 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

ATTEST: 

Gies• echt, Clerk 
ounty Commissioners 

Kenneth A. Dahlstedt 

Pre-Annexation Agreement 	 Page 9 

party shall have the right to seek contribution from the other party in proportion to the percentage 
of negligence attributable to the other party. 

21.4 No liability shall be attached to the City or the County by reason of entering into this 
Agreement except as expressly provided herein. The City shall hold the County hainiless and 
defend at its expense any legal challenges to the City's failure to comply with RCW 82.02.020 or 
RCW 82.02.070. 

Section 22 - Entire Agreement:  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement 
between the parties with respect to the framework issues for annexations covered or mentioned 
therein. It is anticipated that the parties will enter into subsequent interlocal agreements on 
specific subjects, as indicated in the text of this Agreement. 

Section 23 — Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court to be 
invalid, either party may, at its option, terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to the other party. 

Section 24 - Effective Date:  The effective date of this Agreement shall be 
I211 	,2004. 

AGREED TO THIS  13-  OF 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

, 2004 

Sharon D. Dillon, Mayor 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Ted W. Anderson, Chairman 

byt  
Don Munks, Commissioner 

Skagit County Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	10 of 	12 9:11A1111 

1111111111 111 JIB HIM III II 
c 0 0 4 c 4 0 0 1 c 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498 

Page 10 of 12 



Billie Kadrmas,Risk Manager 
Skagit County 

Gar 	sen, Dir&ctor 
Skagit County Planning and Permit Center 

Pre-Annexation Agreement 
	

Page 10 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Don L. Anderson, Chief Civil Deputy 
Skagit County 

Patrick Hay i  n, City Attorney 
City of Se• ro-Woolley 

APPROVED AS TO INDEMNIFICATION 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

'Clcy La 	ity Planner 
ay of Sedro-Woolley 

Nagginn  
200412140012  

Skagit County Auditor 

12114/2004 Page 	
11 of 	12 9:11AM 

SKAGIT COUNTY 

Contract # C20040498 

Page 11 of 12 



II 	I 11 1 1 11 	1 	11 II I II  I 1 111 
2 0 0 4 1 2 1 4 0 0 1 2 

SKag t county Auditor 

12/14/2004 Page 	12 of 	12 9:11AM 

Legend 

Streets 

.:City limits 

UGA 

7A Annexation area 

0 
CV 





Memorandum 

To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson 

Date: 1 /7/2005 

Re: 	Refinancing of Public Safety Bonds 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CIRMBERS 
AGENDA NO 

  

Background: As interest rates are at a historic low, staff have researched the 
feasibility of the City refinance the existing bonds on the Public Safety Building 
which will be a savings to the City taxpayers. As Seattle-Northwest Securities and 
Preston Gates Ellis handled the original bonds we consulted with them. 

The attached ordinance was drafted by Nancy Neraas of Preston Gates Ellis in 
accordance with the information presented by and discussed with Lindsay Sovde of 
Seattle-Northwest Securities at the last Council Worksession. They will be present 
at the next Council meeting to answer any questions you may have. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council pass Ordinance No 	 
entitled: "An Ordinance of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, authorizing the 
issuance and sale of unlimited tax general obligation refunding bonds of the City in 
the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $1,700,000 to refund certain 
outstanding unlimited tax general obligation bonds of the City; authorizing the 
appointment of an escrow agent and the execution of an escrow agreement; 
providing the form and terms of the refunding bonds; providing for the annual levy 
of taxes to pay the refunding bonds; and authorizing the Mayor to negotiate the final 
terms and sale of the Bonds." 

1 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 
authorizing the issuance and sale of unlimited tax general 
obligation refunding bonds of the City in the aggregate principal 
amount of not to exceed $1,700,000 to refund certain outstanding 
unlimited tax general obligation bonds of the City; authorizing 
the appointment of an escrow agent and the execution of an 
escrow agreement; providing the form and terms of the refunding 
bonds; providing for the annual levy of taxes to pay the 
refunding bonds; and authorizing the Mayor to negotiate the 
final terms and sale of the Bonds. 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington (the "City") has outstanding its 

Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bonds, 1996, dated December 1, 1996, issued pursuant to 

Ordinance No. 1271-96, in the original principal amount of $2,355,000 (the "1996 Bonds"), 

maturing in principal amounts and bearing interest as follows: 

Years 
(December 1) 

Principal 
Amounts 

Interest 
Rates 

2005 $ 100,000 6.25% 
2006 105,000 6.25 
2007 115,000 6.25 
2008 125,000 6.25 
2009 135,000 5.25 
2010 145,000 5.35 
2011 160,000 5.35 
2012 170,000 5.45 
2016 835,000 5.60 

WHEREAS, the 1996 Bonds maturing on and after December 1, 2009 (the "Refunded 

Bonds") are callable for redemption on December 1, 2006, in whole on any date or in part on any 

interest payment date, at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption; and 

WHEREAS, after due consideration it appears to the City Council of the City that the 

Refunded Bonds may be refunded by the issuance and sale of the unlimited tax general 



obligation refunding bonds of the City authorized herein to realize a savings to the City and its 

taxpayers; and 

WHEREAS, in order to effect such refunding in the manner that will be most 

advantageous to the City and its taxpayers, it is hereby found necessary and advisable that an 

escrow agent be appointed and that certain obligations be purchased out of the proceeds of sale 

of the refunding bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received the offer from Seattle-Northwest Securities 

Corporation, Seattle, Washington to purchase the Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth 

herein; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to delegate authority to the Mayor, for a limited 

time, to approve the interest rates, maturity dates, interest payment dates, and principal 

maturities under such terms and conditions as are approved by this ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN as follows: 

Section 1. 	Definitions. As used in this ordinance, the following words shall have the 

following meanings: 

Acquired Obligations means the Government Obligations acquired by the City pursuant 

to Section 7 and the Escrow Agreement to effect the defeasance and refunding of the Refunded 

Bonds. 

Bond Fund means the City of Sedro-Woolley Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bond 

Redemption Fund, 2005 created pursuant to Section 9. 

Bond Insurance Commitment means the commitment(s) of the Bond Insurer, if any, to 

insure the Bonds or certain principal maturities thereof 

-2- 	 RINJMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Bond Insurance Policy means the policy of municipal bond insurance, if any, delivered 

by the Bond Insurer at the time of issuance and delivery of the Bonds to be insured pursuant to 

the Bond Insurance Commitment. 

Bond Register means the registration records for the Bonds maintained by the Bond 

Registrar. 

Bond Registrar means the fiscal agency of the State of Washington in New York, New 

York, whose duties include registering and authenticating the Bonds, maintaining the Bond 

Register, transferring ownership of the Bonds, and paying the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds. 

Bonds means the not to exceed $1,700,000 principal amount of the City of Sedro-

Woolley, Washington Unlimited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2005 issued 

pursuant to this ordinance. 

City means the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, a municipal corporation of the State 

of Washington. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with 

corresponding and applicable final, temporary or proposed regulations and revenue rulings 

issued or amended with respect thereto by the United States Treasury Department of the Internal 

Revenue Service, to the extent applicable to the Bonds. 

Council means the duly constituted City Council as the general legislative authority of 

the City. 

DTC means The Depository Trust Company of New York, as depository for the Bonds, 

or any successor or substitute depository for the Bonds. 

-3- 	 PANMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Escrow Agreement means the Escrow Deposit Agreement to be dated as of the date of 

closing and delivery of the Bonds substantially in the form on file with the City. 

Escrow Agent means U.S. Bank National Association, Seattle, Washington. 

Government Obligations means those obligations now or hereafter defined as such in 

chapter 39.53 RCW, as such chapter may be hereafter amended or restated. 

Insurer means the municipal bond insurer(s), if any, that has committed to insure the 

Bonds or certain principal maturities thereof, pursuant to the Bond Insurance Commitment. 

Letter of Representations means the blanket issuer letter of representations from the City 

to DTC. 

1996 Bond Ordinance means Ordinance No. 1271-96 adopted by the City Council on 

November 12, 1996. 

1996 Bonds means the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, Unlimited Tax General 

Obligation Bonds, 1996, dated December 1, 1996, issued pursuant to the 1996 Bond Ordinance. 

Purchase Contract means the bond purchase contract between the City and the 

Underwriter provided for in Section 12 of this ordinance. 

Refunded Bonds means the 1996 Bonds maturing on and after December 1, 2009. 

Refunding Account means the account of that name established pursuant to Section 7. 

Registered Owner means the person named as the registered owner of a Bond in the 

Bond Register. For so long as the Bonds are held in book-entry only form, DTC shall be deemed 

to be the sole Registered Owner. 

Rule means the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934. 

-4- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Treasurer means the Clerk-Treasurer of the City, or any successor to the functions of the 

Treasurer. 

Underwriter means Seattle-Northwest Securities Corporation, Seattle, Washington. 

	

Section 2. 	Authorization of Bonds. For the purpose of refunding the Refunded 

Bonds to effect a substantial savings to the City and its taxpayers, the City shall issue its 

unlimited tax general obligation refunding bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to 

exceed $1,700,000. The Bonds shall be general obligations of the City, shall be designated the 

"City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington Unlimited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 

2005"; shall be dated as of February 1, 2005 (or such other date as may be established pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 12 of this ordinance); shall be fully registered as to both principal 

and interest; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 each, or any integral multiple thereof, 

provided that no Bond shall represent more than one maturity; shall be numbered separately in 

the manner and with any additional designation as the Bond Registrar deems necessary for 

purposes of identification; and shall bear interest from their date at the following per annum 

rates, payable on June 1, 2005, and semiannually thereafter on the first days of each succeeding 

December and June. The Bonds shall bear interest at the rates and mature on the dates in the 

years and amounts to be established pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of this ordinance. 

Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated based on a 360-day year of (12 30-day months). 

	

Section 3. 	Registration, Exchange and Payments. 

	

(a) 	Registrar/Bond Register. 	The City hereby adopts the system of 

registration approved by the Washington State Finance Committee, which utilizes the fiscal 

agency of the State of Washington in New York, New York, as registrar, authenticating agent, 

paying agent and transfer agent (the "Bond Registrar"). The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause 

-5- 	 PANMANNMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



to be kept, at its principal corporate trust office, sufficient records for the registration and 

transfer of the Bonds (the "Bond Register"), which shall be open to inspection by the City. The 

Bond Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the City, to authenticate and deliver Bonds transferred 

or exchanged in accordance with the provisions of such Bonds and this ordinance and to carry 

out all of the Bond Registrar's powers and duties under this ordinance. The Bond Registrar shall 

be responsible for its representations contained in the Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds. 

(b) Registered Ownership. The City and the Bond Registrar may deem and 

treat the Registered Owner of each Bond as the absolute owner for all purposes, and neither the 

City nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Payment of any such 

Bond shall be made only as described in Section 3(h) hereof, but such registration may be 

transferred as herein provided. All such payments made as described in Section 3(h) shall be 

valid and shall satisfy the liability of the City upon such Bond to the extent of the amount or 

amounts so paid. 

(c) DTC Acceptance/Letter of Representations. The Bonds shall initially be 

held in fully immobilized form by DTC acting as depository. To induce DTC to accept the 

Bonds as eligible for deposit at DTC, the City has heretofore executed and delivered to DTC a 

Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations (the "Letter of Representations"). 

Neither the City nor the Bond Registrar will have any responsibility or obligation to DTC 

participants or the persons for whom they act as nominees with respect to the Bonds for the 

accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC participant, the payment by DTC or any 

DTC participant of any amount in respect of the principal of or interest on Bonds, any notice that 

is permitted or required to be given to Registered Owners under this ordinance (except such 

notices as shall be required to be given by the City to the Bond Registrar or to DTC), the 

-6- 	 PANMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



selection by DTC or any DTC participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a 

partial redemption of the Bonds, or any consent given or other action taken by DTC as the 

Registered Owner. For so long as any Bonds are held in fully immobilized form hereunder, 

DTC or its successor depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner for all purposes, 

and all references in this ordinance to the Registered Owners shall mean DTC or its nominee and 

shall not mean the owners of any beneficial interest in any Bonds. 

(d) 	Use of Depository. 

(i) The Bonds shall be registered initially in the name of CEDE & 

Co., as nominee of DTC, with a single Bond for each maturity in a denomination equal to the 

total principal amount of such maturity. Registered ownership of such immobilized Bonds, or 

any portions thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except (A) to any successor of DTC or its 

nominee, provided that any such successor shall be qualified under any applicable laws to 

provide the service proposed to be provided by it; (B) to any substitute depository appointed by 

the City pursuant to subsection (ii) below or such substitute depository's successor; or (C) to any 

person as provided in subsection (iv) below. 

(ii) Upon the resignation of DTC or its successor (or any substitute 

depository or its successor) from its functions as depository or a determination by the City to 

discontinue the system of book entry transfers through DTC or its successor (or any substitute 

depository or its successor), the City may appoint a substitute depository. Any such substitute 

depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the services proposed to be 

provided by it. 

(iii) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (A) or (B) of 

subsection (i) above, the Bond Registrar shall, upon receipt of all outstanding Bonds, together 

-7- 	 PANIMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



with a written request on behalf of the City, issue a single new Bond for each maturity then 

outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or substitute depository, or its nominee, all 

as specified in such written request of the City. 

(iv) 	In the event that (A) DTC or its successor (or substitute depository 

or its successor) resigns from its functions as depository, and no substitute depository can be 

obtained, or (B) the City determines that it is in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the 

Bonds that the Bonds be provided in certificated form, the ownership of such Bonds may then be 

transferred to any person or entity as herein provided, and shall no longer be held in fully 

immobilized form. The City shall deliver a written request to the Bond Registrar, together with a 

supply of definitive Bonds in certificated form, to issue Bonds in any authorized denomination. 

Upon receipt by the Bond Registrar of all then outstanding Bonds, together with a written 

request on behalf of the City to the Bond Registrar, new Bonds shall be issued in the appropriate 

denominations and registered in the names of such persons as are provided in such written 

request. 

(e) 	Transfer or Exchange of Registered Ownership; Change in 

Denominations. The registered ownership of any Bond may be transferred or exchanged, but no 

transfer of any Bond shall be valid unless it is surrendered to the Bond Registrar with the 

assignment form appearing on such Bond duly executed by the Registered Owner or such 

Registered Owner's duly authorized agent in a manner satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. Upon 

such surrender, the Bond Registrar shall cancel the surrendered Bond and shall authenticate and 

deliver, without charge to the Registered Owner or transferee, a new Bond (or Bonds at the 

option of the new Registered Owner) of the same date, maturity and interest rate and for the 

same aggregate principal amount in any authorized denomination, naming as Registered Owner 

-8- 	 PANMNANMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



the person or persons listed as the assignee on the assignment form appearing on the surrendered 

Bond, in exchange for such surrendered and canceled Bond. Any Bond may be surrendered to 

the Bond Registrar and exchanged, without charge, for an equal aggregate principal amount of 

Bonds of the same date, maturity and interest rate, in any authorized denomination. The Bond 

Registrar shall not be obligated to transfer or exchange any Bond during a period beginning at 

the opening of business on the 15th day of the month next preceding any interest payment date 

and ending at the close of business on such interest payment date, or, in the case of any proposed 

redemption of the Bonds, after the mailing of notice of the call of such Bonds for redemption. 

(f) Bond Registrar's Ownership of Bonds. The Bond Registrar may become 

the Registered Owner of any Bond with the same rights it would have if it were not the Bond 

Registrar, and to the extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit any of its 

officers or directors to act as member of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any committee 

formed to protect the rights of the Registered Owners of the Bonds. 

(g) Registration Covenant. The City covenants that, until all Bonds have 

been surrendered and canceled, it will maintain a system for recording the ownership of each 

Bond that complies with the provisions of Section 149 of the Code. 

(h) Place and Medium of Payment. Both principal of and interest on the 

Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America. For so long as all 

Bonds are in fully immobilized form, payments of principal and interest shall be made as 

provided in accordance with the operational arrangements of DTC referred to in the Letter of 

Representations. In the event that the Bonds are no longer in fully immobilized form, interest on 

the Bonds shall be paid by check or draft mailed to the Registered Owners at the addresses for 

such Registered Owners appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of the month preceding 

-9- 	 PANMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



the interest payment date, and principal of the Bonds shall be payable upon presentation and 

surrender of such Bonds by the Registered Owners at the principal office of the Bond Registrar; 

provided, however, that if so requested in writing by the Registered Owner of at least $1,000,000 

principal amount of Bonds, interest will be paid by wire transfer on the date due to an account 

with a bank located within the United States. 

Section 4. 	Redemption Prior to Maturity and Purchase of Bonds. 

(a) Optional Redemption. The Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption 

on terms to be established pursuant to Section 12 of this ordinance. If less than a whole of a 

maturity is called for redemption, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be chosen by lot in integral 

multiples of $5,000 by the Bond Registrar or, so long as the Bonds are registered in the name of 

CEDE & Co. or its registered assign, by DTC. 

(b) Mandatory Redemption. The Bonds may also be subject to mandatory 

redemption in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Contract to be established pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 12 of this ordinance. 

(c) Partial Redemption. If less than all of the principal amount of any Bond is 

redeemed, upon surrender of such Bond at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, there shall 

be issued to the registered owner, without charge, for the then unredeemed balance of the 

principal amount, a new Bond or Bonds, at the option of the registered owner, of like maturity 

and interest rate in any authorized denomination. 

(d) Notice of Redemption Written notice of any redemption of Bonds shall be 

given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the City by first class mail, postage prepaid, not less 

than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the redemption date to the registered owners of Bonds 

that are to be redeemed at their last addresses shown on the Bond Register. So long as the Bonds 

-10- 	 PANIMN1NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



are in book-entry form, notice of redemption shall be given as provided in the Letter of 

Representations. The Bond Registrar shall provide additional notice of redemption (at least 

30 days) to each NRMSIR and SID, if any, in accordance with Section 11. 

The requirements of this section shall be deemed complied with when notice is mailed, 

whether or not it is actually received by the owner. 

Each notice of redemption shall contain the following information: (1) the redemption 

date, (2) the redemption price, (3) if less than all outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the 

identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the principal amounts) of the Bonds to be 

redeemed, (4) that on the redemption date the redemption price will become due and payable 

upon each Bond or portion called for redemption, and that interest shall cease to accrue from the 

redemption date, (5) that the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment at the principal office of 

the Bond Registrar, (6) the CUSIP numbers of all Bonds being redeemed, (7) the dated date of 

the Bonds, (8) the rate of interest for each Bond being redeemed, (9) the date of the notice, and 

(10) any other information needed to identify the Bonds being redeemed. 

Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check or other 

transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and 

maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

(e) 	Effect of Redemption. Unless the City has revoked a notice of redemption, 

the City shall transfer to the Bond Registrar amounts that, in addition to other money, if any, 

held by the Bond Registrar, will be sufficient to redeem, on the redemption date, all the Bonds to 

be redeemed. From the redemption date interest on each Bond to be redeemed shall cease to 

accrue. 

-11- 	 PANMNINMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



(f) Amendment of Notice Provisions. The foregoing notice provisions of this 

section, including but not limited to the information to be included in redemption notices and the 

persons designated to receive notices, may be amended by additions, deletions and changes in 

order to maintain compliance with duly promulgated regulations and recommendations regarding 

notices of redemption of municipal securities. 

(g) Purchase on Open Market. The City reserves the right to purchase any of 

the Bonds offered to the City at any price deemed reasonable by the City at any time. 

Section 5. 	Form of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

NO. 	 $ 	 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

UNLIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND, 2005 

INTEREST RATE: % 	 MATURITY DATE: 	 CUSIP NO.: 

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws and Constitution of the State of Washington (the "City"), hereby acknowledges 
itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the Registered Owner identified above, or 
registered assigns, on the Maturity Date identified above, the Principal Amount specified above, 
unless redeemed prior thereto as provided herein, together with interest on such Principal 
Amount from the date hereof or the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly 
provided for at the Interest Rate set forth above payable June 1, 2005, and semiannually 
thereafter on each December 1 and June 1 until payment of the principal sum has been made or 
duly provided for. Both principal of and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America. For so long as the bonds of this issue are held in fully immobilized 
form, payments of principal and interest thereon shall be made as provided in accordance with 
the operational arrangements of DTC referred to in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations 
from the City to The Depository Trust Company. In the event that the bonds of this issue are no 
longer held in fully immobilized form, interest on this bond shall be paid by check or draft 

-12- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



mailed to the Registered Owner at the address appearing on the Bond Register on the 15th day of 
the month preceding the interest payment date, and principal of this bond shall be payable upon 
presentation and surrender of this bond by the Registered Owner at the principal office of the 
fiscal agency of the State of Washington in New York, New York (collectively the "Bond 
Registrar"); provided, however, that if so requested in writing by the Registered Owner of at 
least $1,000,000 principal amount of bonds, interest will be paid by wire transfer on the date due 
to an account with a bank located within the United States. 

This bond is one of an issue of unlimited tax general obligation bonds of the City of like 
date and tenor, except as to number, interest rate and date of maturity, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $ 	, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 	 of the City, passed January 12, 
2005 (the "Bond Ordinance"), to refund the City's callable Unlimited Tax General Obligation 
Bonds, 1996, and pay costs of issuance. 

The Bonds are subject to optional [and mandatory] redemption as provided in the Bond 
Ordinance. 

The City has designated the bonds of this issue as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for 
purchase by financial institutions. 

The City has irrevocably covenanted that it will make annual levies of taxes without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all the property subject to taxation in amounts sufficient, 
together with other money legally available therefor, to pay the principal of and interest on this 
bond as the same shall become due. The full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 
irrevocably pledged for the annual levy and collection of such taxes and the prompt payment of 
such principal and interest. 

The pledge of tax levies for payment of principal of and interest on the bonds may be 
discharged prior to maturity of the bonds by making provision for the payment thereof on the 
terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Ordinance. 

The bonds of this issue are issued in fully registered form in the denomination of $5,000 
each or any integral multiple thereof, provided that no bond shall represent more than one 
maturity. Upon surrender to the Bond Registrar, bonds are interchangeable for bonds in any 
authorized denomination of an equal aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate 
and maturity. This bond is transferable only on the records maintained by the Bond Registrar for 
that purpose upon the surrender of this bond by the registered owner hereof or his/her duly 
authorized agent and only if endorsed in the manner provided hereon, and thereupon a new fully 
registered bond of like principal amount, maturity and interest rate shall be issued to the 
transferee in exchange therefor. Such exchange or transfer shall be without cost to the registered 
owner or transferee. The City may deem the person in whose name this bond is registered to be 
the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest 
on this bond and for any and all other purposes whatsoever. 

-13- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Reference is made to the Bond Ordinance as more fully describing the covenants with 
and the rights of Registered Owners of the bonds or registered assigns and the meanings of 
capitalized terms appearing on this bond which are defined in such ordinance. 

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Ordinance until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall 
have been manually signed by the Bond Registrar. 

It is hereby certified and declared that this bond is issued pursuant to and in strict 
compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington and ordinances of the 
City, that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the issuance of 
this bond and the bonds of this issue have happened, been done and performed, and that this 
bond and the bonds of this issue do not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitations. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, has caused this bond 
to be signed on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor and to be 
attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk of the City, as of this 1St  day of 
February, 2005. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON 

By 	/s/ manual or facsimile  
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

/s/ manual or facsimile 
City Clerk 

[SEAL] 

The Bond Registrar's Certificate of Authentication on the Bonds shall be in substantially 

the following form: 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

Date: 

This bond is one of the Unlimited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2005 of the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, dated February 1, 2005, described in the Bond Ordinance. 

WASHINGTON STATE FISCAL 
AGENCY, as Bond Registrar 

-14- 	 PANIMNINMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



	

By 	  

	

Section 6. 	Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City 

with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by the manual or facsimile 

signature of the City Clerk, and shall have the seal of the City impressed or imprinted thereon. 

Only Bonds that bear a Certificate of Authentication in the form set forth in Section 5, 

manually executed by the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entitled 

to the benefits of this ordinance. Such Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence 

that the Bonds so authenticated have been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and are 

entitled to the benefits of this ordinance. 

In case either of the officers of the City who shall have executed the Bonds shall cease to 

be such officer or officers of the City before the Bonds so signed shall have been authenticated 

or delivered by the Bond Registrar, or issued by the City, such Bonds may nevertheless be 

authenticated, delivered and issued and upon such authentication, delivery and issuance, shall be 

as binding upon the City as though those who signed the same had continued to be such officers 

of the City. Any Bond may also be signed and attested on behalf of the City by such persons as 

at the actual date of execution of such Bond shall be the proper officers of the City although at 

the original date of such Bond any such person shall not have been such officer. 

	

Section 7. 	Refunding Plan and Procedures . 

	

(a) 	Refunding Plan. For the purpose of realizing a debt service savings and 

benefiting the taxpayers of the City, the Council proposes to issue refunding bonds for the 

purpose of providing for the payment of the principal of and interest on and the redemption price 

of the Refunded Bonds on December 1, 2006 (the "Refunding Plan"). 

-15- 	 PANMNINMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



(b) 	Refunding Account. There is hereby authorized to be created in the City 

of Sedro-Woolley Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bond Redemption Fund, 2005, an account 

known as the "Refunding Account," which account is to be drawn upon for the sole purpose of 

paying the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds until their date of redemption and of 

paying costs related to the refunding of the Refunded Bonds. 

The proceeds of sale of the Bonds (exclusive of accrued interest thereon, which shall be 

paid into the Bond Fund and used to pay interest on the Bonds on June 1, 2005) shall be credited 

to the Refunding Account. 

Money in the Refunding Account shall be used immediately upon receipt to defease the 

Refunded Bonds as authorized by the 1996 Bond Ordinance and to pay costs of issuance. The 

City shall defease the Refunded Bonds and discharge such obligations by the use of money in the 

Refunding Account to purchase certain Government Obligations (which obligations so 

purchased, are herein called "Acquired Obligations"), bearing such interest and maturing as to 

principal and interest in such amounts and at such times which, together with any necessary 

beginning cash balance, will provide for the payment of: 

(a) interest on the Refunded Bonds due and payable through and including 

December 1, 2006; and 

(b) the redemption price of the Refunded Bonds (100% of the principal 

amount thereof) on December 1, 2006. 

Such Acquired Obligations shall be purchased at a yield not greater than the yield 

pelinitted by the Code and regulations relating to acquired obligations in connection with 

refunding bond issues. 

-16- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



(c) Escrow Agent/Escrow Agreement. To carry out the advance refunding and 

defeasance of the Refunded Bonds, the Treasurer is hereby authorized to appoint as escrow agent 

a bank or trust company qualified by law to perform the duties described herein (the "Escrow 

Agent"). A beginning cash balance, if any, and Acquired Obligations shall be deposited 

irrevocably with the Escrow Agent in an amount sufficient to defease the Refunded Bonds. The 

proceeds of the Bonds remaining in the Refunding Account after acquisition of the Acquired 

Obligations and provision for the necessary beginning cash balance shall be utilized to pay 

expenses of the acquisition and safekeeping of the Acquired Obligations and expenses of the 

issuance of the Bonds. 

In order to carry out the purposes of this section, the Treasurer is authorized and directed 

to execute and deliver to the Escrow Agent, the Escrow Agreement. 

(d) Implementation of Refunding Plan. The City hereby irrevocably sets aside 

sufficient funds out of the purchase of Acquired Obligations from proceeds of the Refunded 

Bonds to make the payments described in subsection (a) of this Section. 

The City hereby irrevocably calls the Refunded Bonds for redemption on December 1, 

2006 in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of the 1996 Bond Ordinance, authorizing the 

redemption and retirement of the Refunded Bonds prior to their fixed maturities. Said 

defeasance and call for redemption of the Refunded Bonds shall be irrevocable after the final 

establishment of the escrow account and delivery of the Acquired Obligations to the Escrow 

Agent. 

The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and directed to provide for the giving of notices 

of the redemption of the Refunded Bonds in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 

1996 Bond Ordinance. The Treasurer is authorized and requested to provide whatever assistance 

-17- 	 PANMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



is necessary to accomplish such redemption and the giving of notices therefor. The costs of 

publication of such notices shall be an expense of the City. 

The Escrow Agent is hereby authorized and directed to pay to the Treasurer, or, at the 

direction of the Treasurer, to the fiscal agency or agencies of the State of Washington, sums 

sufficient to pay, when due, the payments specified in of subsection (a). All such sums shall be 

paid from the money and Acquired Obligations deposited with said Escrow Agent pursuant to 

this ordinance, and the income therefrom and proceeds thereof All such sums so paid to the 

Treasurer shall be credited to the Refunding Account. All money and Acquired Obligations 

deposited with the bank and any income therefrom shall be held, invested (but only at the 

direction of the Treasurer) and applied in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance and 

with the laws of the State of Washington for the benefit of the City and owners of the Refunded 

Bonds. 

The City will take such actions as are found necessary to ensure that all proper fees, 

compensation and expenses of the Escrow Agent for the Refunded Bonds shall be paid when 

due. 

Section 8. 	Tax Covenants. The City covenants to undertake all actions required to 

maintain the tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds under Section 103 of the Code as set 

forth in the arbitrage and tax certification that will be executed at the closing of the Bonds. 

The City hereby designates the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" under 

Section 265(b)(3) of the Code for banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions. 

Section 9. 	Bond Fund; Tax Levy Payments. The Treasurer is hereby authorized and 

directed to create a fund to be used for the payment of debt service on the Bonds, to be 

designated as the "Unlimited Tax General Obligation Refunding Bond Fund, 2005" (the "Bond 

-18- 	 PANMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Fund"). The City hereby irrevocably covenants that, unless the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds are paid from other sources, it will make annual levies of taxes without limitation as to 

rate or amount and in amounts sufficient to pay such principal and interest as the same shall 

become due. The full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for 

the annual levy and collection of such taxes and for the prompt payment of such principal and 

interest. 

Section 10. 	Bonds Deemed to Be No Longer Outstanding. In the event that the City, 

in order to effect the payment, retirement or redemption of any Bond, sets aside in the Bond 

Fund or in another special account, held in trust by a trustee, cash or noncallable government 

obligations, as such obligations are now or hereafter defined in RCW 39.53, or any combination 

of cash and/or noncallable government obligations, in amounts and maturities which, together 

with the known earned income therefrom, are sufficient to redeem or pay and retire such Bond in 

accordance with its terms and to pay when due the interest and redemption premium, if any, 

thereon, and such cash and/or noncallable government obligations are irrevocably set aside and 

pledged for such purpose, then no further payments need be made into the Bond Fund for the 

payment of the principal of and interest on such Bond. The owner of a Bond so provided for 

shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security of this ordinance except the right to 

receive payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest from such special account, and such 

Bond shall be deemed to be not outstanding under this ordinance. 

The City shall provide, or cause to be provided, written notice of defeasance to the 

owners of all Bonds so provided for within 30 days of the closing date and to the SID, if any, and 

to each NRMSIR or to the MSRB in accordance with Section 11. 

-19- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Section 11. 	Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure  

(a) Contract/Undertaking. This section constitutes the City's written 

undertaking for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds as required by Section (b)(5) of the Rule. 

The City is an obligated person with respect to less than $10,000,000 of municipal securities, 

including the Bonds. 

(b) Financial Statements/Operating Data. The City agrees to provide or 

cause to be provided to each person upon request or to the SID, if any, a copy of its latest 

publicly available annual financial statements prepared in accordance with the Budget 

Accounting and Reporting System prescribed by the Washington State Auditor pursuant to 

RCW 43.09.200 (or any successor statute). Such annual statements shall be available upon 

request to the office of the City Treasurer, the current address for whom is 720 Murdock Street, 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284; telephone number: (360) 855-1661. 

(c) Material Events. The City agrees to provide or cause to be provided, in a 

timely manner, to the SID, if any, and to each NRMSIR or to the MSRB notice of the occurrence 

of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 

• Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

• Non-payment related defaults; 

• Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

• Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 

difficulties; 

• Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

-20- 	 PAWN \NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



• Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 

Bonds; 

• Modifications to the rights of Bond owners; 

• Bond calls (optional, contingent or unscheduled Bond calls other than 

scheduled sinking fund redemptions for which notice is given pursuant 

to Exchange Act Release 34-238560); 

• Defeasances; 

• Release, substitution or sale of property, securing repayment of the 

Bonds; and 

• Rating changes. 

Solely for purposes of disclosure, and not intending to modify this undertaking, the City 

advises that no credit enhancements, debt service reserves or property secure payment of the 

Bonds. 

(d) Termination/Modification. The City's obligations to provide notices of 

material events shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of 

all of the Bonds. Any provision of this section shall be null and void if the City (1) obtains an 

opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the portion of the Rule that 

requires that provision is invalid, has been repealed retroactively or otherwise does not apply to 

the Bonds and (2) notifies each NRMSIR and the SID, if any, of such opinion and the 

cancellation of this section. The City may amend this section with an approving opinion of 

nationally recognized bond counsel in accordance with the Rule. 

(e) Bond Owner's Remedies Under This Section. The right of any bondowner 

or beneficial owner of Bonds to enforce the provisions of this section shall be limited to a right 

-21- 	 PANIMN1NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



to obtain specific enforcement of the City's obligations under this section, and any failure by the 

City to comply with the provisions of this undertaking shall not be an event of default with 

respect to the Bonds. For purposes of this section, "beneficial owner" means any person who 

has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with respect to, or to dispose of 

ownership of, any Bonds, including persons holding Bonds through nominees or depositories. 

Section 12. 	Sale of Bonds; Approval of Official Statement. 

(a) 	Bond Sale. The Bonds shall be sold by negotiated sale to the Underwriter 

pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Contract. The Mayor is hereby authorized to negotiate the 

terms for the purchase of the Bonds and execute the Purchase Contract, with such terms as are 

approved by her pursuant to this section and consistent with this ordinance. The Underwriter has 

advised the City Council that market conditions are fluctuating and, as a result, the most 

favorable market conditions for sale of the Bonds may occur on a day other than a regularly 

scheduled meeting date of the City Council. The City Council has determined that it would be in 

the best interest of the City to delegate to the Mayor, for a limited time the authority to approve 

final terms of the Bonds including the date and the delivery date, interest rates, aggregate 

principal amount and maturity schedule, redemption provisions and provisions for insurance. 

The Mayor shall take into account those factors which, in her judgment, will result in the highest 

present value savings; provided however, that the present value savings shall not be less than 

5.5%. 

The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a Purchase Contract for the Bonds upon her 

approval of the final terms of the Bonds. The authority given to the Mayor by this section shall 

expire 60 days from the effective date of this ordinance. 

-22- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



(b) Delivery of Bonds; Documentation. The proper officials of the City are 

hereby authorized and directed to do everything necessary for the prompt execution and delivery 

of the Bonds to the Underwriter at such sale and for the proper application and use of the 

proceeds of sale thereof. If the Purchase Contract includes provisions for obtaining a Bond 

Insurance Policy for any of the Bonds, the City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor 

to execute the Bond Insurance Commitment and to cooperate with the Insurer in preparing such 

additional agreements, certificates, and other documentation on behalf of the City as shall be 

necessary or advisable in providing for the Bond Insurance Policy. 

(c) Preliminary and Final Official Statements. The City approves the 

preliminary official statement, and authorizes the Underwriter's distribution of the preliminary 

official statement in connection with the offering of the Bonds. Pursuant to the Rule, the City 

deems the preliminary official statement final as of its date except for the omission of 

information dependent upon the pricing of the Bonds and the completion of the Purchase 

Contract. The City agrees to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Underwriter, within seven 

business days from the date of the sale of the Bonds and in sufficient time to accompany any 

confirmation that requests payment from any customer of the Underwriter, copies of a final 

official statement in sufficient quantity to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules 

of the MSRB. The City authorizes the Underwriter to use the official statement, substantially in 

the form of the preliminary official statement, in connection with the sale of the Bonds. The 

Mayor or Treasurer are hereby authorized to review and approve on behalf of the City the final 

Official Statement relative to the Bonds with such additions and changes as may be deemed 

necessary or advisable to them. 

-23- 	 PANIMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



Section 13. 	Bond Insurance. The payments of the principal of and interest on one or 

more principal maturities of the Bonds may be insured by the issuance of the Bond Insurance 

Policy. The Mayor, with the assistance of the Underwriter, shall solicit proposals from 

municipal bond insurance companies, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to review such 

proposals and may select the proposal that is deemed to be the most cost effective and further to 

execute the Bond Insurance Commitment with the Bond Insurer, which may include such 

covenants and conditions as shall be approved by the Mayor. 

Section 14. 	Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. If any Bonds are lost, stolen or 

destroyed, the Bond Registrar may authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of like amount, 

maturity and tenor to the Registered Owner upon the owner paying the expenses and charges of 

the Bond Registrar and the City in connection with preparation and authentication of the 

replacement Bond or Bonds and upon his or her filing with the Bond Registrar and the City 

evidence satisfactory to both that such Bond or Bonds were actually lost, stolen or destroyed and 

of his or her ownership, and upon furnishing the City and the Bond Registrar with indemnity 

satisfactory to both. 

Section 15. 	General Authorization; Prior Acts. The Mayor, Treasurer and other 

appropriate officers of the City are authorized to take any actions and to execute documents as in 

their judgment may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms of, and complete the 

transactions contemplated by, this ordinance. All acts taken pursuant to the authority of this 

ordinance but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified. 

Section 16. 	Severability. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided 

in this ordinance to be performed on the part of the City shall be declared by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants, agreement or 

-24- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



agreements, shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants 

and agreements of this ordinance and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of 

this ordinance or of the Bonds. 

Section 17. 	Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect five days after its passage 

and publication in the manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, at a regular 

meeting thereof held this 12th  day of January, 2005. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

-25- 	 P:\NMN\NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City Council, of the City of Sedro-Woolley, 

Washington (the "City") and keeper of the records of the City Council (the "City Council"), DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY: 

1. That the attached Ordinance is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 	 

of the City Council (the "Ordinance"), duly adopted at a regular meeting thereof held on the 12th  

day of January, 2005. 

2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with 

law, and to the extent required by law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given; that a 

legal quorum was present throughout the meeting and a legally sufficient number of members of 

the City Council voted in the proper manner for the adoption of the Ordinance; that all other 

requirements and proceedings incident to the proper adoption of the Ordinance have been duly 

fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed; and that I am authorized to execute this certificate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 12th  day of January, 2005. 

City Clerk 

P:/NMN/NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

UNLIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 2005 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 
authorizing the issuance and sale of unlimited tax general 
obligation refunding bonds of the City in the aggregate principal 
amount of not to exceed $1,700,000 to refund certain outstanding 
unlimited tax general obligation bonds of the City; authorizing 
the appointment of an escrow agent and the execution of an 
escrow agreement; providing the form and terms of the refunding 
bonds; providing for the annual levy of taxes to pay the 
refunding bonds; and authorizing the Mayor to negotiate the 
final terms of the sale of the Bonds. 

APPROVED ON JANUARY 12, 2005 

PREPARED BY: 

PRESTON GATES & ELLIS LLP 
Seattle, Washington 



TABLE OF CONTENTS* 

Page 

Section 1. 	Definitions 	 2 

Section 2. 	Authorization of Bonds 	 5 

Section 3. 	Registration, Exchange and Payments 	 5 

Section 4. 	Redemption Prior to Maturity and Purchase of Bonds 	 10 

Section 5. 	Form of Bonds 	 12 

Section 6. 	Execution of Bonds 	 15 

Section 7. 	Refunding Plan and Procedures 	 15 

Section 8. 	Tax Covenants 	 18 

Section 9. 	Bond Fund; Tax Levy Payments 	 18 

Section 10. Bonds Deemed to Be No Longer Outstanding 	 19 

Section 11. 	Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure 	 20 

Section 12. 	Sale of Bonds; Approval of Official Statement 	 22 

Section 13. 	Bond Insurance 	 24 

Section 14. 	Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds 	 24 

Section 15. 	General Authorization; Prior Acts 	 24 

Section 16. 	Severability 	 24 

Section 17. 	Effective Date 	 25 

* This Table of Contents is provided for convenience only and is not a part of this ordinance. 

-i- 	 P:/NMN/NMN2HZ 	05/01/07 



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

720 Murdock Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 (360) 855-1661 

Memorandum 

To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

From: Patrick Hayden 

Date: 1/6/2005 

Re: 	Utility Tax Ordinance 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1 2 2005 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL §I,AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

  

I. Issue No. 1: Should the City extend the 2% tax on solid waste services to cover the solid waste related 
services provided by Waste Management within the corporate limits of the City? 

II. Issue No. 2: Should the City extend the 6% telephone tax now imposed on land line phones to 
cover cell phones inside the corporate limits of the City 

III. Background: 

Purpose. The City currently imposes utility tax by a dated ordinance on telephone, TV cable, natural 
gas, electricity, and City sewer and garbage services. This ordinance has been in effect for some time, 
and does not extend to cell phones, nor to the solid waste services provided by Waste Management for 
areas recently annexed by the City. At the time I was asked to draft this ordinance, it appeared to be 
inequitable to impose a 6% tax on land-line phone users but not to impose the same tax on cell phone 
users. Similarly, it appears unfair for users of the City solid waste service pay a 2% tax on their bills, 
while users of Waste Management in the newly annexed areas of the City do not pay this tax on their 
solid waste bills. The sole motivation for this ordinance is to impose the same rate of taxation of these 
now exempt users as other people pay. 

New Model Ordinance. Utility taxes are complex, and different state laws govern the taxation of 
different utilities. There is a recent "industry standard" utility tax ordinance, adopted by many cities, 
which covers several utilities (such as electricity, telephone, gas, sewer, etc.,) and conforms to a 
variety of state laws regarding notice to utilities of the change, effective date of the tax, etc. (For the 
most part, they are imposed as B & 0 taxes on the businesses, even though they look like excise taxes 
to be passed on to the consumer.) The model ordinance was used as a basis for this proposed 
ordinance. It provides for complex definitions for cell phone services, for the apportionment of 
payments collected from calls which crossed multiple jurisdictions within and without the state, and 
for other issues inherent in utility taxation. 

I am not an expert on utility taxes, but I am pretty comfortable using the (de facto) model ordinance. 
It would create a new chapter, SWMC Ch. 5.06 (utility taxes), in our code, and would transfer the 
utility taxes for telephone, sewer and garbage from SWMC Ch. 5.04 to this new chapter. At a later 

1 



date it would be appropriate to also move the other utility taxes to this new chapter. However, it 
would be good to get this chapter up and running first. It has a little different administrative 
perspective than our current code provides, and I would like to see how it functions, as a practical 
matter, before moving other sections into the new chapter, should the Council pass it. 

The AWC Tax and User Fee Survey (attached) reports the following cell phone and solid waste taxes: 

Cell phone tax 	 Solid Waste Tax /Franchise Fee* 
Anacortes 6% 	 7% 
Burlington 6% (telephone 3%) 	 8% 
LaConner 6% 	 3% 
Mount Vernon 6% 	 7% 
Sedro-Woolley 0% 	 2% (City customers only) 

State-wide average 	 State-wide average 
5.89% for cellular tax. 	 7.71% 	/ 	5.02% 

* In general terms, a franchise fee is a fee charged to a third-party vendor for the privilege to perform 
utility services on public streets. There is no practical difference in this case. 

At the request of the City Council, please find attached two versions of the proposed ordinance — one 
with only the solid waste tax, and one with both the cell phone and solid waste tax, so you can 
compare apples to apples (changes are noted in the ordinance which excludes the cell phone tax as 
deletions and additions). For convenience, the proposed ordinance moves the sanitary sewer tax to the 
proposed new utility tax chapter, since they are both billed together by the City, but does not modify 
the tax rate. 

III. Recommended Action: That the City Council (a) extend the 6% telephone tax to include 
cell phone services, and (b) extend the 2% solid waste tax to include Waste Management, by 
adoption of the accompanying ordinance entitled: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING AND MODIFYING THE UTILITY TAX 
ON SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES, SANITARY SEWER AND TELEPHONE 
SERVICES WITHIN SEDRO-WOOLLEY AND PROCEDURES FOR THE 
IMPLEMENTATION THEREOF AND PROVIDING FOR CIVIL AND CRIMINAL 
PENALTIES 

• Page 2 



AWC Survey 



Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 
blank = did not respond to survey 	 No = Tax is not imposed 

v = voter approved increase above statutory limit 	 N/A = Business does not exist, not tax 

O. 	lat rate 

City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

(Telephoned 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax Water 
Tax Franchise 

Aberdeen 6.00% 6.00% 6.00°A0 o No 6.00,0 

Airway Heights 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Albion 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No No 

Algona 

Almira N/A No No N  No 25.00% 

Anacortes 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% (6.002.°70) No 7.00% 

Arlington 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 5.00% 

Asotin 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Auburn 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 

Bainbridge Island N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Battle Ground 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Beaux Arts Village No No No No No No 

Bellevue 4.50% 4.50% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 4.50% 

Bellingham 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.C11% 6.00% 11.50% 

Benton City N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Bingen 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No No 

Black Diamond 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Blaine 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 9.00% 

Bonney Lake 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Bothell 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 

Bremerton 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.50% 

Brewster N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 12.00% 

Bridgeport N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Brier 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Buckley 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Bucoda N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Burien 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Burlington 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% C5.00% ) 6.00% No 

Camas 3.00% No No No No No 

Carbonado N/A No No No No No 

Carnation 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Cashmere No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Castle Rock Yes 

Cathlamet No No No No No No 

Centralia 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 8.00% 

Chehalis 

Chelan N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 9.50% 

Cheney 

Chewelah 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Clarkston 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Cle Elum N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Clyde Hill 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Colfax 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

College Place 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Colton No No No No No No 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cab 

Tax 
e TV 

Franchise Tax 
arbage 

Franchise 

Aberdeen 6.00% No No 5.00% No No 

Airway Heights 15.00% No No 3.00% 10.00% No 

Albion No No 5.00% 0.05% 5.00% 0.05% 

Algona 

Almira 25.00% No No 3.00% _25.00% N/A 

Anacortes 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% No 	C.....7..00%) No 

Arlington 5.00% No 5.00% No 5.00% No 

Asotin No No 5.00% No 5.00% No 

Auburn 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Bainbridge Island 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 

Battle Ground 10.00% No No 5.00% 10.00% No 

Beaux Arts Village No No No No No No 

Bellevue 4.50% 4.50% 4.80% 5.00% No 

Bellingham 11.50% 11.50% 6.00% 3.75% 	(.. 
,.....4.50:5 

7.00% N/A 

Benton City 6.00% N/A 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% No 

Bingen No No 6.00% No No No 

Black Diamond 6.00% No 6.00% Yes 6.00% No 

Blaine 9.00% 1.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Bonney Lake 8.00% 8.00% 6.50% No 6.00% No 

Bothell 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% 3.00% 5.00% No 

Bremerton 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% No 10.00% No 

Brewster 12.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 12.00% No 

Bridgeport No No No 5.00% No No 

Brier No No No 5.00% No 0.00% 

Buckley 6.00% 6.00% 4.00% 4.00% No No 

Bucoda N/A N/A N/A N/A 6.00% No 

Burien No No 6.00% S.00% 6.00% No  
........ 

Burlington No No No 3.00% t.._‘19_. 8.00%:, 

Camas No No No 5.00% No 3.00% 

Carbonado No No No 5.00% No No 

Carnation N/A N/A No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Cashmere 6.00% No No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Castle Rock 

Cathlamet No No No No N/A No 

Centralia 8.00% N/A No 5.00% No Yes 

Chehalis No No 

Chelan 9.50% N/A No 5.00% 9.50% No 

Cheney 

Chewelah No No 6.00% 3.00% No No 

Clarkston 14.00% N/A No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Cle Elum 6.00% N/A 6.00% No No No 

Clyde Hill No 10.00% No 10.00% 5.00% 10.00% 5.50% 

Colfax 6.00% No 6.00% No 6.00% No 

College Place No N/A 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Colton No No No 3.00% No No 

56 AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 57 



ti 

City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

Telephone 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax Water 
Tax Franchise 

Colville 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 5.00% 

Conconully 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Concrete No 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Connell 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Cosmopolis 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Coulee City 6.00% 16.50% 

Coulee Dam No 0.00% 0.00% No No 

Coupeville No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Covington No No No No No No 

Creston N/A No No No No 8.50% 

Cusick No No No No No 10.00% 

Darrington N/A 6.00% 6.00% 	1....6.0  )(2°i... 6.00% 8.00% 

Davenport No No No No No 18.00% 

Dayton 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Deer Park 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 11.03% 

Des Moines 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

DuPont 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Duvall 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

East Wenatchee No No No No No No 

Eatonville N/A 5.00% No No No 5.00% 

Edgewood No No No No No No 

Edmonds 5.75% 6.00% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 

Electric City N/A 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 6.00% 

Ellensburg 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Elma 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No No 

Elmer City N/A No N/A N/A N/A No 

Endicott No No No No No No 

Entiat No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Enumclaw 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Ephrata 

Everett 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% No 6.00% 

Everson 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Fairfield No No No No No No 

Farmington No 6.00% No No No No 

Federal Way 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Ferndale 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Fife 4.50% 3.00% 4.50% 4.50% No 4.50% 

Fircrest 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Forks N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Friday Harbor No No No No No 3.90% 

Garfield N/A No No No No No 

George 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Gig Harbor 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Gold Bar 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Goldendale 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Grand Coulee N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Grandview 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% No 6.00% 

Granger 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 36.00% 

Granite Falls 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cable 

Tax 
TV 
Franchise 

Garbage 
Tax Franchise 

Colville 5.00% N/A 5.00% No 5.00% No 

Conconully No N/-a No No No No 

Concrete 6.00% No 6.00% 2.00% No No 

Connell 5.00% 5.00% No 5.00% No 

Cosmopolis 6.00% No No 5.00% No No 

Coulee City 10.00% 5.00% 

Coulee Dam No N/A No 5.00% No No 

Coupeville 6.00% No 6.00% 6.00% 

Covington No No No 5.00% No No 

Creston 8.50% N/A No No 8.50% N/A 

Cusick 10.00% No No N/A N/A 

Darrington N/A N/A 6.00% No C-3.00%-) No 

Davenport 18.00% No No 5.00% No No 

Dayton 4.00% 3.00% 

Deer Park 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Des Moines No No 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 12.00% 

DuPont 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Duvall 6.00% No 6.00% No 6.00% Yes 

East Wenatchee No No No 5.00% No No 

Eatonville 5.00% No 5.00% 5.00% 

Edgewood No No No 3.00% No No 

Edmonds 5.75% 5.75% 5.00% 6.00% 

Electric City 6.00% N/A No No 6.00% No 

Ellensburg 10.00% No No 5.00% 7.60% No 

Elma No No 6.00% No No No 

Elmer City No N/A N/A N/A 0.04% N/A 

Endicott No No No No No No 

Entiat 6.00% No No Yes No No 

Enumclaw 8.00% No 5.00% 5.00% 8.00% No 

Ephrata 5.00% 

Everett N/A No 5.00% No No 

Everson 6.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% No 

Fairfield No No No 3.00% No No 

Farmington No No No No No No 

Federal Way No 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Ferndale 6.00% N/A No 6.00% No 6.00% 

Fife 4.50% No No 3.40% No No 

Fircrest 6.00% 6.00% 8.50% 3.00% 8.50% No 

Forks 6.00% N/A 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Friday Harbor 3.90% 3.90% No 3.00% 3.90% No 

Garfield No No Yes Yes No No 

George 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Gig Harbor 5.00% 5.00% No 5.00% No No 

Gold Bar N/A N/A 6.00% No 6.00% 0.00% 

Goldendale 6.00% No No 4.00% 6.00% 

Grand Coulee 6.00% N/A 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Grandview 6.00% N/A 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Granger 36.00% No 6.00% Yes 36.00% No 

Granite Falls No No No 5.00% No 1.00% 

58 
	

AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 
	

Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 
	

59 



City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

Telephone 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax Water 
Tax Franchise 

Hamilton No 6.00% No No No No 

Harrah N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 12.00% 

Harrington No No No No No 10.00% 

Hartline No 4.00% No No No 7.80% 

Hatton 

Hoquiam 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Hunts Point 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Ilwaco 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Index N/A 6.00% No No No No 

lone 2.00% 2.00% 

Issaquah 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Kahlotus No No 5.00% 5.00% No 4.80°A 

Kalama 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Kelso 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Kenmore 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Kennewick 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 7.00% 

Kent 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 4.80% 

Kettle Falls 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 15.00% 

Kirkland 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.50% 

Kittitas 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Krupp N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

La Center No No No No No 

La Conner 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% S/6,00%% No No 

Lacey 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

LaCrosse 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Lake Forest Park 6.00% No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Lake Stevens 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Lakewood 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 

Lamont No No No No No No 

Langley No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Latah No No No No No 

Leavenworth N/A 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 3.00% 

Liberty Lake 

Lind No No No No No No 

Long Beach N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Longview 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 7.00% 

Lyman N/A 6.00% 6.00% No N/A 6.00% 

Lynden 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Lynnwood No No No No No No 

Mabton N/A No 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Malden N/A No No No No No 

Mansfield No No No No No 

Maple Valley 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% No 

Marcus N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Marysville 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No No 6.00% 

Mattawa N/A 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% No 10.00% 

McCleary 

Medical Lake 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 14.00% 

Medina No No No No No No 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cable 

Tax 
TV 
Franchise 

Garbage 
Tax Franchise 

Hamilton No No 6.00% No No No 

Harrah 12.00% N/A No NI,-, No No 

Harrington 10.00% No No 3.00% 10.00./0 No 

Hartline No No No No No No 

Hatton 

Hoquiam 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 5.00% 8.00% 5.00% 

Hunts Point 6.00% No 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Ilwaco No No 5.00% No 6.00% No 

Index 

lone 

N/A No No No No No 

Issaquah No No 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Kahlotus No No 5.00% 3.70% 

Kalama 6.00% No No 5.00% No No 

Kelso 8.00% No 6.00% No 8.00% No 

Kenmore No No No 5.00% No No 

Kennewick 7.00°A N/A 7.00% No 7.00% No 

Kent 4.80% 4.80% No 5.00% 7.80% No 

Kettle Falls 20.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 10.00% No 

Kirkland 6.50% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.50% No 

Kittitas No N/A No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Krupp N/A N/A N/A N/A 

La Center No No No No No 

La Conner No No 3.00% 3.00% 

Lacey 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% No 

LaCrosse No No No No No No 

Lake Forest Park No No No 5.00% No 2.75% 

Lake Stevens No No No 5.00% No No 

Lakewood N/A No 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 5.00% 

Lamont No No No No No No 

Langley 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Latah No No No N/A No N/A 

Leavenworth 3.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 3.00% No 

Liberty Lake 

Lind No No No 0.00% No No 

Long Beach 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No No 

Longview 7.00% No 6.00% 5.00% 7.00% No 

Lyman N/A N/A 3.00% 3.00% N/A No 

Lynden 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Lynnwood No No No 5.00% No No 

Mabton 6.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% No 

Malden N/A N/A No No No No 

Mansfield 6.00% No No No 

Maple Valley No No No 5.00% No No 

Marcus N/A N/A No No 10.00% No 

Marysville 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Mattawa 10.00% N/A 10.00% No 10.00% No 

McCleary 

Medical Lake 14.00% No No 5.00% 14.00% No 

Medina No No No No No No 

60 AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 61 

    



0 

City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

Telephone 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax Water 
Tax Franchise 

Mercer Island 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Mesa N/A No No No No 5.00% 

Metaline N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Metaline Falls No No No No No No 

Mill Creek No No No No No No 

Millwood 

Milton 5.00% 6.00% 5.80% 5.80% 5.80% 1.50% 

Monroe 6.00% 4.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 

Montesano 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 

Morton No 2.00% No No No No 

Moses Lake 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 8.00% No 8.00% 

Mossyrock No No No No No No 

Mount Vernon 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 	1067507) No No 

Mountlake Terrace 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Moxee 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Mukilteo 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Naches N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Napavine N/A 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Nespelem N/A No No N/A N/A No 

Newcastle No No No No No No 

Newport N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Nooksack 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Normandy Park 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 

North Bend 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

North Bonneville 

Northport 

Oakesdale 

Oak Harbor 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Oakville No 6.00% 4.15% No No No 

Ocean Shores 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Odessa No No No No No 24.00% 

Okanogan N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Olympia 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 7.00% 

Omak N/A 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Oroville No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 

Orting 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% No No No 

Othello 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Pacific 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Palouse 

Pasco 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% No 8.50% 

Pateros N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Pe Ell N/A No No No No No 

Pomeroy N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Port Angeles N/A 6.00% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 8.00% 

Port Orchard 2.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 

Port Townsend 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Poulsbo 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Prescott No No No No No 5.00% 

Prosser 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 8.00% 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cab 

Tax 
e TV 

Franchise 
Garbage 

Tax Franchise 

Mercer Island No No 7.00% 5.00% 7.00% No 

Mesa 4.00% No N/A N/A 4.00% No 

Metaline N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Metaline Falls No No No No No No 

Mill Creek No No No 5.00% No No 

Millwood 

Milton 1.50% No No 3.40% No No 

Monroe No No 5.00% 5.00% No No 

Montesano 5.00% 2.60% 6.00% N/A 5.40% N/A 

Morton No No No 0.00% No No 

Moses Lake 8.00% No 3.00% 5.00% 8.00% No 

Mossyrock No No 3.00% 3.00% No  No 

Mount Vernon 7.00% 7.00% 2.00% 5.00% 	...C.7.00%) No 

Mountlake Terrace 10.00% 10.00% 5.00% 5.00% 10.00% No 

Moxee 6.00% N/A 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Mukilteo No 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Naches 3.00% No No 4.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Napavine 5.00% N/A 5.00% No No No 

Nespelem No No No No N/A No 

Newcastle No No No Yes No 

Newport 6.00% N/A 5.00% 5.00% No No 

Nooksack No No 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% No 

Normandy Park No No 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

North Bend 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

North Bonneville No No 

Northport 

Oakesdale 

Oak Harbor 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% No 

Oakville No No No 5.00% No No 

Ocean Shores 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Odessa No N/A No 5.00% 24.00% N/A 

Okanogan 10.00% N/A 6.00% 5.00% 10.00% No 

Olympia 7.00% 7.00% No 5.00% 7.00% No 

Omak 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% No 

Oroville 5.00% 2.50% 5.00% 5.00% N/A 

Orting No No No 5.00% No No 

Othello No No No 5.00% No No 

Pacific No No 6.00% 5.00% No N/A 

Palouse 

Pasco 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 5.00% 8.50% No 

Pateros 6.00% N/A 6.00% 6.00% 

Pe Ell No N/A No No No No 

Pomeroy No No 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Port Angeles 8.00% 8.00% N/A 5.00% 5.00% No 

Port Orchard 5.00% N/A 4.00% No 6.00% No 

Port Townsend 10.00% 10.00% No 5.00% 10.00% 

Poulsbo 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Prescott No No No No No No 

Prosser 8.00% No 6.00% 5.00% No No 

62 
	

AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 
	

Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 
	

63 



City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

Telephone 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax 
Tax 

Water 
Franchise 

Pullman 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 

Puyallup 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Quincy 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% No 4.00% 

Rainier 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% N/A 

Raymond N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Reardan No No No No No No 

Redmond 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% No 

Renton 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Republic No 5.00% 5.00% No No 5.00% 

Richland 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% No 10.50% 

Ridgefield 6.00% No 6.00% No No No 

Ritzville 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Riverside No 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Rock Island No No No No No No 

Rockford 

Rosalia 6.00% 6.00% No No No No 

Roslyn 6.00% 

Roy N/A 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

Royal City N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Ruston No 4.00% No No 

Sammamish No No No No No No 

SeaTac No No No No No No 

Seattle 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 10.00% 

Sedro-Woolley 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% C No ) No No 

Selah 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Sequim No No No No No No 

Shelton 3.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 

Shoreline 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 
Skykomish No 6.00% No No No No 

Snohomish 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Snoqualmie 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Soap Lake N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

South Bend N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 9.00% 

South Cle Elum N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

South Prairie No No No No No 3.00% 

Spangle No No 

Spokane 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 17.00% 

Spokane Valley 

Sprague 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No No 

Springdale N/A Yes 6.00% Yes No 2.00% 2.00% 

St John No No No No No No 

Stanwood 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 6.00% 

Starbuck N/A No No No No No 

Steilacoom 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

Stevenson 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% No 

Sultan 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Sumas No No 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% No 

Sumner 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 6.00% 

Sunnyside 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 6.00% 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cab 

Tax 
e TV 

Franchise 
Garbage 

Tax Franchise 

Pullman 8.00% No No 5.00% 11.00% No 

Puyallup 8.00% 8.00% 3.80% No 6.00% No 

Quincy 4.00% No No 5.00% 4.00% N/A 

Rainier N/A N/A 4.00% 5.00% N/A N/A 

Raymond No No 6.00% No No No 

Reardan Yes No 3.00% 3.00% No No 

Redmond No No No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Renton 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Republic 5.00% No No No 5.00% No 

Richland 10.50% 8.50% 7.50% 5.00% 10.50% No 

Ridgefield No 0 00% 5.00% No 

Ritzville 10.00% N/A 6.00% No 10.00% No 

Riverside No No No No 6.00% No 

Rock Island No No No No 

Rockford 

Rosalie No No No 3.00% No No 

Roslyn 6.00% 

Roy N/A N/A No 4.00% 4.00% No 

Royal City 10.00% N/A 6.00% 5.00% 10.00% N/A 

Ruston 4.00% No No 3.70% No 

Sammamish No No No 5.00% No No 

SeaTac No No No 5.00% No No 

Seattle 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 2.50% 10.00% No 

Sedro-Woolley 2.00% No 6.00% No 	E57077) No 

Selah 6.00% No 6.00% No 6.00% No 

Sequim No No No No No No 

Shelton 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 

Shoreline No 6.00% No 1.00% 5.00% No 6.00% 

Skykomish No No No 3.00% No No 

Snohomish 6.00% N/A N/A 5.00% 6.00% No 

Snoqualmie 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 3.60% No 

Soap Lake 10.00% N/A No 5.00% 10.00% N/A 

South Bend 9.00% No 6.00% No 9.00% No 

South Cle Elum No No No 5.00% No No 

South Prairie 8.00% No No 5.00% No No 

Spangle 

Spokane 17.00% 17.00% 6.00% 5.00% 17.00% No 

Spokane Valley 5.00% No 

Sprague No No No 3.00% No N/A 

Springdale 2.00% 2.00% N/A 6.00% No 

St John No No No No No No 

Stanwood 6.00% 6.00% 3.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Starbuck No N/A No No No No 

Steilacoom 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Stevenson No No 3.00% No 3.00% No 

Sultan No No 6.00% 5.00% No 3.00% 

Sumas No No No No 

Sumner 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% 2.50% 

Sunnyside 6.00% No 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% 

64 
	

AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 
	

Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 
	

65 

•-• 



City Natural 
Gas Tax 

Electricity 
Tax 

Telephone 
Tax 

Cellular 
Tax 

Pagers Tax Water 
Tax Franchise 

Tacoma 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 8.00% 

Tekoa 6.00% 6.00% 

Tenino 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

Tieton No 5.00% 5.00% No No 6.00% 

Toledo 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Tonasket N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 10.00% 

Toppenish 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 38.00% 

Tukwila 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% No 

Tumwater 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Twisp N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No 9.00% 

Union Gap 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Uniontown No No No No No No 

University Place 6.00% No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Vader N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

Vancouver 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 14.50% 

Waitsburg N/A 6.00% 6.00% No No No 

Walla Walla 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Wapato 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 35.00% 

Warden 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 8.00% 

Washougal 4.00% 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 10.00% 

Washtucna No No No No No No 

Waterville 6.00% 

Waverly No No No No No No 

Wenatchee 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 15.00% 

West Richland 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 12.50% 

Westport No 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 7.00% 

White Salmon 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No No 

Wilbur N/A No 6.00% No No No 

Wilkeson N/A 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 8.00% 

Wilson Creek 2.00% 0.00% 

Winlock 5.00% 5.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 

Winthrop N/A 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 15.00% 

Woodinville 2.00% 2.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% No 

Woodland 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No No No 

Woodway 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% No 

Yacolt N/A 5.30% No No No 

Yakima 4.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 14.00% 2.00% 

Yarrow Point 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 5.00% 

Yelm 4.00% 4.00% 4,00% 4.00% No No 

Zillah 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% N/A 35.00% 

City 
Sewer 

Tax Franchise 
Storm 

Drain Tax 
Cab 

Tax 
e TV 

Franchise 
Garbage 

Tax Franchise 

Tacoma 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 5.00% 8.00% No 

Tekoa 

Tenino 4.00% No 4.00% No 

Tieton 6.00% No No 3.00% 4.60% 

Toledo 5.00% 5.00% No S.00% No 

Tonasket 10.00% No No 5.00% N/A No 

Toppenish 38.00% 38.00% 8.50% No 38.00% No 

Tukwila No No 4.00% 5.00% No No 

Tumwater 6.00% 6.00% No 5.00% 6.00% No 

Twisp 9.00% No 6.00% No 9.00% No 

Union Gap No N/A No 4.00% No No 

Uniontown No No No 5.00% No No 

University Place No 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 4.00% 

Vader 6.00% No 6.00% N/A 6.00% No 

Vancouver 14.50% No No 5.00% No 0.00% 

Waitsburg No No No No No No 

Walla Walla 10.00% 10.00% 7.00% 3.00% 10.00% No 

Wapato 35.00% No 6.00% No 35.00% No 

Warden 8.00% No No 4.00% 8.00% No 

Washougal 10.00% N/A 5.00% 5.00% No No 

Washtucna No No No 2.00% 4.60% No 

Waterville 

Waverly No No No No No No 

Wenatchee 15.00% 15.00% 5.00% 5.00% 15.00% No 

West Richland 12.50% N/A No 2.00% 6.00% No 

Westport 7.00% No 3.00% 4.00% No 

White Salmon No N/A 6.00% 5.00% No No 

Wilbur No No No 5.00% No No 

Wilkeson 8.00% No 5.00% 5.00% No No 

Wilson Creek 

Winlock 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No No No 

Winthrop 15.00% No 5.00% 2.00% 6.00% No 

Woodinville No No No 5.00% No No 

Woodland No No No 5.00% No No 

Woodway No No 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% No 

Yacolt N/A No No 5.00% No No 

Yakima 14.00% N/A 5.00% 5.00% 9.00% No 

Yarrow Point 5.00% N/A 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% No 

Yelm No No 4.00% 5.00% 4.00% No 

Zillah 35.00% No 6.00% No 35.00% No 

Average Rate 

Weighted 

5.70% 5.71% 5.78% 5.89% 5.78% 8.18% 5.17% Average Rate 

Weighted 

8.24% 5.80% 7.59% 5.69% 4.44% 7.71 5.02% 

Average Rate 5.18% 5.33% 3.80% 5.28% 3.80% 3.80% 0.18% Average Rate 7.03% 0.14% 5.10% 4.67% 3.96% 6.42% 0.44% 

66 AWC Tax & User Fee Survey - Part 1 Utility Tax Rates & Franchise Fees 	 67 

   



Alternative A: 

2% Cell Phone tax and 6% Solid Waste Tax 
on WM 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
AND MODIFYING THE UTILITY TAX ON SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES, 
SANITARY SEWER AND TELEPHONE SERVICES WITHIN SEDRO-WOOLLEY AND 

PROCEDURES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION THEREOF AND PROVIDING FOR CIVIL 
AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.82.020 authorizes the City of Sedro-Woolley to license for revenue; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley (the "City"), finds in order to 
provide revenues for the City of Sedro-Woolley a utility tax on telephone utilities and solid 
waste collection services should be levied pursuant to the City of Sedro-Woolley's authority to 
license for revenue; 

WHEREAS, this utility tax is also imposed for the privilege of providing utilities within Sedro-
Woolley pursuant to RCW 35.21.870; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley desires to provide for a referendum procedure to apply 
to this ordinance pursuant to RCW 35.21.706; now therefore: 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. A new Section SWMC 5.06.010 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Definitions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the words phrases and terms 
used in this ordinance shall have the following meanings: 

A. "Cellular telephone service" means a two-way voice and data 
telephone/telecommunications system based in whole or substantially in part on wireless 
radio communications which is not subject to regulation by the Washington State Utilities 
and Transportation Commission (WUTC). This includes cellular mobile service. The 
definition of cellular mobile service includes other wireless radio communications 
services such as specialized mobile radio (SMR), personal communications services 
(PCS), and any other evolving wireless radio communications technology which 
accomplishes a purpose similar to cellular mobile service. Cellular telephone service is 
included within the definition of "telephone business" for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

B. "City Clerk" means the City Clerk of Sedro-Woolley and his or her designees or 
agents. 

C. "Competitive telephone service" means the providing by any person of 
telecommunications equipment or apparatus, or service related to that equipment or 
apparatus such as repair or maintenance service, if the equipment or apparatus is of a type 
which can be provided by persons that are not subject to regulation as telephone 
companies under Title 80 RCW and for which a separate charge is made. 



D. "Gross Income" means the value proceeding or accruing from the sale of tangible 
property or service, and receipts (including all sums earned or charged, whether received 
or not) by reason of investment of capital in the business engaged in (including rentals, 
royalties, interest and other emoluments however designated excluding receipts or 
proceeds from the sale or use of real property or any interest therein and the proceeds 
from the sale of notes, bonds, mortgages, or other evidences of indebtedness, or stocks 
and the like and without any deduction on account of the cost of the property sold, cost of 
materials used, labor costs, interest or discount paid, or any expenses whatsoever, and 
without any deduction on account of losses. Further deductions and exceptions from 
gross income upon which the fee or tax described in this ordinance is computed are set 
forth in Section 7. 

E. "Person or persons" means persons of either sex, firms, copartnerships, corporations, 
limited liability companies, and other associations, whether acting by themselves or 
through servants, agents or employees, and shall include the City of Sedro-Woolley for 
purposes of imposition and collection of this tax. 

F. "Taxpayer" means any person liable for the license fee or tax imposed by this 
ordinance. 

G. "Tax year or taxable year" means (1) the year commencing January 1st and ending on 
December 31st, of such year, or (2) the taxpayer's fiscal year when permission is obtained 
from the City Clerk to use that period as the tax year, or (3) the year commencing 
December 15th and ending on December 14th of the following calendar year when 
permission is obtained from the City Clerk to use that period as the tax year. 

H. "Telephone business" means the business of providing access to a local telephone 
network, local telephone network switching service, toll service or coin telephone 
services or providing telephonic, video, data or similar communication or transmission 
for hire, via a local telephone network, toll line or channel cable, microwave, or similar 
communication or transmission system. The term includes cooperative or farmer line 
telephone companies or associations operating an exchange. Telephone business also 
includes cellular telephone service. Telephone business does not include the providing of 
competitive telephone service, the providing of cable television service, nor the providing 
of broadcast services by radio and television stations. 

Section 2. A new Section SWMC 5.06.020 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Utility Tax Levied - Rate. Utility Tax Levied - Rate. On and after April 1, 2005, there is 
levied on and shall be collected from every person a tax for the act or privilege of 
engaging in certain business activities, measured by the application of the respective rates 
against gross income as follows: 

A. Telephone Business. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on any telephone 
business (including cellular telephone service) within the City of Sedro-Woolley a fee or 
tax equal to six percent (6%) of the total gross income from such business in the City of 
Sedro-Woolley. Tax liability imposed under this Section shall not apply to that portion of 



gross income derived from charges to another telecommunications company, as defined 
in RCW 80.04.010, for connecting fees, switching charges, or carrier access charges 
relating to intrastate toll telephone services, or for access to, or charges for, interstate 
services, or charges for network telephone service that is purchased for the purpose of 
resale. 

B. Solid Waste. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on the business of collecting 
solid waste, recyclable materials or yard waste, a tax equal to two percent (2%) of the 
total gross income from such business in the City of Sedro-Woolley, but not including 
income from the sale of recyclable materials or yard waste. 

C. Sewer System. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on the business of operating 
a sanitary sewer system, a tax equal to two percent (2%) of the total gross income from 
such business in the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

Section 3. A new Section SWMC 5.06.030 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

License Requirement. Any person subject to taxation under the provisions of this 
ordinance is required to obtain an occupation license from the City of Sedro-Woolley. On 
and after April 1, 2005, no person subject to payment of the tax herein shall engage in 
any business, occupation, or activity in the City of Sedro-Woolley without first obtaining 
and holding a valid license so to do, which license shall be known as an "occupation 
license" for which the applicant will pay no charge. Such "occupation license shall expire 
at the end of the calendar year in which it is issued and a new license shall be required for 
each calendar year, unless the taxpayer is transacting business on a fiscal year with the 
prior consent of the City Clerk, obtains an occupation license for the period of its current 
fiscal year which shall be deemed the tax year for such taxpayer. In such case, the 
occupation license shall expire at the end of the taxpayer's tax year. 

Application for an "occupation license" shall be made to the City of Sedro-Woolley's 
Community Services Department which shall provide the forms therefore and shall issue 
the license. 

Any person engaging in or carrying on more than one business, occupation, pursuit or 
privilege within the City of Sedro-Woolley that is subject to taxation under this 
Ordinance shall apply for and obtain an "occupation license" and shall pay the tax 
imposed on each of the same. Each "occupation license" shall be numbered, shall show 
the name, place and character of business of the taxpayer, and such other information on 
as the City Clerk shall deem necessary, and shall be conspicuously posted in the place of 
business for which it is issued at all times. Such license shall be personal and 
nontransferable. 

No person to whom an "occupation license" has been issued pursuant to this ordinance 
shall suffer or allow any other person for whom a separate license is required to operate 
under or display that person's license, nor shall such other person operate under or display 
such license. 



Any taxpayer who engages in or carries on any business subject to tax hereunder without 
obtaining and maintaining a valid "occupation license" to do so shall be guilty of a 
violation of this ordinance for each day during which the business is so engaged in or 
carried on and the taxpayer who fails or refuses to pay the license fee or tax on any part 
thereof on or before the due date shall be deemed to be operating without having a license 
so to do. 

Section 4. A new Section SWMC 5.06.040 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Allocation of Income - Cellular Telephone Service.  

A. Service Address. Payments by a customer for the telephone service from telephones 
without a fixed location shall be allocated among taxing jurisdictions to the location of 
the customer's principal service address during the period for which the tax applies. 

B. Presumption. There is a presumption that the service address a customer supplies to 
the taxpayer is current and accurate, unless the taxpayer has actual knowledge to the 
contrary. 

C. Roaming Phones. When the service is provided while a subscriber is roaming outside 
the subscriber's normal cellular network area, the gross income shall be assigned 
consistent with the taxpayer's accounting system to the location of the originating cell site 
of the call, or to the location of the main cellular switching office that switched the call. 

D. Dispute Resolution. If there is a dispute between or among the City of Sedro-Woolley 
and one or more other cities, as to the service address of a customer who is receiving 
cellular telephone services and the dispute is not resolved by negotiation among the 
parties, then the dispute shall be resolved by the City of Sedro-Woolley and the other city 
or cities by submitting the issue for settlement to the Association of Washington Cities 
(AWC). Once the taxes on the disputed revenues have been paid to one of the contesting 
cities, the cellular telephone service company shall have no further liability with respect 
to additional taxes on the disputed revenues so long as it changes its billing records for 
future revenues to comport with the settlement facilitated by AWC. 

Section 5. A new Section SWMC 5.06.050 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Remittance.  

A. Monthly Remittance. The tax imposed by this ordinance shall be reported and remitted 
to the City of Sedro-Woolley monthly on or before the last day of the subsequent month. 
If a taxpayer commences to engage in business at any time other than the first day of the 
month, then the taxpayer's first return and tax payment shall be based upon and cover the 
portion of the month during which the taxpayer engaged in business. 

B. Returns. The remittance shall be in legal tender and shall be accompanied by a return 
on a form to be provided and prescribed by the City Clerk. The taxpayer shall be required 
to swear or affirm in writing on the return that the information therein given is full and 



true and that the taxpayer knows it to be so. If the total tax for which any person is liable 
under this ordinance is not reasonably expected to exceed $100 in any month, the 
taxpayer may file a written request with the City Clerk to file and pay taxes due under 
this Ordinance annually. Such requests are subject to approval by the City Clerk. 

Section 6. A new Section SWMC 5.06.060 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Taxpayer engaged in more than one business. Any person engaged in, or carrying on 
more than one activity or business subject to the tax imposed by this Ordinance, shall pay 
the tax so imposed on each such business or activity. 

Section 7. A new Section SWMC 5.06.070 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Deductions. In computing the tax imposed by this Ordinance, the following may be 
deducted from the measure of the tax: 

A. Adjustments made to a billing or to a customer account or to a telecommunications 
company accrual account in order to reverse a billing or charge that had been made as a 
result of third-party fraud or other crime and was properly a debt of a customer and for 
which the taxpayer can provide documentation to the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

B. All cash discounts allowed and actually granted to customers of the taxpayer during 
the tax year and for which the taxpayer can provide documentation to the City of Sedro-
Woolley. 

C. Amounts derived from transactions in interstate or foreign commerce, or from 
business done for the government of the United States, its officers or agents in their 
official capacity, and any amount paid by the taxpayer to the United States or the State of 
Washington, as excise taxes. 

D. The amount of credit losses actually sustained by taxpayers whose regular books are 
kept on an accrual basis. 

E. Amounts derived from business which the City of Sedro-Woolley is prohibited from 
taxing under the Constitution or the laws of this State or the United States. 

Section 8. A new Section SWMC 5.06.080 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Record Retention Requirements. It shall be the duty of every person required to obtain an 
occupation license and liable for payment of any tax imposed by this ordinance to keep 
and preserve for a period of five years such books and records as will accurately reflect 
the amount of gross income from the business, and from which can be determined the 
amount of any tax for which the person may be liable under the provisions of this 
ordinance. The term "books and records" as used in this section includes but is not 
limited to copies of the taxpayer's Federal income tax returns, Federal excise tax returns, 



State of Washington excise tax returns, and copies of income tax and excise tax audits 
made by the United States or the State of Washington and furnished to such person. The 
taxpayer's books and records shall be available for examination at all reasonable times by 
the City Clerk and his or her duly authorized. 

In the case of any taxpayer who does not keep the necessary books and records within the 
City of Sedro-Woolley for examination, it shall be sufficient if such person produce the 
same within the City of Sedro-Woolley as instructed or required by the City Clerk 

Any taxpayer who fails, neglects, or refuses to produce such books and records in 
accordance with this ordinance, or fails to file a return, in addition to being subject to 
other civil and criminal penalties provided by this ordinance, is subject to a tax 
assessment in an amount determined by the City Clerk in accordance with the provisions 
of this ordinance, which tax assessment shall be deemed prima facie correct and shall be 
the amount of fee or tax owing to the City of Sedro-Woolley by the taxpayer unless the 
person can prove otherwise by competent evidence. The taxpayer shall be notified by 
mail by the City Clerk of the amount of tax assessment imposed pursuant to this Section, 
together with any penalty and/or interest due, and the total of such amounts shall 
thereupon become immediately due and payable. 

Section 9. A new Section SWMC 5.06.090 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Tax Delinquency -- Unlawful Acts.  

A. Penalties and Interest. For each payment due, if such payment is not made by the due 
date thereof, there shall be added penalty and interest as follows: 

(1) If paid 1 - 10 days late, there shall be a penalty of 10% added to the amount of 
tax due. 

(2) If paid 11 - 20 days late, there shall be a penalty of 15% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(3) If paid 21 - 30 days late, there shall be a penalty of 20% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(4) If paid 31 - 60 days late, there shall be a penalty of 25% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(5) In addition to the above penalty, the City of Sedro-Woolley shall charge the 
taxpayer interest on all taxes due at the rate of one percent (1%) per month or 
portion thereof that said amounts are past due. 

(6) The tax imposed by this ordinance, and all penalties and interest thereon, shall 
constitute a debt to the City of Sedro-Woolley, and may be collected by court 
proceedings in the same manner as any other debt which remedy shall be in 
addition to all other available remedies. Any judgment entered in favor of the City 
of Sedro-Woolley may include an award to the City of Sedro-Woolley of all court 



and collection costs including attorneys' fees to the extent peimitted by law. 
Amounts delinquent more than sixty days may be assigned to a third party for 
collection, in which case the amount of any collection charges shall be in addition 
to all other amounts owed. Amounts due shall not be considered paid until the 
City of Sedro-Woolley has received payment for the full amount due or has 
discharged the amount due and not paid. 

B. Unlawful Acts. It is unlawful for any person liable for the tax imposed by this 
ordinance to fail to pay the tax when due or for any person, firm, or corporation to make 
any false or fraudulent return or any false statement in connection with the return. 

C. Criminal Penalties. Any person who intentionally violates any provision of this 
ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof punished 
pursuant to state law or City ordinance. 

Section 10. A new Section SWMC 5.06.100 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Quitting, Selling, or Transferring Business. Whenever any taxpayer quits business, or 
sells out, exchanges, or otherwise disposes of such business, any tax payable under this 
Ordinance shall become immediately due and payable, and such taxpayer shall, within 10 
days thereafter, make a return and pay the tax due; and any person who becomes a 
successor shall become liable for the full amount of any unpaid tax, interest, and penalties 
and shall withhold from the purchase price an amount sufficient to pay any tax due from 
the taxpayer until such time as the taxpayer shall produce a receipt from the City of 
Sedro-Woolley showing payment in full of any tax due or a certificate that no tax is due. 
If such tax, interest or penalty has not been paid by the taxpayer within 10 days from the 
date of such sale, exchange, or disposal, the successor shall become liable for the 
payment of the full amount of tax, interest and penalties. The successor's liability shall be 
limited to the purchase price or fair market value of the business purchased if no cash 
transaction took place. No successor shall be liable for any tax due from the taxpayer 
from whom the successor has acquired a business or stock of goods if the successor gives 
written notice to the City Clerk of such acquisition and no assessment is issued by the 
City Clerk within six months of receipt of such notice against the former operator of the 
business. Taxpayer's account will remain on an active status and be subject to all taxes, 
penalties, and interest until such time as the City Clerk is notified in writing that the 
taxpayer has discontinued business activity within the City of Sedro-Woolley. Nothing in 
this ordinance is intended nor shall it be construed to prohibit the successor from 
engaging in business in the City of Sedro-Woolley pending resolution of the successor's 
tax liability. 

Section 11. A new Section SWMC 5.06.110 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Tax Not Exclusive. The tax levied herein shall be additional to any license fee or tax 
imposed or levied under any other law or under any other ordinance of the City of Sedro-
Woolley. 



Section 12. A new Section SWMC 5.06.120 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Rate Changes. No change in the rate of tax upon persons engaging in the telephone 
business, including cellular telephone service, shall apply to business activities occurring 
before the effective date of the change. Furthermore, except for a change in the tax rate 
authorized by RCW 35.21.870, no change in the rate of the tax on the telephone business 
may take effect sooner than sixty (60) days following the enactment of the ordinance 
establishing the change. The City of Sedro-Woolley shall send to each cellular telephone 
service company at the address on its occupation license, a copy of any ordinance 
changing the rate of tax upon cellular telephone service promptly upon its enactment. 

Section 13.A new Section SWMC 5.06.130 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Appeal Procedure. Any taxpayer aggrieved by the amount of the fee or tax found by the 
City Clerk to be required under the provisions of this ordinance may, upon full payment 
of the amount assessed, appeal from such finding by filing a written notice of appeal with 
the City Clerk within 14 days from the date such taxpayer was given notified in writing 
of such amount. The Clerk shall, as soon as practicable, fix a time and place for the 
hearing of such appeal before the City Council, which time shall be not more than 60 
days after the filing of the notice of appeal, and shall cause a notice of the time and place 
thereof to be delivered or mailed to the appellant. At such hearing before the City 
Council, the taxpayer shall be entitled to be heard and to introduce evidence in his or her 
own behalf. The City Council shall render a decision, together with findings of fact and 
conclusions of law, based upon the evidence presented at the time of the hearing and all 
material on file in the case. The City Council's decisions shall indicate the correct 
amount of the fee or tax owing. The City Council's decision shall be final. The appellant 
or the City of Sedro-Woolley may appeal the decision of the City Council to the Superior 
Court of Washington in and for Skagit County within 30 days after the date of the City 
Council's decision. The City Council, through the Mayor may, by subpoena, require the 
attendance of any person, and may also require him/her to produce any pertinent books 
and records. Any person served with such subpoena shall appear at the time and place 
therein stated and produce the books and records required, if any, and shall testify 
truthfully under oath administered by the Mayor as to any matter required of him/her 
pertinent to the appeal, and it shall be unlawful for him/her to fail or refuse so to do. 

Section 14._A new Section SWMC 5.06.140 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Over or Underpayment of Tax.  In the event that any person makes an overpayment, and 
within two years of the date of such overpayment makes application for a refund or 
credit, the person's claims shall be allowed and a refund made by the City of Sedro-
Woolley upon determination by the City Clerk that no other sums are owed by the person 
to the City of Sedro-Woolley. If a person determines that the tax has been underpaid and 
without notice by any party pays the amount due to the City of Sedro-Woolley, such 
amount shall not be subject to penalty. 



Section 15. A new Section SWMC 5.06.150 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Pass-through to Customer. The taxpayer may pass any tax in this chapter on to a 
customer, client, or purchaser, showing the additional amount on the billing for or 
invoice. However, doing so shall not cause the customer, client, or purchaser to become 
a "taxpayer" for purposes of this Chapter. 

Section 16.  Referendum Procedure. A referendum petition with respect to this ordinance may be 
filed with the City Clerk within seven days of the passage and publication of this ordinance. The 
referendum procedures set forth in RCW 35.17.240 through 35.17.360, as hereafter amended, 
shall apply, with the following additions and amendments as required by RCW 35.21.706: 

A. Within ten days of the filing of the petition, the City Clerk will confer with the 
petitioner concerning the form and style of the petition, issue and identification number, 
and secure an accurate, concise and positive ballot title from the City Attorney; 

B. The petitioner shall have thirty days in which to secure the signatures of not less than 
15% of the registered voters of the City of Sedro-Woolley, as of the last municipal 
general election, upon petition forms which contain the ballot title and full text of this 
ordinance; and 

C. The City Clerk shall verify the sufficiency of the signatures on the petition, and if 
sufficient valid signatures are properly submitted, shall certify the referendum measure to 
the next election ballot within the City of Sedro-Woolley, or at a special election as 
provided pursuant to RCW 35.17.260(2). 

Section 17. Repeal. Sections SWMC 5.04.315, SWMC 5.04.317, and SWMC 5.04.325 are 
hereby repealed in their entirety, provided that they shall apply to any tax due there under, which 
obligation shall not be extinguished by this ordinance. 

Section 18. Title. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code Chapter 5.06 shall be entitled "Utility Tax". 

Section 19.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 20. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective five days after publication; provided that 
the repeal clause (Section 17) takes effect on April 1, 2005. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	 , 2005. 

MAYOR 



ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 



Alternative B: 

6% Solid Waste Tax on WM only; no tax on 
cell phone 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
AND MODIFYING THE UTILITY TAX ON SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES, 
SANITARY SEWER AND TELEPHONE SERVICES WITHIN SEDRO-WOOLLEY AND 

PROCEDURES FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION THEREOF AND PROVIDING FOR CIVIL 
AND CRIMINAL PENALTIES 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.82.020 authorizes the City of Sedro-Woolley to license for revenue; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley (the "City"), finds in order to 
provide revenues for the City of Sedro-Woolley a utility tax on telephone utilities and solid 
waste collection services should be levied pursuant to the City of Sedro-Woolley's authority to 
license for revenue; 

WHEREAS, this utility tax is also imposed for the privilege of providing utilities within Sedro-
Woolley pursuant to RCW 35.21.870; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley desires to provide for a referendum procedure to apply 
to this ordinance pursuant to RCW 35.21.706; now therefore: 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. A new Section SWMC 5.06.010 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Definitions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the words phrases and terms 
used in this ordinance shall have the following meanings: 

A. "Cellular telephone service" means a two-way voice and data 
telephone/telecommunications system based in whole or substantially in part on wireless 
radio communications which is not subject to regulation by the Washington State Utilities 
and Transportation Commission (WUTC). This includes cellular mobile service. The 
definition of cellular mobile service includes other wireless radio communications 
services such as specialized mobile radio (SMR), personal communications services 
(PCS), and any other evolving wireless radio communications technology which 
accomplishes a purpose similar to cellular mobile service. Cellular telephone service is 
r,,)t included within the definition of "telephone business" for the purposes of this 
Ordinance. 

B. "City Clerk" means the City Clerk of Sedro-Woolley and his or her designees or 
agents. 

C. "Competitive telephone service" means the providing by any person of 
telecommunications equipment or apparatus, or service related to that equipment or 
apparatus such as repair or maintenance service, if the equipment or apparatus is of a type 
which can be provided by persons that are not subject to regulation as telephone 
companies under Title 80 RCW and for which a separate charge is made. 



D. "Gross Income" means the value proceeding or accruing from the sale of tangible 
property or service, and receipts (including all sums earned or charged, whether received 
or not) by reason of investment of capital in the business engaged in (including rentals, 
royalties, interest and other emoluments however designated excluding receipts or 
proceeds from the sale or use of real property or any interest therein and the proceeds 
from the sale of notes, bonds, mortgages, or other evidences of indebtedness, or stocks 
and the like and without any deduction on account of the cost of the property sold, cost of 
materials used, labor costs, interest or discount paid, or any expenses whatsoever, and 
without any deduction on account of losses. Further deductions and exceptions from 
gross income upon which the fee or tax described in this ordinance is computed are set 
forth in Section 7. 

E. "Person or persons" means persons of either sex, firms, copartnerships, corporations, 
limited liability companies, and other associations, whether acting by themselves or 
through servants, agents or employees, and shall include the City of Sedro-Woolley for 
purposes of imposition and collection of this tax. 

F. "Taxpayer" means any person liable for the license fee or tax imposed by this 
ordinance. 

G. "Tax year or taxable year" means (1) the year commencing January 1st and ending on 
December 31st, of such year, or (2) the taxpayer's fiscal year when permission is obtained 
from the City Clerk to use that period as the tax year, or (3) the year commencing 
December 15th and ending on December 14th of the following calendar year when 
permission is obtained from the City Clerk to use that period as the tax year. 

H. "Telephone business" means the business of providing access to a local telephone 
network, local telephone network switching service, toll service or coin telephone 
services or providing telephonic, video, data or similar communication or transmission 
for hire, via a local telephone network, toll line or channel cable, microwave, or similar 
communication or transmission system. The term includes cooperative or farmer line 
telephone companies or associations operating an exchange. Telephone business also 
includesdoes not inclucL cellular telephone service. Telephone business does not include 
the providing of competitive telephone service, the providing of cable television service, 
nor the providing of broadcast services by radio and television stations. 

Section 2. A new Section SWMC 5.06.020 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Utility Tax Levied - Rate. On and after April 1, 2005, there is levied on and shall be 
collected from every person a tax for the act or privilege of engaging in certain business 
activities, measured by the application of the respective rates against gross income as 
follows: 

A. Telephone Business. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on any telephone 
business (inelti4in-g-,-Neludina .cellular telephone service) within the City of Sedro-
Woolley a fee or tax equal to six percent (6%) of the total gross income from such 
business in the City of Sedro-Woolley. Tax liability imposed under this Section shall not 



apply to that portion of gross income derived from charges to another 
telecommunications company, as defined in RCW 80.04.010, for connecting fees, 
switching charges, or carrier access charges relating to intrastate toll telephone services, 
or for access to, or charges for, interstate services, or charges for network telephone 
service that is purchased for the purpose of resale. 

B. Solid Waste. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on the business of collecting 
solid waste, recyclable materials or yard waste, a tax equal to two percent (2%) of the 
total gross income from such business in the City of Sedro-Woolley, but not including 
income from the sale of recyclable materials or yard waste. 

C. Sewer System. Upon every person engaged in or carrying on the business of operating 
a sanitary sewer system, a tax equal to two percent (2%) of the total gross income from 
such business in the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

Section 3. A new Section SWMC 5.06.030 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

License Requirement. Any person subject to taxation under the provisions of this 
ordinance is required to obtain an occupation license from the City of Sedro-Woolley. On 
and after April 1, 2005, no person subject to payment of the tax herein shall engage in 
any business, occupation, or activity in the City of Sedro-Woolley without first obtaining 
and holding a valid license so to do, which license shall be known as an "occupation 
license" for which the applicant will pay no charge. Such "occupation license shall expire 
at the end of the calendar year in which it is issued and a new license shall be required for 
each calendar year, unless the taxpayer is transacting business on a fiscal year with the 
prior consent of the City Clerk, obtains an occupation license for the period of its current 
fiscal year which shall be deemed the tax year for such taxpayer. In such case, the 
occupation license shall expire at the end of the taxpayer's tax year. 

Application for an "occupation license" shall be made to the City of Sedro-Woolley's 
Community Services Department which shall provide the forms therefore and shall issue 
the license. 

Any person engaging in or carrying on more than one business, occupation, pursuit or 
privilege within the City of Sedro-Woolley that is subject to taxation under this 
Ordinance shall apply for and obtain an "occupation license" and shall pay the tax 
imposed on each of the same. Each "occupation license" shall be numbered, shall show 
the name, place and character of business of the taxpayer, and such other information on 
as the City Clerk shall deem necessary, and shall be conspicuously posted in the place of 
business for which it is issued at all times. Such license shall be personal and 
nontransferable. 

No person to whom an "occupation license" has been issued pursuant to this ordinance 
shall suffer or allow any other person for whom a separate license is required to operate 
under or display that person's license, nor shall such other person operate under or display 
such license. 



Any taxpayer who engages in or carries on any business subject to tax hereunder without 
obtaining and maintaining a valid "occupation license" to do so shall be guilty of a 
violation of this ordinance for each day during which the business is so engaged in or 
carried on and the taxpayer who fails or refuses to pay the license fee or tax on any part 
thereof on or before the due date shall be deemed to be operating without having a license 
so to do. 

Section-4-,\- fit-w-Set:7tic 	 :,-added4o-the-Setiro 	M 	al-Cede.Lb 

Allocation  of  -Income—Cellulai• Telephone Service: 

A,Service-Addrest;-.---PaymentFc-by-a-cus-tomer-for-the-teleplione--service-frointelepliones 
without a fixed-1{.4catioli-sha-14-4e-allocated and  tax-nig-jurisdictions to. the locatiowof 
the-eu4o-i-ne0s-principal ter-vice address during the period for which 	appl et  

,- re s umption,There-is-a-prestimption-that-the-ser apt addreis-a-custome.p-s upplies-to 
the tan,p-aye-r-i-s-current-and-ae-eurater-u-niess the-Taxpayer has act;ial-line-w-led-ix,+_. to 	the 
contrary. 

C. Roaming PhoneWhen  the-serv-Ice-is-provided wl+ilett-sul.scriber-is roaming outside 
the-subscriberts-norrnal-c-ellatar-network-area;the-gross-iricome-sh41-be--assigned 
consistent-with-the-tax-payee-s-accounting  .•;yst.ein  to the location of the oritinatint-cell site 
of the-calk-or to the location of-the-main-cellular-switchirig-office-that switched-the-call, 

1-X-Dispute-Resoluti-on:-If-there-i-s-a-dispute-betweeryor-amon-g- the-City of Scdro-Woo-14cy 
arid-elle-or more othe • 	• )  the service-addreas of a custorner-who-k receiving 
celltilar-telephone services and the dispute is not resolved by negotiation-among-the 
partiesF-then-the-dispute-shall-be-resolvt,4-by4he-City-of Sedro-Wo41-ey-and the other-city 
or-c-ities-by-submittiRg-the issue for-settlement-to-the-Asseciation-of-Washingtort-Cities 
(AWC). Once-the-twies on-the-clispiited  revenues-liave been paid to one of the contestin 
cities, the-cellular tAcp-hou&seiNice company shall have  .no further liabi-lit5,-with-respeet 
to-additional-tax-es-en-the-disputk4revenues--so-long-as-i-t-changes--its.billing-records 	 for 
future-revenues 	to-compoi4-with the-s.ettletnem 4 isci l itated-by-A-WC: 

Section 54. A new Section SWMC 5.06.050 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Remittance.  

A. Monthly Remittance. The tax imposed by this ordinance shall be reported and remitted 
to the City of Sedro-Woolley monthly on or before the last day of the subsequent month. 
If a taxpayer commences to engage in business at any time other than the first day of the 
month, then the taxpayer's first return and tax payment shall be based upon and cover the 
portion of the month during which the taxpayer engaged in business. 

B. Returns. The remittance shall be in legal tender and shall be accompanied by a return 
on a form to be provided and prescribed by the City Clerk. The taxpayer shall be required 
to swear or affirm in writing on the return that the information therein given is full and 



true and that the taxpayer knows it to be so. If the total tax for which any person is liable 
under this ordinance is not reasonably expected to exceed $100 in any month, the 
taxpayer may file a written request with the City Clerk to file and pay taxes due under 
this Ordinance annually. Such requests are subject to approval by the City Clerk. 

Section 45 . A new Section SWMC 5.06.060 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Taxpayer engaged in more than one business. Any person engaged in, or carrying on 
more than one activity or business subject to the tax imposed by this Ordinance, shall pay 
the tax so imposed on each such business or activity. 

Section . A new Section SWMC 5.06.070 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Deductions. In computing the tax imposed by this Ordinance, the following may be 
deducted from the measure of the tax: 

A. Adjustments made to a billing or to a customer account or to a telecommunications 
company accrual account in order to reverse a billing or charge that had been made as a 
result of third-party fraud or other crime and was properly a debt of a customer and for 
which the taxpayer can provide documentation to the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

B. All cash discounts allowed and actually granted to customers of the taxpayer during 
the tax year and for which the taxpayer can provide documentation to the City of Sedro-
Woolley. 

C. Amounts derived from transactions in interstate or foreign commerce, or from 
business done for the government of the United States, its officers or agents in their 
official capacity, and any amount paid by the taxpayer to the United States or the State of 
Washington, as excise taxes. 

D. The amount of credit losses actually sustained by taxpayers whose regular books are 
kept on an accrual basis. 

E. Amounts derived from business which the City of Sedro-Woolley is prohibited from 
taxing under the Constitution or the laws of this State or the United States. 

Section 87. A new Section SWMC 5.06.080 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Record Retention Requirements. It shall be the duty of every person required to obtain an 
occupation license and liable for payment of any tax imposed by this ordinance to keep 
and preserve for a period of five years such books and records as will accurately reflect 
the amount of gross income from the business, and from which can be determined the 
amount of any tax for which the person may be liable under the provisions of this 
ordinance. The term "books and records" as used in this section includes but is not 
limited to copies of the taxpayer's Federal income tax returns, Federal excise tax returns, 



State of Washington excise tax returns, and copies of income tax and excise tax audits 
made by the United States or the State of Washington and furnished to such person. The 
taxpayer's books and records shall be available for examination at all reasonable times by 
the City Clerk and his or her duly authorized. 

In the case of any taxpayer who does not keep the necessary books and records within the 
City of Sedro-Woolley for examination, it shall be sufficient if such person produce the 
same within the City of Sedro-Woolley as instructed or required by the City Clerk 

Any taxpayer who fails, neglects, or refuses to produce such books and records in 
accordance with this ordinance, or fails to file a return, in addition to being subject to 
other civil and criminal penalties provided by this ordinance, is subject to a tax 
assessment in an amount determined by the City Clerk in accordance with the provisions 
of this ordinance, which tax assessment shall be deemed prima facie correct and shall be 
the amount of fee or tax owing to the City of Sedro-Woolley by the taxpayer unless the 
person can prove otherwise by competent evidence. The taxpayer shall be notified by 
mail by the City Clerk of the amount of tax assessment imposed pursuant to this Section, 
together with any penalty and/or interest due, and the total of such amounts shall 
thereupon become immediately due and payable. 

Section 48. A new Section SWMC 5.06.090 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Tax Delinquency -- Unlawful Acts.  

A. Penalties and Interest. For each payment due, if such payment is not made by the due 
date thereof, there shall be added penalty and interest as follows: 

(1) If paid 1 - 10 days late, there shall be a penalty of 10% added to the amount of 
tax due. 

(2) If paid 11 - 20 days late, there shall be a penalty of 15% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(3) If paid 21 - 30 days late, there shall be a penalty of 20% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(4) If paid 31 - 60 days late, there shall be a penalty of 25% added to the amount 
of tax due. 

(5) In addition to the above penalty, the City of Sedro-Woolley shall charge the 
taxpayer interest on all taxes due at the rate of one percent (1%) per month or 
portion thereof that said amounts are past due. 

(6) The tax imposed by this ordinance, and all penalties and interest thereon, shall 
constitute a debt to the City of Sedro-Woolley, and may be collected by court 
proceedings in the same manner as any other debt which remedy shall be in 
addition to all other available remedies. Any judgment entered in favor of the City 
of Sedro-Woolley may include an award to the City of Sedro-Woolley of all court 



and collection costs including attorneys' fees to the extent permitted by law. 
Amounts delinquent more than sixty days may be assigned to a third party for 
collection, in which case the amount of any collection charges shall be in addition 
to all other amounts owed. Amounts due shall not be considered paid until the 
City of Sedro-Woolley has received payment for the full amount due or has 
discharged the amount due and not paid. 

B. Unlawful Acts. It is unlawful for any person liable for the tax imposed by this 
ordinance to fail to pay the tax when due or for any person, firm, or corporation to make 
any false or fraudulent return or any false statement in connection with the return. 

C. Criminal Penalties. Any person who intentionally violates any provision of this 
ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof punished 
pursuant to state law or City ordinance. 

Section 1. G9. A new Section SWMC 5.06.100 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, as 
follows: 

Quitting, Selling, or Transferring Business. Whenever any taxpayer quits business, or 
sells out, exchanges, or otherwise disposes of such business, any tax payable under this 
Ordinance shall become immediately due and payable, and such taxpayer shall, within 10 
days thereafter, make a return and pay the tax due; and any person who becomes a 
successor shall become liable for the full amount of any unpaid tax, interest, and penalties 
and shall withhold from the purchase price an amount sufficient to pay any tax due from 
the taxpayer until such time as the taxpayer shall produce a receipt from the City of 
Sedro-Woolley showing payment in full of any tax due or a certificate that no tax is due. 
If such tax, interest or penalty has not been paid by the taxpayer within 10 days from the 
date of such sale, exchange, or disposal, the successor shall become liable for the 
payment of the full amount of tax, interest and penalties. The successor's liability shall be 
limited to the purchase price or fair market value of the business purchased if no cash 
transaction took place. No successor shall be liable for any tax due from the taxpayer 
from whom the successor has acquired a business or stock of goods if the successor gives 
written notice to the City Clerk of such acquisition and no assessment is issued by the 
City Clerk within six months of receipt of such notice against the former operator of the 
business. Taxpayer's account will remain on an active status and be subject to all taxes, 
penalties, and interest until such time as the City Clerk is notified in writing that the 
taxpayer has discontinued business activity within the City of Sedro-Woolley. Nothing in 
this ordinance is intended nor shall it be construed to prohibit the successor from 
engaging in business in the City of Sedro-Woolley pending resolution of the successor's 
tax liability. 

Section 4410. A new Section SWMC 5.06.110 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, 
as follows: 

Tax Not Exclusive. The tax levied herein shall be additional to any license fee or tax 
imposed or levied under any other law or under any other ordinance of the City of Sedro-
Woolley. 



Section 4411. A new Section SWMC 5.06.120 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, 
as follows: 

Rate Changes. No change in the rate of tax upon persons engaging in the telephone 
business, illehi(1.: - .-4!ular t'Lepiiori,-:.-s-c+v;:.::-.7shall apply to business activities occurring 
before the effective date of the change. Furthermore, except for a change in the tax rate 
authorized by RCW 35.21.870, no change in the rate of the tax on the telephone business 
may take effect sooner than sixty (60) days following the enactment of the ordinance 
establishing the change. Me 	ts,e41-ti 	, kir 

4.34:impany-at-the-fitliir-ess on its occivalion 1 icenqc, 	opy -4-any  0 rdi nanc e 
c-hanging-the-faie-oft a N.-upon -c lulaf-+e4t.pht4ie 

Section 1312.A new Section SWMC 5.06.130 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, 
as follows: 

Appeal Procedure. Any taxpayer aggrieved by the amount of the fee or tax found by the 
City Clerk to be required under the provisions of this ordinance may, upon full payment 
of the amount assessed, appeal from such finding by filing a written notice of appeal with 
the City Clerk within 14 days from the date such taxpayer was given notified in writing 
of such amount. The Clerk shall, as soon as practicable, fix a time and place for the 
hearing of such appeal before the City Council, which time shall be not more than 60 
days after the filing of the notice of appeal, and shall cause a notice of the time and place 
thereof to be delivered or mailed to the appellant. At such hearing before the City 
Council, the taxpayer shall be entitled to be heard and to introduce evidence in his or her 
own behalf The City Council shall render a decision, together with findings of fact and 
conclusions of law, based upon the evidence presented at the time of the hearing and all 
material on file in the case. The City Council's decisions shall indicate the correct 
amount of the fee or tax owing. The City Council's decision shall be final. The appellant 
or the City of Sedro-Woolley may appeal the decision of the City Council to the Superior 
Court of Washington in and for Skagit County within 30 days after the date of the City 
Council's decision. The City Council, through the Mayor may, by subpoena, require the 
attendance of any person, and may also require him/her to produce any pertinent books 
and records. Any person served with such subpoena shall appear at the time and place 
therein stated and produce the books and records required, if any, and shall testify 
truthfully under oath administered by the Mayor as to any matter required of him/her 
pertinent to the appeal, and it shall be unlawful for him/her to fail or refuse so to do. 

Section -1-413._A new Section SWMC 5.06.140 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, 
as follows: 

Over or Underpayment of Tax.  In the event that any person makes an overpayment, and 
within two years of the date of such overpayment makes application for a refund or 
credit, the person's claims shall be allowed and a refund made by the City of Sedro-
Woolley upon determination by the City Clerk that no other sums are owed by the person 
to the City of Sedro-Woolley. If a person determines that the tax has been underpaid and 
without notice by any party pays the amount due to the City of Sedro-Woolley, such 
amount shall not be subject to penalty. 



Section 	A new Section SWMC 5.06.150 is added to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code, 
as follows: 

Pass-through to Customer. The taxpayer may pass any tax in this chapter on to a 
customer, client, or purchaser, showing the additional amount on the billing for or 
invoice. However, doing so shall not cause the customer, client, or purchaser to become 
a "taxpayer" for purposes of this Chapter. 

Section 1.615.  Referendum Procedure. A referendum petition with respect to this ordinance may 
be filed with the City Clerk within seven days of the passage and publication of this ordinance. 
The referendum procedures set forth in RCW 35.17.240 through 35.17.360, as hereafter 
amended, shall apply, with the following additions and amendments as required by RCW 
35.21.706: 

A. Within ten days of the filing of the petition, the City Clerk will confer with the 
petitioner concerning the form and style of the petition, issue and identification number, 
and secure an accurate, concise and positive ballot title from the City Attorney; 

B. The petitioner shall have thirty days in which to secure the signatures of not less than 
15% of the registered voters of the City of Sedro-Woolley, as of the last municipal 
general election, upon petition forms which contain the ballot title and full text of this 
ordinance; and 

C. The City Clerk shall verify the sufficiency of the signatures on the petition, and if 
sufficient valid signatures are properly submitted, shall certify the referendum measure to 
the next election ballot within the City of Sedro-Woolley, or at a special election as 
provided pursuant to RCW 35.17.260(2). 

Section 1-716. Repeal. Sections SWMC 5.04.315, SWMC 5.04.317, and SWMC 5.04.325 are 
hereby repealed in their entirety, provided that they shall apply to any tax due there under, which 
obligation shall not be extinguished by this ordinance. 

Section 4S17. Title. Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code Chapter 5.06 shall be entitled "Utility 
Tax' 

Section 4-918.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 2019. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective five days after publication; provided 
that the repeal clause (Section 16) takes effect on April 1, 2005. 

Passed and approved this 	day of 	 , 2005. 

MAYOR 



ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 



Memorandum 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

JAN 1. 2 2005 

To: 	Mayor Dillon and City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson 

Date: 1/5/2005 

Re: 	2005 Salary Ordinance 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL clAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Background information: Attached is the salary ordinance for 2005. 

Salary increases for represented employees are per current AFSCME and SWPSG 
agreements. When negotiations are completed with the Guild (Commissioned 
Employees and Firefighters) and a new agreement signed, an amendment to this 
Ordinance may be necessary. 

Non-represented staff are scheduled to receive a 1.69% salary increase unless 
otherwise stated in individual's contracts or arrangements at time of hire or as 
adjusted per Council review. The Library Board has granted a $0.25 per hour raise 
to all Library staff with the exception of 1 part-time person receiving a $0.50 per 
hour increase. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that Council approve Ordinance No. 	 
An Ordinance Establishing the Salaries and Wages for Elected Officials, Union 
(Guild) and Non-Union Employees of the City of Sedro-Woolley for the Fiscal Year 
Beginning January 1, 2005. 

1 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARIES AND WAGES FOR ELECTED 
OFFICIALS, UNION (GUILD) AND NON-UNION EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 
2005 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish, on an annual basis, the salaries and wages of Elected 
Officials and Union (Guild) and Non-Union staff; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild — Police Department 
Commissioned Employees and Firefighter Classification, are in negotiations, represented 
employees' wages shall be in accordance with the May 20, 2002 through December 31, 2003 
contract currently in place; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in the second year of a three year agreement with the Sedro-Woolley 
Public Safety Guild — Police Department Support Employees, and applicable wages are depicted 
below; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in the last year of a three year agreement with the American Federation 
of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 176-SW, (AFSCME) and 
applicable wages are depicted below; and 

WHEREAS, Non-Union represented staff salaries and wages are depicted below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The year 2005 wages for Guild represented Police Department Commissioned 
Employees and Firefighter employees (Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild) shall be established 
per the current agreement, as depicted below. It is further understood that when a new contract 
is signed between the parties that an amendment to this ordinance may be necessary to conform 
the salaries to the agreement. 

Section 2. The 2005 wages for all other Union represented City employees (American 
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 176-SW [AFSCME] 
and Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild — Police Department Support Employees) shall be 
established per the current contracts, which increases wages 1.69% as depicted below. 

Section 3. The 2005 salaries and wages for non-union employees shall be increased by 1.69% 
as set forth below. The City Council has reviewed certain positions and increased salaries as 
necessary. 

Section 4. The base salaries and wages for all elected officials and employees of the City of 
Sedro-Woolley are established as follows, not including applicable longevity or incentive pay: 



TITLE: 

Elected 
Mayor 

Councilmember 
Ward No. I 
Ward No. 2 
Ward No. 3 
Ward No. 4 
Ward No. 5 
Ward No. 6 
At Large 

Non-Union 
City Attorney 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 
City Engineer/Public Works Director 
Police Lieutenant 
Clerk-Treasurer 
Assistant Fire Chief/Training Officer 
Librarian 
City Planner 
Engineering Assistant/Inspector 
Police Confidential Secretary 
Court Coordinator 
Assistant Librarian 
Building Specialist 
Police Transcriptionist (part time) 
Court Clerk (part time) 
Library Extra Help  

SALARY OR WAGE RANGE: 

$1,525 Per Month 

$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 
$ 300 Per Month 

$ 5,300 Per Month 
$ 5,293 Per Month 
$ 5,254 Per Month 
S 5,000 Per Month 
$ 5,026 Per Month 
$ 4,529 Per Month 
$ 4,068-$4,333 Per Month 
$ 4,188 Per Month 
$ 3,661 Per Month 
$ 3,336 Per Month 
$ 3,019 Per Month 
$ 2,968 Per Month 
$ 2,962 Per Month 
$ 2,500 Per Month 
$ 12.00 - $ 15.00 Per Hour 
$ 13.24 Per Hour 
$ 8.75 - $11.00 Per Hour 

Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild 
Commissioned Employees & Firefighters 

Police Sergeant 
Police Officer 
Firefighter 

Support Employees  
Records Clerk 
Dispatch Clerk 
Code Enforcement Officer 

$4,360 - $4,536 Per Month 
$3,353 - $4,133 Per Month 
$2,968 - $3,658 Per Month 

52.50 - 53.144  Per Month 
$2,419 - $2,982 Per Month 
$2,638 - $2,888 Per Month 



TITLE: 

Union, AFSCME 
Plant Foreman 
Street Foreman 
Park Foreman 
Garbage Foreman 
Plant Operator 
Lead Cemetery 
Equipment Operator & Driver/Collector 
Utility Worker 
Deputy Clerk 
Accounting Clerk & Planning Clerk 
Secretary Clerk & Support Worker 
Planning/Engineering Technician 
Development Coordinator 
Custodian  

SALARY OR WAGE RANGE: 

$3,843 - $4,671 Per Month 
$3,649 - $4,435 Per Month 
$3,336 - $4,055 Per Month 
$3,336 - $4,055 Per Month 
$2,989 - $3,633 Per Month 
$2,846 - $3,459 Per Month 
$2,832 - $3,443 Per Month 
$2,743 - $3,334 Per Month 
$2,561 - $3,112 Per Month 
$2,486 - $3,022 Per Month 
$2,381 - $2,894 Per Month 
$2,612 - $3,175 Per Month 
$2,589 - $3,147 Per Month 
$2,413 maximum Per Month 

Section 5. The above depicted salaries and wages shall be in effect beginning January 1, 2005. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 12th DAY 
OF JANUARY, 2005. 

Sharon D. Dillon 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Clerk-Treasurer 	 City Attorney 


